Public Document Pack

Licensing Sub-

Committee

Committee

581181 May REDOITGH MR gt

2.15 pm akﬂﬂ; ,
viy

Committee Room 3 '\%O

Town Hall &

www.redditchbc.gov.uk

Redditch



If you have any queries on this Agenda please contact
Sarah Sellers
Town Hall, Walter Stranz Square, Redditch, B98 8AH
Tel: (01527) 64252 ext 2884
e.mail: sarah.sellers@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk



mailto:sarah.sellers@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk

COMMITTEE PROTOCOL — LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE — GAMBLING ACT
APPLICATIONS

Each application that comes before this Sub-Committee will be treated on its own merits.
This licensing authority will make its decision based on the merits of the application and the
three licensing objectives, namely:

e preventing gambling from being a source of crime or disorder, being associated with
crime or disorder or being used to support crime,

e ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way, and

e protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or exploited by
gambling.

and will also have regard to the Guidance issued by the Gambling Commission and the
Redditch Borough Council Statement of Principles published in accordance with section 349
of the Gambling Act 2005.

Members of the Sub-Committee will meet prior to the hearing to note matters to be

presented, assisted by the legal and administrative support Officers only. The actual
application will not be discussed.

LICENSING HEARING PROCEDURE

The Hearing

Preliminary Issues

1. The Sub-Committee may proceed in the absence of a party (or representative) if the
party has:

- Informed the Sub-Committee that he or she does not intend to attend or
be represented at a hearing; or

- Failed to inform the Sub-Committee whether he or she intends to attend;
or

- Left the hearing in circumstances enabling the Sub-Committee to
reasonably conclude that he or she does not intend to participate further.

2. If a party, who has indicated that he or she intends to attend, fails to attend or be
represented at a hearing the Sub-Committee may:

- Where it considers it to be necessary in the public interest; adjourn the
hearing to a specified date and notify the parties of the date, time and
place to which the hearing has been adjourned; or hold the hearing in
the party’s absence.

3. Where the Sub-Committee holds a hearing in the absence of a party, it will consider at
the hearing the application, representations or notice made by that party.

4, The Sub-Committee will not take into account any written comments or documentary
evidence from a party which is first produced at the hearing, without the consent of all
parties in attendance at the hearing.

5. Cross-examination shall not be permitted unless the Committee considers that it is
required to enable it to consider the representations, application or notice as the case
may require.



At all times it will be a matter for the Chair as to the precise format and order of
events.

7. The hearing of the Sub-Committee must take place in public, however a Sub-
Committee may direct that all or part of a hearing must be in private if it is satisfied
that it is necessary in all the circumstances of the case, having regard to-

- Any unfairness to a party that is likely to result from a hearing in public;
and

- The need to protect as far as possible, the commercial or other
legitimate interests of a party.

Procedure

8. The Chair will open the meeting, outlining the nature of the decision to be taken, and
will identify the members of the Sub-Committee and Council Officers present.

0. The Chair will then ask all parties present for that agenda item to introduce
themselves.

10.  The Chair will give a brief outline of the procedure to be followed at the hearing.

11. The Technical Officer, Licensing, Worcestershire Regulatory Services will present the
report, outlining any relevant representations and relevancies to the Redditch Borough
Council Statement of Principles and associated Guidance issued by the Gambling
Commission and other statutory provisions where relevant.

12.  The Technical Officer may be questioned by members of the Sub-Committee and any
party on any matter that is relevant to the application or to any representations made
on the application where the Sub-Committee considers that in all the circumstances it
is appropriate to do so.

(Similar rights of questioning will apply, with the Sub-Committee’s permission, in
relation to paragraphs 13, 15, 17 and 19 below.)

13. The Applicant and / or his / her representative will speak in support of the application.

14.  The Applicant and / or his / her representative may be questioned by members of the
Sub-Committee.

15.  Any witnesses called by the applicant will then make representations to the Sub-
Committee.

(Similar rights will apply in relation to witnesses called by other parties.)

16. The witnesses may be questioned by members of the Sub-Committee.

17.  Any officers of the responsible authorities or their representative(s) will be invited to
make relevant representations to the Sub-Committee.

18.  The responsible authorities and / or their representative(s) may be questioned by
members of the Sub-Committee.

19. Any interested parties who have made representations in accordance with the

statutory procedure will be invited to outline their relevant representations to the Sub-
Committee.



20. The interested parties may be questioned by members of the Sub-Committee.
21. The Technical Officer will be invited to make a closing statement.

22.  Each responsible authority who submitted a relevant representation will be invited to
sum up.

23.  Any Interested parties who have made representations will be invited to sum up.

24.  The Applicant and / or his / her representative will be invited to sum up

25.  The Chair will ask the Legal Advisor if there is any legal advice to be given.

26. At the conclusion of the hearing members of the Sub-Committee, the Legal Advisor
and the Democratic Services Officer will withdraw from the meeting room so that the
Sub-Committee can reach its decision in private.

27. The Chair may depart from the above procedure if he / she considers it is in the
interests of natural justice to do so, either of his / her own volition or upon application

by any party. Before doing so he / she shall invite the views of the parties present
and consider any representations that may be made.

Decision

28. The Sub-Committee’s decision will not be announced on the day of the hearing but

rather, it will be sent to the Applicant and all those parties who made representations
within 5 working days.

Notes



10.

11.

12.

Any changes in Sub-Committee membership will be given at the beginning of the meeting.

Each party will be limited to a maximum time of ten minutes in which to make representations to the
Sub-Committee. This period may be extended at the discretion of the Chair. If an extension is agreed,
all parties are to be allowed the same time to make representations. Where appropriate, if several
parties wish to make the same representation, a spokesperson may, by consent, be appointed, in
which case the spokesperson is to be allowed the same period of time as other representatives. If a
spokesperson is not appointed, the amount of time must be shared between the persons wishing to
make the same representation.

Any person wishing to make representations and Applicants / Licence Holders can be represented by
a legal representative (at their own expense) or by a Councillor.

The Sub-Committee may require any person attending the hearing, who in its opinion is behaving in a
disruptive manner, to leave the hearing and may:

- refuse to permit that person to return; or
- permit that person to return only on such conditions as the Sub-Committee specify,

but such person may, before the end of the hearing, submit in writing any such information which they
would have given orally had they not been required to leave.

Decisions will generally be taken regardless of whether the applicant is present.

The Sub-Committee will make its decision within 5 working days beginning with the day or the last day
on which the hearing was held, and will inform the applicant as soon as is practicable thereafter of its
decision.

Applicants have a right to appeal, details of which can be obtained via the Licensing Officer.

It is not the general policy of the Council to enter into discussions or correspondence on matters
relating to the hearing or any decision made at the hearing.

Any irregularity resulting from any failure to comply with any provision of the relevant Regulations
before the Sub-Committee has made a determination shall not of itself render the proceedings void. In
the case of such irregularity, the Sub-Committee shall, if it considers that any person may have been
prejudiced as a result of such irregularity, take such steps as it thinks fit to cure the irregularity prior to
determination.

Clerical errors in any document recording a determination of the Sub-Committee or errors arising in
such document from accidental slip or omission may be corrected by the Sub-Committee.

Parties are not normally permitted to cross-examine or question other parties at Licensing Sub-
Committee hearings except with the permission of the Sub-Committee. It is important that questions
should not be hostile or seek to unfairly undermine the position of any party.

In the event of any conflict between this procedure and the relevant regulations, namely The Gambling
Act 2005 (Proceedings of Licensing Committees and Sub-Committees) (Premised Licences and
Provisional Statements) (England & Wales) Regulations 2007, then the Regulations will prevail.



REDDITGH BOR0UGH COUNCIL
—_— '

- - Friday, 11th May, 2018
Licensing Sub- e

1.00 pm
www.redditchbe.gov.uk committee Committee Room 3 Town Hall
Agenda Membership:
Cllrs: Tom Baker-Price Anita Clayton

Pat Witherspoon
Antonia Pulsford (Reserve)

1. Election of Chair

To elect a Councillor from the Sub-Committee to act as Chair for the meeting.
2. Chair's Welcome
3. Apologies

4. Declarations of Interest

To invite Councillors to declare any Disclosable Pecuniary Interests and / or Other Disclosable
Interest they may have in items on the agenda, and to confirm the nature of those interests.

5. Application for an Adult Gaming Centre Premises Licence - 8/10 Unicorn Hill,
Redditch, Worcestershire, B97 4QR (Pages 1 - 114)

0. Exclusion of the Public and Press

Should it be necessary, in the opinion of the Borough Director, during the course of the meeting to
consider excluding the public from the meeting on the grounds that exempt information is likely to
be divulged, it may be necessary to move the following resolution:

“That, under S.100 (A) (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the
meeting for the following matter(s) on the grounds that it/they involve(s) the likely disclosure of
exempt information as defined in the relevant paragraphs (to be specified) of Part 1 of Schedule
12 (A) of the said Act”.

These paragraphs are as follows:

Subject to the “public interest” test, information relating to:

e Paral - any individual;

e Para 2 — the identity of any individual;

e Para 3 —financial or business affairs;

e Para 4 - labour relations matters;




Licensing Sub-

- Friday, 11th May, 2018
Committee

e Para5 - legal professional privilege;

e Para 6 — anotice, order or direction;

e Para 7 — the prevention, investigation or

prosecution of crime;

and may need to be considered as ‘exempt’.



Page 1

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE

11™ MAY 2018

GAMBLING ACT 2005

APPLICATION FOR THE GRANT OF

ADULT GAMING CENTRE PREMISES LICENCE

PUBLIC HEARING

Director:

Head of Worcestershire Regulatory Services

Contact Officer:

Dave Etheridge

Senior Pracitioner (Licensing)

01905 822799

enquiries@worcsregservices.gov.uk

Ward(s) affected: Abbey

Appendices: Appendix 1 Application Form and Plan
Appendix 2 Local Risk Assessment
Appendix 3 Representation from Interested Party
Appendix 4 Statement of Principles
Appendix 5 Conditions and Codes of Practise
Appendix 6 Extract from Gambling Commission

Guidance to Licensing Authorities

Appendix 7 Mandatory Conditions

PURPOSE OF REPORT
1.1 To consider and determine an application for grant of an adult gaming centre

premises licence in respect of —

8-10 Unicorn Hill

Redditch

Worcestershire

B97 4QU

Agenda Iltem 5




2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

Page 2 Agenda ltem 5

A copy of the application form and the accompanying plan is attached at
Appendix 1.

BACKGROUND

On 9 February 2018 an application was received from Ladbrokes Betting
and Gaming Ltd for the grant of an adult gaming centre premises licence in
respect of —

8-10 Unicorn Hill
Redditch
Worcestershire
B97 4QU

An adult gaming centre premises licence entitles the holder to make gaming
machines available for use within an adult gaming centre. The holder of an
adult gaming centre premises licence can make available gaming machines
from categories B3, B4, C and D.

A maximum of 20% of the total number of gaming machines made available
for use on the premises can be from categories B3 or B4. There is no limit
on the number of category C or D machines that can be made available
under an adult gaming centre premises licence.

Under section 47 (5) of the Gambling Act 2005, it is an offence to invite or
permit a child or young person to enter an adult gaming centre.

The application contained all the requisite documentation including the
application fee and a plan of the premises.

It can be confirmed that the application has been advertised in accordance
with the requirements of the Gambling Act 2005 and associated regulations
and that notice of the application has also been served on all responsible
authorities.

The application was also accompanied by a copy of the applicant’s local risk
assessment for this premises. A copy of the risk assessment can be seen at
Appendix 2.



Page 3 Agenda ltem 5

2.8 Ladbrokes Betting and Gaming Ltd hold the relevant operating licence
issued by the Gambling Commission that entitles them to make gaming
machines available for use in adult gaming centres.

3. REPRESENTATIONS

Responsible Authorities

3.1 No representations have been received from any of the responsible
authorities identified in the Gambling Act 2005 and associated regulations.

Interested Parties

3.2 A representation has been received from an interested party. The interested
party is Power Leisure Bookmakers Limited, who hold a betting premises
licence at 1 — 2 Market Place, Redditch, B98 8AA.

3.3 The representation was submitted on Power Leisure Bookmakers Limited’s
behalf by Poppleston Allen solicitors.

3.4 The representation raises concerns about the following licensing objectives:

e preventing gambling from being a source of crime or disorder, being
associated with crime or disorder or being used to support crime

e protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed
or exploited by gambling

3.5 A copy of the representation received can be seen at Appendix 3.

4. LOCAL POLICY CONSIDERATIONS

4.1 The Sub-Committee should have regard to the Council’s Statement of
Principles published in accordance with section 349 of the Gambling Act
2005.

4.2 A copy of the Council’s Statement of Principles can be seen at Appendix 4.



5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

Page 4 Agenda ltem 5

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

Section 153 of the Gambling Act 2005, provides that in determining
applications the licensing authority shall aim to permit the use of the
premises for gambling in so far as it thinks it is—

(@) in accordance with any relevant code of practice under section 24,

(b) in accordance with any relevant guidance issued by the Commission
under section 25,

(c) reasonably consistent with the licensing objectives (subject to
paragraphs (a) and (b)), and

(d) in accordance with the statement published by the authority under
section 349 (subject to paragraphs (a) to (c)).

With reference to (a) in paragraph 5.1 above, a copy of the Gambling
Commission’s sector specific Conditions and Codes of Practice applicable to
Adult Gaming Centres and Family Entertainment Centres can be seen at
Appendix 5.

With reference to (b) in paragraph 5.1, the latest version of the Gambling
Commission’s Guidance to Licensing Authorities is available on line at :-
http://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/PDF/GLA5-updated-September-

2016.pdf
Parts 1 (General), 9 (Premises licence conditions) and 21 (Adult Gaming
Centres) have been reproduced at Appendix 6.

With reference to (c) in paragraph 5.1 above, section 1 of the Gambling Act
2005 sets out the three licensing objectives, which are:

(@) preventing gambling from being a source of crime or disorder, being
associated with crime or disorder or being used to support crime,

(b) ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way, and

(c) protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or
exploited by gambling.

With reference to (d) in paragraph 5.1 above, a copy of the Council’s
Statement of Principles, published in accordance with section 349 of the
Gambing Act 2005 can be seen at Appendix 4.


http://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/PDF/GLA5-updated-September-2016.pdf
http://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/PDF/GLA5-updated-September-2016.pdf

Page 5 Agenda ltem 5

5.6 Section 153(2) of the Act states that in determining whether to grant a
premises licence a licensing authority may not have regard to the expected
demand for the facilities which it is proposed to provide.

5.7 On considering an application for a premises licence (whether at a hearing
or not) a licensing authority shall —

(@) Grantit, or
(b) Rejectit.

5.8 If the licensing authority issues an adult gaming centre premises licence, this
will be subject to the mandatory conditions applicable to such premises
licences, as prescribed under section 167 of the Act. A copy of the
mandatory conditions applicable to adult gaming centres can be seen at
Appendix 7.

5.9 Further to the mandatory conditions, where a licensing authority issue a
premises licence they may —

(@) attach a condition to the licence

(b) exclude a condition that would otherwise be attached to the licence by
virtue of section 168 of the Act (default conditions)

5.10 There are however no default conditions prescribed under section 168 of the
Act in relation to adult gaming centre premises licences.

5.11  Where a licensing authority grants or reject an application for a premises
licence, they shall as soon as is reasonably practicable give notice to —

e The applicant

e The Gambling Commission

e Any person who made representations about the application
e The Chief Officer of Police for the area

e Her Majesty’s Commissioners of Customs and Excise

5.12 If the application is granted, this notice —
(@) must be in the prescribed form,

(b) if the licensing authority have attached a condition to the licence under
section 169(1)(a) or excluded under section 169(1)(b) a condition that



Page 6 Agenda ltem 5

would otherwise have attached by virtue of section 168, must give the
authority's reasons, and

(c) if representations were made about the application under section 161,
must give the authority's response to the representations.
5.13 If the application is rejected, this notice —
(@) must be in the prescribed form, and

(b) must give the authority's reasons for rejecting the application.

5.14  Where a licensing authority rejects an application for a premises licence, the
applicant may appeal.

5.15 Where a licensing authority grant an application for a premises licence,
either of the following may appeal —

(@) a person who made representations in relation to the application
(b) the applicant

5.16  Appeals must be instituted in the Magistrates Court for the area within 21
days beginning with the day on which the appellant receives notice of the
decision against which the appeal is brought.

6. FOR DECISION

6.1 The Sub-Committee must consider and determine the application.



Page 7 Agenda Iltem 5

Application for a premises Hicence
under the Gambiing Act 2005 {standard form}

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST

if you are compieting this form by hand, please write legibly in biock capitals using ink. Use
additional sheeis if necessary (marked with the number of the relevant guestion). You may wish to
Keep a copy of the compileted form for vour records.

Where the application is—
» Inrespectof a vessel, or

= To convert an authorisation granted under the Betiing, Gaming and Lottsries Act 1963 or
the Gaming Act 1988,
the application should be made on the relevant form for that tvpe of pramises or application.

 Part 1 - Type of premises licence appliedfor . .
Regionai Casino ] Large Casino [ Small Casino [

Bingo [} Adult Gaming Centre Family Entertainment Centre [_]
Betting {Track) [J Betting (Cther) ]

Do you hold a provisional statement in respect of the premises? Yes[ | No

it the answer is “yas”, please give the unique reference number for the provisional statement {as
set out af the top of the first page of the statement);

¥you are an éﬂiiduai, pieass filt in Section A. If the application is being made on behalf of n
organisalion {such as 2 company or parinership}, please il in Section B.

Section A
individual appiicant

1. Title: Mr L] Mrs (] Miss [ Ms [ Dr ] Other (please spedify)
2. Sumame; ' Other name(s):
[Use the names given in the applicant's operating licence or, if the applicant does not hold an

operating ficencs, as given in any application for an operating licence]

3. Applicant’s address (home or business ~ [delefe as appropriate]y;

Postcode:
4{a}) The number of the applicant’s operating licence {as set ouf in the cperating Hoence})




Page 8 Agenda Iltem 5

4ih) If the applicant does not hold an operating licence butis in the process of applving for one,
give the date on which the application was made:

5. Tick the box if the application is being made by more than one person. ]

{Where there are further applicants, the information required in guestions 1 to 4 should be included
on addilional sheels atiached io this form, and those sheets should be clearly marked “Details of
further applicants™]

Section B
Application on behalf of an organisation

8. Name of applicant business or organisation: Ladbrokes Betling & Gaming Limited

{Use the names given in the applicant's operating licence or, if the applicant doss nof hold an
operating icence, as given in any application for an operating ficence. ]

7. The applicant’s ragistered or principal address:
One Stratford Place

Montfichet Road

London

Postcode; E20 1EJ
B8{a} The number of the applicant’s operating licence {as given in the operating licence}):

8{b} If the applicant does not hold an operating licence butis in the process of applying for one,
give the date on which the application was made: 18.01.2018

8. Tick the box if the application is being made by more than ons orgapisation, [

{Where there are further applicants, the information required in questions 6 to 8 should be included
on additional sheets atfached 1o this form, and those sheets shouid be clearly marked “Deatails of
further applicants™]

10. Proposed trading nams to be used at the premises (if known): TBC

1. Address of the premises (or, if none, give a description of the premisas and their location);
810 Unicomn Hill

Redditch

Worcesiershire

Posicode: BB7 4QR
12. Telephone number at premises {if known): N/A




Page 9 Agenda ltem 5

3

13. If the premises are in only a part of & building, please describe the nature of the building (for
sxample, & shopping centre or office block). The description should include the number of fioors
within the buliding and the floor{s) on which the premises are located.

Ground floor shop unit within a 3 storey building located in a parade of shops.

14{a} Are the premises situated in more than one ficensing authority area?
Mo [delsls as appropriate]

14{b). if the answer 1o question 14{a) is yes, piease give the names of all the licensing authorities
within whose area the premises are partly located, other than the licensing authority to which

this application is made:

Part4-Timesofoperation
15(a}. Do you want the licensing authority fo exclude a default condition so that the premises may
be used for longer periods than would otherwise be the cass? No [delete as appropriate] Where
the relevant kind of premises licence is not subject fo any defaulf conditions, the answer fo this
guestion witf be no.}

15{b). i the answer to question 15(a) is yes, please compleie the table below to indicale the imes
when you want the premises o be avallable for use under the premises licencs.

Start Finish Details of any seasonal variation
Mon hhmm hh:mm
Tus
Wed
Thurs
Fri
Sat
Sun

18. If you wish fo apply for a premises licence with a condition restricting gambling o speacific
periods in 3 vear, please siate the pericds below using calendar dates:




Page 10 Agenda Iltem 5

Part5-Miscellaneous
17. Proposed commencement date for licence {leave blank If you want the licence to commencs as
soon gs it is issued) TBC {ddimmfyyyy)

18(a}. Does the applicalion relate to premises which are part of a track or other sporting venus
which already has & premises licence? No [defete as appropriate]

18{b). I the answer to question 18(z) is yes, please confirm by ficking the box that an application to
vary the main frack premises licence has been submitied with this application. [ |

18{a). Do you hold any other premises lcences that have besn issusd by this licensing authority?
Yas [delefe as appropriate]
18(b). if the answer to question 19{a) is ves, please provide full details:

iease see atlached list

20. Please set out any other matters which you consider io be relevant o your application:

Part 6 — Declarations and Checklist (Pleasetick)  ~ ~ - -
i/ We confirm that, to the best of my/ our knowledge, the information contained in this
application is trus. ¥ We undersiand that it is an offenice under section 342 of the 7
Gambling Act 2005 to give information which is faise or misleading in, or in relation to, -
this application.
i We confirm that the applicant{s} have the right to ococupy the pramises.
Checklisl:
= Paymaent of the appropriate fee has been made/is enclosed X
= A plan of the premises is enclosed
» l we understand that if the above requirements are not complied with the
application may be rejected e
» i/ we undersiand that it is now necessary 1o adveriise the application and give 5%
the appropriate notice to the responsible authorities -




Page 11 Agenda Item 5

Part 7 — Signatures
21. Signature of applicant or appiicants solicitor or other duly authorised agent. I signing on behalf
of the applicant. please state in what capacily:

Signature:

Print Name: Gavin Dalzail

Date: 00/02/2018  (dd/mmityyyy} Capacity: Ladbrokes Coral National
Licensing Manager

22. For joint applications, signature of 2nd applicant, or 2nd applicanf's solicitor or other authorsed
agent. If signing on behalf of the applicant, please state in what capacily:

Signature:

Print Name:
Date: {dd/mm/yyyy) Capacity:

[Where there are more than two applicants, please use an additional sheet ciearly marked
“Signature(s} of further applicant(s)” The sheet should include ail the information requested in
paragraphs 21 and 22.]

[Where the application is to be submitted in an electronic form, the signature should be generated
electronically and should be a copy of the person’s wrillen signature.]

Part 8 — Contact ﬁé‘tai_iﬁ B _ " 3
23(a) Please give the name of a person who can be contacted about the application:
Gavin Dalzsll

23(b} Please give one or more telephone numbers at which the person identified in question 23(a)
~can be contacted:

24. Postal address for correspondence associated with this application:
Ladbrokes Coral

28 La Porte Precinct

Grangemouth

Stirlingshire

Postcode:FK3 8BG

25. if you are happy for correspondence in relation to your application to be sent via e-mail, please
give the e-mail address o which you wouid ke carrespondence o be sent;




This page is intentionally left blank



Proposed Ground Floor Layout

M 20 40 60 spM

METERS

SITE LOCATION PLAN

SCALE 1 1250@A1

S-S

IMPORTANT NOTICE
‘cophad In whole or in part without their prior written consent

REPORTED IMMEGIATEL ¥

Contractors must check ALL dimensions on mite
Onily figurad dimensions are to be worked from, excapt for planning p

ba reported 1o the Project
purchased without accurate site measurement
must undertake site Inspaction and avall themselves of site condition
discrepancies hetween a Survey or a Proposal and a Site must e reported

subsequont tendering roturn,

PROPOSED

GROSS UNIT AREA

% 8110 UNICORN HILL

REDDITCH
WORCESTER, B97 4QR
Descipion.

PROPOSED GROUND FLOOR PLAN

Drawing Number. e Revision.
COU/110917/MS/203 I —,

This Drawing remains the copyright of "Kreative Ltd" and shall not be altered or

THIS DRAWING HAS BEEN PREPARED FROM SITE SURVEY INFORMA"ON
TAKENBY A THIRD PARTY,

- IE_ ANY DISCREPANCIES ARE FOUND THEY MUST 8€

urposes.

This deawing 1s to bo raad in conjunction with all othor relovant drawings and any
must re

procesding. CORAL accopts no responsibility for works undertaken or materials i

Whero this drawing is used for TENDERING purposes all tendering contractors

itlons. and any

immediately to the Project Manager and qualified clearly and concsaly within any

1400 SQFT
GROSS CUSTOMER AREA SQFT
NET CUSTOMER AREA SQFT

€T abed

G wa}| epuaby



IMPORTANT NOTICE

Thia Drawing remains the copyright of 'LKreative Ltd® and shall not be altered or
<oplod in whole of In part without their prior written consent

Anything which 1s shown on this pian, which 1s not
| required by the plan regulation. is for illustrative
| purposes only and does not form part of the licence |

The location and extent of that part of the premises
| which will be used to provide facilities for gambling |
| in reliance of the jicence

OM__20 40 60  8QM

il

METERS

' SITE LOCATION PLAN
SCALE 1'1250@A

ENTRANCE FROM

MALE WwC

UNICORN HIL i REAR EXIT TO
§ SERVICE ROAD
| S +
B . DISABLED / . :
F FEMALE O —N
e PROPOSED
ENTRANCE GROSS UNIT AREA 1400 SQFT
GROSS CUSTOMER AREA SQFT
NET CUSTOMER AREA SQFT
NEWSPAPER DISPLAY AREA LFT
| DRAVING REVISIONS ___ ]

Proposed Ground Floor Layout

8/10 UNICORN HILL :’
REDDITCH
WORCESTER, B97 4QR
Description ]
LICENSING PLAN
IDdlﬂ ”U'”ci_,__;] Ecuh 1508A" eﬂ;; o

ro'ru-n. con j [P'u.‘ <G h"'

Drowing Number. Revision,
_J ( LADCOR/110917/LP/601 [

T obed

G wa)| epuaby



!D'é

uaym Ag oum Ag SUO1OY / S3INSE3A [043U0) [BUOIIPPY

pa1uswajdwi 39 ISNW Y2IYM SUOIIO. / S3INSEIU [041U0D [eUOIHPPE AUE JO AJBWIWINS P10 JUBWSSIsse %S 3y1 Suimojjo4

Aaand
Y 4 ‘3‘\". 1A

g Xipuaddy '3 # uo1123s Jad se doys ay3

uo pasoduwi suonsas Sulnpayds ajSuis Aue jo sjielap
P10234 JUdWISSSSE 3SI4 3y JO uoNd|dwod 3y} SuImo)|o4
suonouisay Sulnpayas asuis

(qz = Buney ysiy 'a'1) € 13 Z suo1as
40 s3uiiey sty ay1 Sutuiquiod Aq
dune. ysu ay3 pJ0dal ‘Juswssasse
3S1 40 uons|dwod 3uimoyjjo4

doys jo Suney ysiy |jesanQ

doys ay3 ul SaINSEaW |041U0D BY3 1I344E YIIYM SUOIIIPUOD 8u1dud21| Aue SI9pISUOD - SUOIIIIISAY SUOIIIPUO) 8u1dUdII 1y UOIYIAG -
suonesi|qo saAalqo 8upuadi 4no Sunasw

uo doys ay3 yo usisap |eaisAyd ay1 Aq pasod sjos3uod / spiezey PUE S)SLI B3Je |BJ0]| SI9PISU0D - SAAIIAIGO SuIduadi] 01 1e3IY] € UOIRIIS -
$43W03sNd pue saNZea||0d 03 121)4U0d pue UoISsaISSe ‘9Iu3|oIA pale|al Y40M 4O 3S1I 3y ssasse 03 Aep

3upjiom ay3 Inoy3nouy) sawiy Jua1ayip 1e doys [E40D 10 S9Y0IQPET B Ul S3ITAIIDE }IOM [BIBUIT SMIIADJ - JUBWISSASSY ANINIAG :Z UOIIIS -
S1U3PIdUI JO s J1eau3 1. S| dOysS By} JaYIayMm SSSSE 0} SIIISIIRIS SWIID pue

Ayunwwod [es0] ays se [|am se A101s1y JuapIdUl S duipnpoul ‘doys ay3 4o 3)140.1d |[eI2ua3 SMaINDI - 9]1304d eaay |e207 pue doys :T uoi3Ias -
‘SaA1303[qo Bu1duad1| N0 J3pUN SuoIIeSI|qo JNO

141N} @M Bulinsua se ||am se ‘9Je|dyJom 3y} ul sanSea||0d Jno 40 A1a4es ssaippe yoiym suo1123s Inoy Jo paslidwod S| JUBWSSISSe )SU Sy

Page 15

passasse Suiaq Ajaizoe yJom

ISY sowy 13N

ainmeusis 3)ML qor awep ansea|j0)

JUBWISSASSY
sty ay3 03 Sunnquyuo)
SU0SI3d JO SUOINSOJ pue sawep

810C'TO'TE

Juawissassy Jo ajeq

|1PUN0) y3nouog youppay

Auoyiny Aiore|nSay jesoq

40V £68 "Y21PP3Y ‘||IH uiod1un 0T/8 $S31ppy 7 apo) doys TTAnN

ealy 3 uoigay

dnoyo

1Vd0D SIHN0¥9Av

(VHV1d) 3uswissassy ysiy ealy |ed07 sasiwalid “




C'LALLOC dunp
(VHV1d) Juswissessy ysiy ealy |e207] sasiwalid — dnoio | e109 sayoiqpe]
[PUID]U] (UONeIJISSB]I sayjoIqpe|

‘doys sy ul 2undas

A>..—_u®Qw wwmm_o: 49410 pue ajes 3u0m 01 MOy Uo uoidNIIsul

apinoad yarym (SO9IN) A1ajes uo souepingd

wJeje o}nbso WJe|e SS2J1SIP [eUOSIad suoRouIsal 3ulnpayds 3|3uls 1uawaseuew pue (N|AL) S310U UOIINIISUI

Agenda Item 5

)BOJD ows (391101) »o0| 2112UEN VEEIINSENI (o} 3}40M ‘(S,d0S) saanpadoud Sunessado

doys ay1 peau 3snw sanges|j0d ||y
113q Asuoy (400p 1u0u4y) ¥20| 2138uSeN (jsued wuele) apoa ssaing

(spsemino suado Joop) uaney ajes (Ienpiaipur) wieyy dlued 3|qeliod ALDD X ue

Ajdd
I — TS He G SiaEo] i yum Ajdde 1ey) sainseaw [013U03 ||e i
%20|q auiyde pienoyes sainseay [013u0) Sunysixg

Page 16

$94Nseaw |0J43u0d y3nouyy passaippe
A|21enb3pe usaqg Jou aney Yarym suiaduod
jueayiudis Aue 1y311y3iH "doys ay3 1oy

1e3A 931y} 1s€| 3Y) J9A0 pas0dal syuBpIdUI
JUBdlIUSIS JUBASI|AI JO S|IBIDP PI0IY
A103s1H uapidu| doys

doys ay1 jo 9|140.d ysi1 ay3 uo 1pedwi
Aew yorym 212 ‘syods pui|q ‘@8esanod
A1DD “433unod jo uonisod Suipnjoul
‘inoAe| doys juaiind ay3 Jo sjielsp pioday
“Y9HPPRY 30 343U3d UMO] 3Y3 Ul s3R1ad0oud |BIDISWWOD PAJRIIS] JO UNJ B Ul PASNOY Hun 384e| e S| doys ay) 9|1404d doys

uoljewoju| Ao8arey

"doys ay3 104 Su1ies s B SUIUIWIBIBP UIYM JUBWISSISSE 1 SIY} JO € pue 7 su01129s Inoy3nouy) pasn ag pjnoys
uonewJojul siy| "eale ay3 Jo a3pajmouy Juswaseuew [eI0| pue AJ03siy JuapIdUl doys ‘Ayunwiwod |e20| (s2U3440 |BNX3S pue dJU3|0IA ‘uosiad wouy 1yay) ‘Alagqou
‘s3nup ‘98ewep |eulwId ‘INOIARYSQ [BID0S-1IUB) SIIISIT]S DWILID |BI0] JUBAS|34 JUNOIJE 01Ul uIXe) J0SSSSe 3yl Ag pa1a|dwod 3q PINOYS JUBWISSISSe 9Y1 JO U0n2I3s sy |

9]1J04d e3Jy |e207 pue doys :T uoId3s



¢'LALLOC dunp
(V¥V1d) Juswissassy sty eaiy [2207 sasiwaid — dnouo |ei09 sayoiqpe]
[PLUI9U] (U0onedJIsSe]d sayorqpe|

doys ay1 jo 3jiy04d
SH 9y3 10944e Aew yaiym syealyy jennualod
40 sjuapidul Aue pue eaue |eJ0| 3Y3 O

Agenda ltem 5

) "SNOLISS 4B YdIYMm Uou ‘sanssi maj A1an ddualadxa Aayl 1ey) alesisuowap | aSpajmouy Juswadeuew 10 s|1e19p pJoday
SS5€¢1 AgJeau pue 0g1 snoina.d se syuapioul paliodad SuisAjeue Janamoy ‘ease awid Y31y e 31e21pUl PINOM S1BIS W) a3pajmouy Juawaseuey |e207
SALIP
10V 9Y31 J9pun saA1123[qo oY) Jo uoilelapisuod 39|80038 uo punoy aq ued saijod Sulques
ONP 341 YIIM paulwialap aq 03 aAey suonedijdde (e pue ‘Suijques Aq payiojdxa 4o paw.ey 3uiaq wouy ajdoad ajqesaujna Ayioyiny |edo7 ‘ease ayy 1oy sanuond
19410 pue uaJp|iyd 33330.d 01 SI 12V 3Y} J2pUN 3RO JaYINy i "UOISSILWO) Suljquen 3Y} Yy3Im 3siel| Os|e [|Im |1ouno) 921j0d |BD0| BY) PJ0d3J ‘B|qe|IRAE §|
_,”_ 3yL "Awou023 |ed0] s, A1) 33 Jo YyImous ay) 03 s33NqLIIU0D Suljques paie|n3das Ajsadoud ey sasiugooas Ayioyiny Supuadi ay| (319e21dde j1) Adijog Suiquien
) 9USGIM 32110 BIDIIA 353/ UO paisy| saitiolid Supijod [edoj oN | Ausoyiny |e207 18 sanolg Sumnijod |e20q
w SCL°66 WD JUB|OIA
o £60°66 uosiad ay3 woy yay "92USPIAS J3Y10 ||B ym uondunfuod
LEV'86 A13qqoy ul pasn aq 1snw Inq ‘sasodind Alo1edipul
+09°66 suodean JO UOISSasSOd 10} pasn aq p|noys s211s13L1S 3SaY] 910N
CET'86 saw) 3nug
189°'86 uos.y 13 a8eweq [eulwi) (W037S1RISIWLIN MMM //-d11Y)
L6176 Asejdung 2}ISqaM s1els aw)
Tv9 66 OIEY3g [EDOS-AUY MN 2Yl Wouy udxe) aJe so1S1IeYS 3say |
"eaJe 3y} ut sawid ARy 3saysiy
9y Sunesipul ‘jues swLd 3y} pioday
uoniew.ojul jeuonippy juey adAj sawp S213S1381S dWiLID |BI07]

989|102 pue jooyds ydiy -

s,09140mLdwo)y - 918 ‘so1ulpd 3nup ‘sqnd ‘sjooyds ‘a°1

slueunelsal pue sieq ‘sqnd snoJawny - doys ay3 jo aj1youd ysu ay3 uo 1edwi Aew

suolnjeis snq pue uied] - Ya1ym Ajlunwiwiod [B20] Y3 UIYIM SIDIAIDS

Pusip Suiddoys utew 3yl Ul UMO} JO 243U Y] Ul PAJedOT - pue sassauisnqg 1ay10 JO |1e1ap PJ0daY

‘uonedo| 19a.s ysiy jeuonnipes) - 3|1J04d ealy |eI07]




2'LALLOZ dunp
(V¥V1d) Juswssessy jysiy eaty |e207 sesiwald — dnoio |e109 sayouqpe]
[BLLIDJU] (UODBIIJISSB]D sayjoaqpe|

LO
mw (€) (2) (1) Bl P SRy
) Y3IH PSN %a] Suiwesd Suilydwa ajiym siswolsnod lo/pue
T san3ea||0d jsulede 30U3|OIA JO 181y} 40 |BN1DY
®
@) (4owo3sn3 e 1no Suiked
c (€) () (1) 4o Buijpuey ysed |esauasd 'a°1) doys ul ysed
(ah] Y3IH PN ] e JO JusWaAoW SuLINp SI9WO01SNI Jo/pue
(@)) $an3ea||0d suleSe 2u3|O0IA JO Jealy} JO [BNdY
~
(S) (€) (T) Ju3pIdUI
YStH PIN Mol A1und3s 1o Asagqou e Suninp siawolsnd 1o/pue
san3ea||0d jsuiede 90U3|O0IA 4O 1B34Y] 1O |BNIDY
3 © | @ | o —
%u Y3iH PIN MoT doys |esauad 3ulnp siawoisnd Jo/pue
v san3ea||0d jsulede 32U3|0IA JO 1831y} IO |BNDY
all
(€) (2) (T) doys ayy
YB3 PN &R 40 3uiso|d 4o 3ujuado 1s)Iym S12WO03ISNI J0/pue
san3ea||0d suiede 92U3|O0IA JO 134y} JO BNy
ANndJ0 ||IMm
183443 S1Y1 eyl pooy|ayl 3yl uoissau33e pue
uoiew.oul SWIIJ [B30] 40 3|1o.d eaJe |ed0| ‘syuapioul doys Juena|as Aue Suipnjoul ‘Suiiindd0 sl 1eym ‘doys ayy jo spiyoud 3dU3|0IA 01 aunsodxa apinoad asned Aew jeyy
$141 30 pooy!|ay!| 9y Suipiedas apew aAey noA uoisaP ayy oddns YaIym sjie1ap paoday |ed0] pue AJ03s1y Y1 uo paseg uonipuod 3upjiom / Ajianoe Aue s jeaiyy v
uoisidap poddns 01 aduaping pooyiayi sj}ealyy |enualod

*$43W03SNJ pue s3N5e3)|0d 4O dJeyaM 3Y) 199104d 03 20e|d Ind Ul 3q pjnoys
Y21yM S3INSEIW |0.3U0d WinwWilulw pue 3uljes ysiu doys ||e43A0 3y} 938|NdJed 01 XIIIRIA sy AN aY) 01 1331 Uy} ‘21095 3sl4 |e301 3y3 dn ppe ‘mojaq suonsanb ayy
3unajdwod 1ayy “uoissaid8e pue 2u3|0IA 30e|d)JOM JO SWII) Ul S3siwald 3Y3 4O 3unel YsLd ||EIDA0 Y] BUIWISIIP O SI JUSWISSISSE 3Y} 4O UOIIIS SIY} Jo asodind ay

JUBWISSASSY A114N23S 1z UoIIBS




[EUID)U] (UONBIIJISSB]D SoIqpe |

C'LALLOZ Bunp

(V¥V1d) Juswssassy jysiy ealy |e207] sasiwaid — dnoug | ei09 sayouqpe]

Agenda ltem 5

usaym Ag

oym Ag

X113ew >su pajsi| J0u si 3ey) pasinbau suonde jeuonippe Auy

(Suney ysiy A1un2as 1y xipuaddy 01 J3)ay)
:3uney sty ||esan0

(anoqe syaxdeuq ui saulod dn ppy)
1 UoI123S Ul paje|nWNIIY Sjulod |e10]

Page 19

(Asessaoau
Se SjusWwWod xew) doys ayi ul paijipuapl
9JUD|OIA 4O s3}ea4y) 21J193ds Jayliny Auy

(€)
Y3iH

(@)
P3N

(1)

MO

suoIdeISIUI pue S313IANDE Subjlem 100)y SuLinp
san3ea||0d jsulede 90U3|O0IA JO 1B34Y) 10 |BNdY

(€)
YsiH

(2)
PaN

Mo

suonediqo Suiquen

d|qIsuodsay 4no 4o 1ied se uoioesalul
J9W03sNd pue aAlenIul TZ July] Y3 Jo

Med se s3sanbas uoiledyan a8e 03 uone|as ul
$9n3ea||0d sulede 32u3|0IA 4O JB3UY] 10 |BNIDY

(S)
YaiH

(€)
P3N

Mo

(434sueuy doys 4o Supjueq "a°1) ysueuy ul
ysed 3ulinbau sannp 3uiwioyiad 03 uoneal ul
san3ea||0d Jsuiede 92U3|O0IA JO 1831y} 10 |BNIY




Agenda Iltem 5

Page 20

C'LALLOZ dunp
(VHV1d) Jus wissassy )ysiy ealy [e207] sasiwald — dnos | e109 sayoiqper]
[EUIDJU] {UONBIIJISSB]D SoIqpe |

(010
‘s}19|e DY ‘suoisn|oxa-4|3s)
SJ9|quen wa|qold
*Ad1j0d uoioesayul
9yl yum aosuepuaodde ul Ayunyioddo 1sa1j4ea 33 18 UOIdRIAUI Sunques
ue 91e)|19.) pinoys sangdea||o) ‘wa|qoid Suijques e Suidojanap 201A195 Aq pato|dxa 1o
) () (e) ) Jo mcwmm_m mc_>>o>smam_ Jawolsnd e umfmm;m__mn_ 01 Ew_wt pes| 40 |esnya1 e 03 Suipes) pawiey Suiag wouy
ySiy DN MOT BW ydoiym si1233143 |edisAyd/|eanoineyaq asiudodaa 0} palinbau aue ‘(10403e 10 sSn1p JayYa) suosiad 3|qesau|na
san38ea||0d a1aym Adijod uoidessyu| ue sey dnouo |e40) say0Iqpe] $13WO0ISNI P31BIIXOIY| 13430 pue
— uaJp|1yd 3udsloud
0} 22ueyd ayl aney Aayl aiojaq ‘qusawndop Q| pijea areldosdde
9y1 jo uonodnpoud ayl Aq paiyiian ade J1ayy pue payoeosdde (2217435 Jo |eSNyaU)
9Je Tz jo a3e ay1 4apun aq 01 seadde oym siaw01SNI ||e 18yl 8uiques agesapun
salinbau yoiym Ad1jod Tz quiy] e sajesado dnoug |eso) sayolqpe]
sawi} ||e 3e yum pardwod si me| , 8T-19pun,, 3yl aInsua o
saAoalqo paynuapi syeasyl
8udpuadi| siyy 1sulese d1y10ads doys uayyiny Aue
pasodxa aq |im doys ay1 (1usnbauy ainided 0} noA 1oy adeds
pooy1ay1| ay3 a1ed ‘syealyy 92Ud1| s,doys ay3 03 YS1 dSIWIUIW SS9 10 Ajyuo sn|d s1easyl uowwod
palilusapl ayl uo pasegq 01 92e(d ul saunseaw |043u02 Sunsixa Aue Jo p1odal ases|d ‘Apjeam “Ajieq) 1SOW 3y3 paisl) aAey I\
pooyiayn sainsea|\ |043u0) Sunsixy Aduanbauy 1ealy] [enuajod aA1alqo Supuaon

(Bunes o, e 5198 pue uo1193s s1y1 J0J Suies ysu ||B4BA0 S Ul ,YSIY, PAI0IS I “E UOIFIAS ui uonnsanb 3|3uis e uo ,y3iy, patods doys

#1°9'1) JuswIssasse ayy ui paiyauapl Suies ysu 3saysiy ay3 jo Jusjeainba ayy si $9A1123(q0 Bu1du3d1| 3Y3 03 Bulle. Su ||BIaA0 Y] "aA13d3[q0 3u1ouad1| ay3 03 1e3IYL BY)
40 pooyI|a3!] 3Y3 aulwia1ap ‘9A1nd3[go Sulduadl| ai4123ds ay3 01 pale|as suolisanb ayi jo yaea Sunajdwod 19y "doys ays jo usisap |eaisAyd ay3 Aq pasod sjos1uod pue
s1ealyi |elrualod ay) os|e Inq sysi eaJe [eJ0] 3Nl 10U SIBPISUOD 3| S3AIIIBO SuidUDI| 33.44) 33 JO Yde3 03 sl 214123ds Aue s31eN|eAS JUBWISSISSE 3Y) JO UOIIIAS SIY |

S9A1323[qQ SulduddIT 0 S1E3UY] € UOIIIS



Agenda Iltem 5

Page 21

[EUID)U] {UONBIIISSB[D SH[oIqpe |

C'LALLOZ dunp

(V¥V1d) Juswssassy ysiy ealy |e207 sasiwald — dnolo | e109) sayoiqpe]

©)
YaiH

P3N

(e)

MO

‘pasiioyine aq 01 JuswAed 1oy weay A1undas ay3 01 pariodau

2Je S1USPIdUL ||V "S|eulwla] 3ul119q SPPO Paxl 3yl eIA sadessaw
uaa.2s y3no.y3 Sulapune] Asuow Jo saduejsul |el3ualod 03 pariaje
a.e san3ea||0d a19ym de|d ui waisAs e sey dnoug |elo) sax04qpe]

"dWLD JO spaadoud ay3 yum

3uiaq 4o Sunspune| Asuow jo syuapidul Aue 11odas pue asiugoda.
01 MOY uo 3utuiel) 3A19234 saNSea||02 34aym ZOOZ 1Y W)

40 SPa3d0.d 3y 43A02 01 Adljod e sa1esado dnoug |ea0) sayoiqpe

'sanbiuysa) pneuy pasn Ajuowwod
3uiAyinuapi ul Buluresy an1a4 sangea)||0d sJowayINy 'sJ91spnedy
umou) ||e Jo aseqelep silspnely e sey dnouo |elo) saxyoiqpeT

‘(Ay10ads ases|d)
S1ea.1yl paynuapl 1ayio

(s1e9A € 1se UIYUM)
$3149qQoJ |enyy

su9le
Sunspune| Asuow-nuy

S9)}0U paulels

Sialspneu4

awd oddns
01 pasn 3ulaq Jo
J3pJ0SIp 10 dwd JO
92J4no0s e 3ulaq wouy
3ulqwed unuanaig

:(Ay10ads ases|d)
s1ealyl paynuapl 1sy1o




Agenda Iltem 5

Page 22

C'LALLOZ dunp

(V¥V1d) Juswissassy jysiy ealy [e207] sasiwaid — dnoug | e109 sayouqpe]

[EUID)U] (UONBIJISSE[D SoIqpe’]

usym Ag

oym Ag

paiinbay uonoy

"PaJinbau se ‘93udd1| s,doys ay3 01 1e31Y1 sIwIuIW 0} pasinbai suonoe doys diy10ads Aue aseajd ‘san133(qo Suduadi| 3yl 4o yoea 03 payuP! S1eaJyl 8y} uo pasegq

‘Sunes e, ue 198 pue Mo, si Suiles ||e4ano

uayl ,moj, st Sunes 3saydly yi sjdwexa 104 "papinoid xoq 3y} ul 310U pue aA0qe saA3[qo Suduadl| 33.4y1 ay) wouy Suiled 1saysiy ayy el

:paiyiuap| |2A37 1834y ISAYSIH ||edan0

()
Y3iH

(a)
PaN

(e)

Mo

‘uolilnjosaJs a1ndsip 1usapuadapul

ue 4oy (Sydl) @21A18S uonedipnlpy Suniag yuapuadapu|

9y1 03 Jurejdwod J13Y3 9 e) Ued J3W0ISNI 3y} paaise Jou s | Iuanbai4 ssa
3W021n0 AJ01DBYSIIES B §| "WES) SIIIAIDS JAWOISNI Y} 0} Pale|eIsd
S1 11 940J9q 15414 [9A3] dOys 1e 1jeap aq [|im ulejdwod ay| ‘sadels

(Ay10ads asead)
S1ealyl paynuapl Jayio

934y3 o1ul y|ds s1 yaiym ‘Adijod saindsip pue syuiejdwod 2y}
ul 1IN0 13s se ssadoud sjule|dwod e sey os|e dnouo |e10) say0igpe]

‘doys A4ans ui Aejdsip uo si1eyy siutedwod Jawoisn)
SUOIIPUOI pue s3|NJ JO 135 pP3|Ie1ap e sey dnouo |eso) Say04qpe]
‘Aem uado pue Jrej e ur pa1onpuod st Sulques 1ey) ainsua o)

Aem uado pue
Jlej e ul pa1dNpuU0od
S| Suljques
1eyl Sunnsugy




Agenda Iltem 5

Page 23

[EUID)U] {UONBIIJISSB]D SIoIqpe |

C'LALLOZ dunp
(Vav1d) Juswssessy ysiy ealy |e207] sesiwald — dnois | e109) sayoIqpe]




Agenda Iltem 5

Page 24

Ul

[BUID) U] (UONBIYISSE[D SoIqpPe|

C'LALLOZ dunp

(VHV1d) Juswssassy ysiy ealy |e207] sasiwald — dnoug |10 sayoiqpen

(91 ‘suonouisau

sinoy SuipeJy ‘uewuoop '3°1)

¢92u321| doys ayy uo

pasodwi suoiipuod Jayuny Aue aiaya s|

(219

‘WJele oynbsow ‘usa42s JaUN0D "3°1)
¢90udd1| doys ayy Aq palinbau sasiwauid
9y3 01 sadueyd |eaisAyd Aue aiays sj

¢8ulnpayos 9|8uts 10aye
1ey3 suoripuod 3uduadi| Aue a1ayy s|

s|ie}ag

ON/S9A

Ao3are)

"92U221| doys 3y3 JO suOIIPUOD 3y} Jo Led se Ajioyine [ea0] Yy Aq pasoduil suondLIsal Aue ainjded 0} Pasn 3¢ p|NOYS Uo13I3s Siy |

SUOI12113S3Y suoiIpuo) SuIPUIIT i UOIRIAS



Agenda Iltem 5

Page 25

Ll

Z'LALLOZ Bdunp
(VHV1d) Jus wissassy ysiy ealy [e207 sasiwald — dnols |ei1o) sayoiqpeT]
[EILID)U] 1UOIJBIJISSBID SIoIqpe |

s)12q Asuo -

149sul Aejap swiy /m Sajes 20| awl] - er-8
ALDD -

pJen5ijels -

(100p 1u04y) 20| Se - 8L -1 <
$19|10} J3W01sSND 3|gex20| Aay 0 d133usep -
:8uImo||o) ay3 sn|d Ysi1 J9MO| SY -

pa49pIsu0d 3g p|nNoYs 321AI3S UOI1I3]|0d Suyueg -

100p 131UN0J 3|qeX0T - vi-6l

U39.2s 133UN0) -

:3UIMO||04 33 sn|d “{SII WINIPAW PUEB J3MO] SY -

00 13315 ISSH Agq pamainai aq 03 doys -

duipesy Sulnp 19SS / s1904 Ul XOg ul-ysed 01 SSadJe O -
pPaJ4apIsu0d aq p|NOYs uaney des -

921AJ3S UOI323]|0d Sunjueg - &L 5
Ud3.42s 431UN0Y) -
:8uImo||o4 ay1 snid s 1aySiy )3 wnipaw “4amo) sy -
22e|d Ul S3INSEAW 0J3U0D WNWIUIA 240§ |10 Suney ysiy

"3unies siyy uo paseq aoe|d ui Ind 9q P|NOYS 1Y} SIINSEIW [0JIUOD WNWIUIW
Y3 s|te1ap osje 3|qey 3y "doys 3y Jo Suired ysi A1INI3S ||BISAO Y3 BUIWISIDP 03 XIIIBU YIS MOJ3] BY3 3SN “JUSWISSISSE S Y] 40 7 uondas Sunajdwod 1ayy

X13e|A Ysiy A1andas iy xipuaddy



Agenda Iltem 5

Page 26

Cl

C'LALLOZ Bunp
(V¥V1d) Juswissassy ysiy ealy |Bo07 sosiwald — dnoug | e109 sayouqpe]
[PULID)U] (UONedIJISSB]I sayjoaqpe ]

paJinbaJ suonoIIsSal 3|NPayds a|3uls oN -

e

spJemuo wd/ wouy paniwiad Suinpayds a|3uls oy - 21 ‘qg ‘eg

spiemuo wdpg:z wody paryiwiad Suinpayds 3|3uls o -

Aep jo awn Aue 1e paijiwaad Suynpayds aj8uis oy -

suoioulsal ulnpayads 3jsuis ISLYE D I WRTEIEY Vo) 314044 YS1Y ||e49A0

"sesiwa.d 3y} Joj uondLIsaL BulNpayds 3|3uls [BUOIIPPE AU BUIWIS13P 03 3]qe) MO|Iq 9y} 3sn ‘g pue z suoidas Suia|dwod 1y

XI41BIAl SUOIDIIISAY Suljnpayds 3j8uis :g xipuaddy



(6 March 2018

Date:
Licensing Team e 7 .
Licensing Authority Ourret:  RAB/SAU/P41186-1108
Reddiich Boreugh Council :
Town Hall vourrer:  DOC Refl 2148322323
Waiter Stranz Square
Reddiich £-maih
Worcestershire e
B28 8AH Tt Direct ine:
By Special Delivery  *, - .. WORCESTENSHIRE FEGULATORY
: L SERVICES
S e
- a G § Y 09 MAR 2018
Dear Sirs,

Ladbrokes Betiing & Gaming Limited, 8/10 Unicorn Hiil, Redditch, Worcaster, 89? 4QR
Application for Adult Gaming Centre Premises Licence

Ws act for Power Leisure Bookmakers Limited, which operates 2 Betting Premises Licence
located at 1-2 Market Place, Redditch.

Qur client has a number of concerns regarding the new application for an Adult Gaming
Centre Premises Licence submitted by Ladbrokes Betting & Gaming Limited and | enclose a
copy of our client’s representation for the Authority’s consigeration.

We would be grateful if you would acknowledge receipt of our client’s representation and
forward any correspondence o Poppleston Allen Solicitors on the detaills below.

Yours faithfully

Popplesion Allen

Enc

Pariners « James B D Anderson Lid - Nigk Armon Lid » Graeme Cushion Lid - Glare Eames Lid = Andy Grimsey 11d - Lisa inzani Lid

Lisa Sharkey Ltd » Jonathan M Smith Lid ~ Associates « Hannah Price - Sargh Taylor

37 Stoney Strest, The Lace Market, Mottingham NG 108 » T 0115 €53 8300 « £ 0115 953 8501 » W popsli.co.uk - DX 18100 Hotfingham
Office also in Londan

Authorised and Regulated by the Scliciiors Regulstion Authority (8RA ng, 78244)



Page 28 Agenda Iltem 5

Application for Adult Gaming Centre: section 159 of the Gambling Act 2008

Applicant: Ladbroke’s Betting & Gaming Limited
Premises: 8M0 Unicorn Hill, Reddiich, Worcestershire, B97 40R

SHOAUSS
LV INOBY SHIHMSHILSI0HOM

T
807 HyW 60

Representation submitted on behalf of Power Leisure Bookmakers Lim?t

Protecting vulnerable persons from being hammed or expinited by ¢

Granting the application will undermine the third licensing obiective. it will be detrimer ral
to the protection of problem gamblers and the vuinerable within Reddiich from being
harmed or exploited by Gambling i the grant of an AGC application was i be
approved.

e An Adult Gaming Centre would substantially increase the number of high-stake and
prize gaming machines available to be played by customers. The number of such
machines in the betting premises previously frading from this site {(Coral) was limited
to 4. The plan accompanying the application includes approximately 40 gaming
machines within the premises.

e Stakes and prizes: when the premises operated under a betlling premises licence
the maximum number of gaming machines offering winnings of up to £500 was
limited to 4. If granted, that number would double: the licence would allow the
appticant to operate 8 high-stake B3 gaming machines permiiting players to win
£500.

Crime and disorder

Granting the application has the potential fo increase levels of crime and disorder in the
vicinity of the arcade.

o The Adult Gaming Centre application does not specify the proposed hours of
operation unlike restrictions placed on the previous site

s Permitting the premises to operate without limit on hours would substantiaily
increase the time that the high stakes gaming machines are available to be
played by members of the public. The planning application submitied o
Redditch Borough Council in respect of the premises to which this application
relates seeks to provide operational hours of 24 hours per day. Betling Premises
Licences may open from 07:00 untll 22:00. An Adulf Gaming Centre without
conditions on the hours would be making provision for gambling for an addifional
49 hours per week over and above the maximum hours previously iraded by

Corals.

» Beyond 22:00 this would be one of few premises in the locaiity open (o the
public,

Conclusions

Ladbrokes Coral Group PLC has closad their Coral betting shop, which was previously
located at the address to which this Adult Gaming Centre application relafes, but
ratained another Ladbrokes shop in Redditch. if allowed to tumn the Coral betting shop
info an Aduli Gaming Centre, Ladbrokes would have circumnavigated the gaming
machine restrictions proposed by the Government by opening an Adult Gaming Cenire
providing twice as many £500 jackpot gaming machines than were permitted in the
closed betting shop, and providing gambiing faciliies for a fonger daily duration than
previously permitted. This increase in machine-gambling provision flies in the face of

the Government’s proposals.



Page 29 Agenda ltem 5

The DCMS Consultation on Proposals for Changes to Gaming Machines and Sociai
Responsibility Measures, published 31% October 2017 gives the Government’s view that
the current regulation of B2 gaming machines, {those permitted in betling shops) /s
inappropriate to achieve the stated objective of ensuring the right balance between (1) a
sector that can grow and coniribute to the economy, and (2) one that is socially
responsible and doing all i should do to protect customers and communities. Suggested
changes to the maximum stake on B2 gaming machines range from between £20 and
£2. The new maximum stake would represent a substantial reduction from the current
£400 for B2 gaming machines. The express purpose of the reduction in stakes is fo
minimise the potential for larger session-losses by problem gamblers, and the harmiul
impacis on vulnerable people in wider communities, Power Leisure Bookmakers Limited
{trading as Paddy Power) is one of the few operators of betting offices that have
publically supported the stance taken by the Government. The application by Ladbrokes
is in direct conflict with what the Government is lrying to achieve.



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 31 Agenda Item 5

REDDITCH B0R0UGH COUNCIL

www.redditchbe.gov.uk
Town Hall, Walter Stranz Square, Redditch, B98 8AH
Phone: 01905 822799 Email: wrsenquiries@worcsregservices.gov.uk

Gambling Act 2005

Statement of Principles

Page 1 of 18



Page 32 Agenda Iltem 5

Contents Page
Introduction 3
Gambling Act 2005 4
Local Area Profile 4
General Statement of Principles 5
Preventing gambling from being a source of crime and disorder 6
Ensuring gambling is conducted in a fair and open way 6
Protecting children and vulnerable people from gambling 7
Premises licences 7
Local Risk Assessments 8
Responsible Authorities 10
Interested Parties 11
Licence conditions 12
Gaming Machines 12
Temporary Use Notices 13
Occasional Use Notices 13
Lotteries 13
Exchange of Information 14
Enforcement 14
Reviews 15
Appendices

Appendix A Map of the Borough of Redditch

Appendix B List of Consultees

Page 2 of 18



Page 33 Agenda Item 5

Statement of Principles — Gambling Act 2005

1.0
11

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

Introduction

Redditch Borough Council is situated in the County of Worcestershire, which contains 6
District Councils in total. The Council area has a population of 84,300 (2011 Census) and
covers an area of around 21 square miles making it the smallest in the County in terms of
population and area.

The Borough of Redditch consists of 2 distinct areas:-

e An essentially urban area, which includes a vibrant and thriving town centre and smaller
centres within local districts; and

e An essentially rural area, which includes Astwood Bank, Feckenham, Elcocks Brook and
Ham Green.

The Borough and its address districts are shown in the map at Appendix ‘A’.

Redditch Borough Council is committed to providing residents with effective and efficient
services that not only meet their needs but understand them too. This statement accords
with that vision in seeking to promote the licensing objectives set out in the Act, which are
central to the regulatory regime created by the Act. These are:

e Preventing gambling from being a source of crime or disorder, being associated with
crime or disorder or being used to support crime;

e Ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way, and

e Protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or exploited by
gambling.

The Licensing Authority has produced this statement as required by Section 349 of the
Gambling Act 2005 (referred to in this statement as “the Act”) and having had regard to the
Gambling Commission’s formal guidance issued under Section 25 of the Act, the licensing
objectives and to the views of those that the Licensing Authority have consulted. The
Licensing Authority consulted widely upon this statement before finalising and publishing.
The list of those persons and organisations consulted is appended. The consultation took
place between July and October 2015 in line with current published Government
consultation principles. The statement was approved at a meeting of the Full Council on 7™
December 2015. Should you have any comments with regards to this policy statement
please send them via email or letter to: wrsenquiries@worcsregservices.gov.uk.

This statement must be published at least every three years. The statement may also be
reviewed from ‘time to time’ and any amended parts re-consulted upon.

The Licensing Authority intends that this document should provide information and
guidance on the general approach that the Licensing Authority will take to licensing. A
series of advice sheets with more specific guidance is available on request; advice tailored
to individuals is available by phone or to personal callers.

Nothing in this statement takes away the right of any person to make an application under
the Act and to have that application considered on its merits; nor does it undermine the right
of any person to object to an application or to seek a review of a licence where the law
provides that they may do so. Applications will be considered in line with our statement of
general principles, below.

Page 3 of 18


mailto:wrsenquiries@worcsregservices.gov.uk

2.0
2.1

2.2

2.3

3.0

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

Page 34 Agenda Item 5

Gambling Act 2005

This statement reflects and aims to support our strategic purposes, as set out in the Council
Plan.

The Act provides for gambling to be authorised in a number of different ways. Our main
functions are to:

¢ licence premises for gambling activities, including the issue of provisional statements;

e regulate and grant permits for gambling and gaming machines in clubs, including
commercial clubs,

e regulate gaming and gaming machines in alcohol licensed premises;

e grant permits to family entertainment centres for the use of certain lower stake gaming

machines;

grant permits for prize gaming;

receive and endorse notices given for the temporary use notices;

receive occasional use notices for betting at tracks;

register small societies lotteries;

maintain public registers; and

provide information to the Gambling Commission on issued licences.

The Gambling Commission regulates remote gambling and issues personal and operating
licences for premises. The “National Lottery” is also regulated by the Gambling
Commission. Spread betting is regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority.

Local Area Profile

Alongside its statement of principles, the Licensing Authority would like to work with the
other Licensing Authorities in Worcestershire and other partners during the lifetime of this
statement to develop a “Local Area Profile” for the County as a means of mapping out local
areas of concern, which can be reviewed and updated to reflect changes to the local
landscape.

This Local Area Profile is likely to take account of a wide range of factors, data and
information held by the Licensing Authority and its partners. An important element of
preparing the Local Area Profile will be proactive engagement with responsible authorities
as well as other organisations in the area that can give input to ‘map’ local risks in the area.

These are likely to include public health, mental health, housing, education, community
welfare groups and safety partnerships, and organisations such as Gamcare or equivalent
local organisations.

The aim of the Local Area Profile will be to increase awareness of local risks and improved
information sharing, to facilitate constructive engagement with licensees and a more
coordinated response to local risks. The Local Area Profile will also help to inform specific
risks that operators will need to address in their own risk assessments, which will form a
part of any new licence application, or an application to vary a licence from April 2016.

The creation of a Local Area Profile, however, is dependent on information and knowledge
of the local area gathered by partner agencies and other relevant organisations that have
the expertise and knowledge of the impact gambling has in the local area. Where evidence
is submitted to the Licensing Authority which identifies areas of concern it is intended to
produce a Local Area Profile separate to this Policy.

Page 4 of 18



3.6

4.0

4.1

5.0

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

Page 35 Agenda Item 5

Once a Local Area Profile has been developed, it will be published on the Licensing
Authority’s website and updated on a regular basis to reflect changes to the local
environment.

Authorised Activities
‘Gambling’ is defined in the Act as gaming, betting, or taking part in a lottery.
e gaming means playing a game of chance for a prize;

e betting means making or accepting a bet on the outcome of a race, competition, or any
other event; the likelihood of anything occurring or not occurring; or whether anything is
true or not, and

e alottery is an arrangement where persons are required to pay in order to take part in an
arrangement whereby one or more prizes are allocated by a process which relies wholly
on chance.

General Statement of Principles

In carrying out the licensing functions in accordance with the Act, particularly with regard to
premises licences, the Licensing Authority will generally aim to permit the use of premises
for gambling as long as it is considered to be :-

e in accordance with any relevant Codes of Practice issued by the Gambling
Commission;

e in accordance with any relevant Guidance issued by the Gambling Commission;
in accordance with this statement of principles, and

e reasonably consistent with the licensing objectives.

The Licensing Authority will not seek to use the Act to resolve matters that are better dealt
with by other legislation. Licensing is not the primary mechanism for general control of
nuisance and the antisocial behaviour of people once they are away from licensed
premises.

The Licensing Authority will ensure that in dealing with applications under the Act the
Licensing Authority follows the required procedures, and only takes into account issues that
are relevant. Specifically the Licensing Authority will not have regard to “demand” when
considering applications for gambling premises; nor will the Licensing Authority consider the
suitability of applicants for premises licences (which is a matter for the Gambling
Commission). The Licensing Authority will not reject an application on moral grounds. If
the Licensing Authority decides to reject an application, the Licensing Authority will make
known the reasons for doing so.

The Council has delegated its licensing function to its Licensing Sub-Committee and
Licensing Officers. In the remainder of this statement of principles they are referred to
collectively as the ‘Licensing Authority’.

Where an application is for a new premises licence, the responsible authorities may visit to
check that gambling facilities meet all necessary legal requirements.

Page 5 of 18



5.6

5.7

5.8

6.0

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

7.0

7.1

Page 36 Agenda Item 5

Where there are no representations (objections), licences and permissions will be granted
subject only to any appropriate mandatory conditions (Section 167 of the Act) and any
conditions having at least the effect of appropriate default conditions made under

Section 168.

If there are objections that can't be resolved informally, or the Licensing Authority intends to
impose extra conditions, the Licensing Authority will hold a public hearing at which the
Licensing Sub-Committee will hear evidence and make a decision in accordance with the
Act.

This statement is not intended to override the right of any person to make an application
under the Act, and to have that application considered on its merits. Equally, this statement
of principles is not intended to undermine the right of any person to make representations
about an application or to seek a review of a licence where provision has been made for
them to do so.

Preventing gambling from being a source of crime and disorder

The Gambling Commission takes the leading role in preventing gambling from being a
source of crime, and maintains rigorous licensing procedures aiming to prevent criminals
from providing facilities for gambling. Applicants need an operating licence from the
Commission before the Licensing Authority will issue a licence to use premises for
gambling.

The Licensing Authority will not issue a premises licence to someone who does not hold an
operator’s licence, the Licensing Authority is not generally concerned with the suitability of
an applicant. Where concerns about a person’s suitability arise the Licensing Authority will
bring those concerns to the attention of the Commission.

If an application for a licence or permit is received in relation to premises which are in an
area noted for particular problems with organised crime, the Licensing Authority will, in
consultation with the Police and other relevant authorities, consider whether specific
controls need to be applied to prevent those premises from being a source of crime. This
could include a requirement for Security Industry Authority registered door supervisors.

Disorder will only be considered under this Act if it amounts to activity which is more serious
and disruptive than mere nuisance, and where it can be shown that gambling is the source
of that disorder. A disturbance might be serious enough to constitute disorder if police
assistance was required to deal with it; the Licensing Authority will then consider how
threatening the behaviour was to those who could see or hear it, and whether those people
live sufficiently close to be affected or have business interests that might be affected.

“Disorder” is generally a matter for the Police; the Licensing Authority will not use this Act to
deal with general nuisance issues, for example, parking problems, which can be dealt with
using alternative powers.

When making decisions relating to disorder, the Licensing Authority will give due weight to
comments made by the Police.

Ensuring gambling is conducted in a fair and open way

The Gambling Commission does not expect Licensing Authorities to become concerned
with ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way. The Commission, through

Page 6 of 18



7.2

8.0

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

8.5

8.6

8.7

Page 37 Agenda Item 5

the operating and personal licensing regime, will regulate the management of the gambling
business and the suitability and actions of an individual.

Because betting track operators do not need an operating licence from the Commission the
Licensing Authority may, in certain circumstances, require conditions of licence relating to
the suitability of the environment in which betting takes place.

Protecting children and vulnerable people from being harmed or exploited by
gambling

The intention of the Act is that children and young persons should not be allowed to
gamble, and should be prevented from entering those gambling premises which are ‘adult-
only’ environments.

Codes of Practice, including advice about access by children and young persons may be
published by the Gambling Commission for specific kinds of premises. Applicants will be
expected to heed this advice where applicable.

The Licensing Authority expects steps to be taken to prevent children from taking part in, or
being in close proximity to, gambling. This may include restrictions on advertising to ensure
that gambling products are not aimed at children, nor advertised in such a way that makes
them particularly attractive to children.

When determining a premises licence or permit the Licensing Authority will consider
whether any additional measures are necessary to protect children, such as the supervision
of entrances, the segregation of gambling from areas frequented by children and the
supervision of gaming machines in non-adult gambling specific premises like pubs, clubs
and betting tracks.

In seeking to protect vulnerable people the Licensing Authority will include people who
gamble more than they want to, people who gamble beyond their means, and people who
may not be able to make informed or balanced decisions about gambling, perhaps due to a
mental impairment, alcohol or drugs.

The Licensing Authority will always treat each case on its own individual merits and when
considering whether specific measures are required to protect children and other vulnerable
people will balance these considerations against the overall principle of aiming to permit the
use of premises for gambling.

The Licensing Authority is required by regulations to state the principles it will apply in
exercising its powers under Section 157(h) of the Act to designate, in writing, a body which
is competent to advise the authority about the protection of children from harm.

These principles are:

e The need for the body to be responsible for an area covering the whole of the Licensing
Authority’s area.

e The need for the body to be answerable to democratically elected persons, rather than
any particular vested interest group.

Page 7 of 18



9.0

9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

9.5

Page 33 Agenda Item 5

In accordance with the suggestion in the Gambling Commission’s Guidance for local
authorities, this authority designates the Worcestershire Safeguarding Children Board for
this purpose.

Local Risk Assessments

From 6 April 2016 it will be a requirement for operators to assess local risks to the licensing
objectives taking into account this Council’s statement of principles. The operator must also
have policies, procedures and control measures in place to mitigate these risks. Risk
assessments must be reviewed whenever there are significant changes in local
circumstances, or at the premises, or when applying for a new licence or a variation of a
licence. Risks in this context include actual, potential and possible future emerging risks to
the licensing objectives.

The Licensing Authority will expect the local risk assessment to consider, for example:

e whether the premises is in an area of deprivation;

e whether the premises is in an area subject to high levels of crime and/or disorder;

e whether the premises is near an addiction treatment facility and in general consider the
demographics of the area in relation to vulnerable groups;

e the location of sensitive buildings such as schools, playgrounds, toy shops, leisure
centres, libraries and other areas where children are likely to gather; and

e how vulnerable persons as defined within this statement are protected.

In compiling their local risk assessment the Licensing Authority shall also expect operators
to take into account the general principles as set out in this statement.

Other matters that the risk assessment may include are, for example:

e staff training, including refresher training, such as intervention when customers show
signs of excessive gambling, in the mandatory licensing conditions, in location of the
premises licence; in location of information relating to gambling care providers, etc.;

e where installed, details of CCTV coverage and how the system will be monitored;

e layout of the premises to ensure staff have unobstructed views of persons using the
premises or, where this is not possible, evidence of how this can be achieved;

e the number of staff employed at the premises at any one time taking into account any
effects from seasonal trade in the area.

e where only one staff member is employed in the case of smaller premises, what the
supervisory and monitoring arrangements are when that person is absent from the
licensed area or distracted for any other reason;

e provision of signage and documents relating to games rules, gambling care providers;

e what mix of gambling is provided,;

e consideration of primary gambling activity and location of gaming machines;

Operators are expected to share their risk assessments with the Licensing Authority when
applying for a new premises licence, applying for a variation to an existing licensed premise
or otherwise upon request. These risk assessments must in any event be kept under
regular review and updated as necessary.

Page 8 of 18



9.6

9.7

9.8

10.0

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

Page 39 Agenda Item 5

The information contained within the risk assessment may be used to inform the decision
the Licensing Authority makes about whether or not to grant the licence, to grant the licence
with special conditions or to refuse the application.

However, in all circumstances each application will be treated on its own merits with the
onus on the applicant providing the Licensing Authority with sufficient information to make
their determination with the underpinning statutory aim of permitting gambling subject to
being reasonably consistent with the licensing objectives.

In its Guidance to Licensing Authorities, the Gambling Commission suggests that Licensing
Authorities should adopt a ‘Local Area Profile’. The Guidance suggests that a Local Area
Profile is a process of gathering and presenting information about a locality and any
particular areas of concern within that locality. It underpins and explains the approach that
the Licensing Authority will apply when granting licences. By developing a Local Area
Profile it is likely to assist operators in identifying specific local risks within the area.

Premises licences
A premises licence can authorise the provision of facilities at the following:

casino premises

bingo premises

betting premises, including betting tracks
adult gaming centres

family entertainment centres

Premises can be ‘any place’ but the Act generally prevents more than one premises licence
applying to any one place. A single building could be subject to more than one premises
licence provided they are for different parts of the building and those parts can be
reasonably regarded as being separate ‘premises’.

This will allow large, multiple unit premises such as tracks, shopping malls or service
stations to obtain discrete premises licences, with appropriate safeguards in place. The
Licensing Authority will pay particular attention if there are issues about sub-divisions of a
single building or plot and mandatory conditions relating to access between premises are
observed. The Licensing Authority will not consider that areas of a building that are
artificially or temporarily separated, for example by ropes or moveable partition, can
properly be regarded as different premises. Whether different parts of a building can
properly be regarded as being separate premises will depend on the individual
circumstances of the case.

A particular requirement might be for entrances and exits from parts of a building covered
by one or more licences to be separate and identifiable so that the separation of the
premises is not compromised and people are not allowed to ‘drift’ accidentally into a
gambling area. It should normally be possible to access the premises without going
through another licensed premises or premises with a permit. The Licensing Authority
would also expect customers to be able to participate in the activity named on the premises
licence.

The Secretary of State appointed an independent Casino Advisory Panel to advise the
Government on the areas in which small and/or large casinos may be located. The
Borough of Redditch was not identified as a suitable location for a casino; consequently the
Licensing Authority is currently prevented from granting a Casino Premises Licence.

Page 9 of 18



10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

11.0

111

Page 40 Agenda Item 5

The Council has not passed a resolution under section 166(5) of the Gambling Act 2005 to
not issue casino premises licences. If such a resolution were considered in the future, the

Council would carry out a full public consultation and consider all responses before passing
such a resolution.

The Licensing Authority will not turn down applications for premises licences where relevant
objections can be dealt with through the use of licence conditions.

Other than an application for a betting premises licence for a track, the Licensing Authority
are not able to issue a premises licence unless the applicant holds the relevant operating
licence from the Gambling Commission.

When considering applications for premises licences the Licensing Authority will not take
into account either the expected ‘demand’ for facilities or the likelihood of planning
permission or building regulation approval being granted, as well as ‘moral’ objections to
gambling. Equally, the grant of a premises licence would not prejudice or prevent any
action that may be appropriate under the law relating to planning or building regulations.

The Licensing Authority are aware that demand issues cannot be considered with regard to
the location of premises but that considerations in terms of the licensing objectives are
relevant to our decision-making. Should any specific policy be decided upon as regards
areas where gambling premises should not be located, this statement will be updated.

The Licensing Authority will only issue a premises licence once the Licensing Authority are
satisfied that the premises is ready to be used for gambling in the reasonably near future,
consistent with the scale of building or alterations required. If the construction of a
premises is not yet complete, or if they need alteration, or the applicant does not yet have a
right to occupy them, then an application for a provisional statement should be made.

The Licensing Authority will apply a two stage consideration process if there is outstanding
construction or alteration works at the premises:

e should the premises be permitted to be used for gambling;
e can appropriate conditions be imposed to cater for the situation that the premises is not
yet in the state in which they should be before gambling takes place.

The Licensing Authority is entitled to decide whether or not it is appropriate to grant a
licence subject to conditions.

Applicants for premises licences are encouraged to propose any prohibitions or restrictions
of their own in circumstances where it is felt that the presence of children would be
undesirable or inappropriate.

The Licensing Authority will maintain a public register of premises licence applications
received which may be viewed at the Council Offices during normal office hours which are
generally Monday — Friday 9am until 5pm.

Responsible authorities

Responsible authorities are identified in the legislation, and have to be notified about
licence applications so that they can identify any risks. The responsible authorities that the
Licensing Authority recognises are listed below, contact details for each of the responsible

Page 10 of 18



11.2

12.0

12.1

12.2

12.3

12.4

12.5

Page 41 Agenda Item 5

authorities identified are available on our website www.redditchbc.gov.uk, and will be sent
on request.

e the Gambling Commission

e the Chief of Police for the area

e Fire & Rescue Service

e Redditch Planning Department

Environmental Services Department

Worcestershire Safeguarding Children Board

HM Revenue and Customs

Redditch Licensing Department

any other bodies identified in Regulation by the Secretary of State,

for vessels, the Environment Agency, Canal and River Trust, Secretary of State.

Any concerns expressed by a Responsible Authority cannot be taken into account unless
they are relevant to the application itself and the licensing objectives. However, each
representation will be considered on its own individual merits.

Interested Parties
An interested party is someone who:

¢ lives sufficiently close to the premises to be likely to be affected by the authorised
activities; or

e has business interests that might be affected by the authorised activities; or

e represents persons in either of the two groups above.

The Licensing Authority will generally require written evidence that a person/body
‘represents’ someone who either lives sufficiently close to the premises to be likely to be
affected by the authorised activities and/or has business interests that might be affected by
the authorised activities. A letter from one of these persons, requesting the representations
is sufficient. Whilst this may not apply to those elected ward members or MP or Parish
Councillors, those persons should be aware of the need to represent the whole of the
community that they represent and not just the vocal ‘minority’.

In determining whether someone lives sufficiently close to a particular premises so as to be
affected, the Licensing Authority will take into account, among other things:

the size of the premises

the nature of the premises

the distance of the premises from the person making the representation
the identity of the complainant

the potential impact of the premises

In determining whether a person has a business interest which could be affected the
Council will consider, among other things:

¢ the size of the premises

¢ the catchment area of the premises, and

e whether the person making the representation has business interests in the catchment
area that might be affected

If an existing gambling business makes a representation that it is going to be affected by
another gambling business starting up in the area, the Licensing Authority would not

Page 11 of 18



12.6

13.0
13.1

13.2

13.3

13.4

13.5

14.0
14.1

14.2

Page 42 Agenda Item 5

consider this, in the absence of other evidence, as a relevant representation as it does not
relate to the licensing objectives and instead relates to demand or competition.

The Licensing Authority may consider a representation to be either frivolous or vexatious,
and reject it. This will generally be a matter of fact given the circumstances of each
individual case but, before coming to a decision the Licensing Authority will normally
consider:

e who is making the representation and whether there is a history of making
representations that are not relevant,

e whether it raises an issue relevant to the licensing objectives, or

e whether it raises issues specifically to do with the premises which are the subject of the
application.

Licence conditions

In particular cases the Licensing Authority may find it necessary to impose conditions
beyond appropriate mandatory and default conditions. Any such conditions will be relevant
to the need to make the building suitable for use as a gambling facility; directly related to
the premises and the type of licence applied for; fairly and reasonably related to the scale
and type of premises and reasonable in all other respects. The Licensing Authority will not
have recourse to a pool of standard conditions.

The Licensing Authority will also ensure that where category C or above machines that are
on offer in premises to which children are admitted are located in an area of the premises
which is separated by a physical barrier to prevent access other than through a designated
entrance; the designated area is supervised and observed by staff or the licence holder.

Examples of conditions which are likely to be attached in certain circumstances include
those relating to opening hours, segregation of gambling from non-gambling areas
frequented by children, SIA licensed door supervisors, appropriate signage for adult only
areas, age limits, or keeping children and young persons away from gaming machines.
The Licensing Authority will also expect the applicant to offer their own suggestions as to
ways in which the licensing objectives can be promoted effectively.

The Licensing Authority will not seek to control those matters specified in the Act with
conditions:

e which make it impossible to comply with an operating licence condition imposed by the
Gambling Commission;

e relating to gaming machine categories or method of operation;

¢ which specify that membership of a club or other body is required; or

¢ in relation to stakes, fees, winnings or prizes.

Duplication with other statutory or regulatory regimes will be avoided as far as possible.
The need for conditions will be assessed on the specific merits of each application.

Gaming Machines
Gaming machines include all types of gambling activity which can take place on a machine,
including betting on ‘virtual’ events.

The Act itself prescribes the number and category of gaming machines that are permitted in
each type of gambling premises.

Page 12 of 18



14.3

14.4

145

15.0

15.1

15.2

16.0

16.1

17.0
17.1

Page 43 Agenda Item 5

Subject to the provisions of the Act, gaming machines can be made available in a wide
variety of premises, including:

e casinos;

e bingo premises;

e betting premises, (including tracks );

e adult gaming centres;

e family entertainment centres;

e cClubs;

e pubs and other alcohol licensed premises;
e travelling fairs.

A machine is not a gaming machine if the winning of a prize is determined purely by the
player’s skill. However, any element of ‘chance’ imparted by the action of the machine
would bring it within the definition of a gaming machine.

The Licensing Authority will encourage permit and premises licence holders to adopt
applicable codes of practice which may be introduced by the amusement industry or
Gambling Commission, from time to time.

Temporary Use Notices

These allow the use of premises for gambling where there is no premises licence but where
a gambling operator wishes to use the premises temporarily for providing facilities for
gambling. The Licensing Authority would object to notices where it appears that their effect
would be to permit regular gambling in a place that could be described as one set of
premises. Premises that might be suitable for a temporary use notice would include hotels,
conference centres and sporting venues. A temporary use notice may only be granted to a
person or company holding a relevant operating licence.

Temporary use notices may only be used to permit the provision of facilities for equal
chance gaming, where the gaming is intended to produce a single overall winner. Equal
chance gaming is gaming which does not involve playing or staking against a bank and
gives equally favourable chances to all participants. Examples of equal chance gaming
include games such as backgammon, mah-jong, rummy, kalooki, dominoes, cribbage,
bingo and poker.

Occasional Use Notices

The Licensing Authority has very little discretion as regards these notices aside from
ensuring that the statutory limit of 8 days in a calendar year is not exceeded. Whilst tracks
are normally thought of as permanent racecourses, this can also include land which has a
number of uses for example agricultural land upon which a point-to-point meeting takes
place. Land used temporarily as a track can qualify, provided races or sporting events take
place or will take place there. The track need not be a permanent fixture.

Lotteries

All lotteries are unlawful unless they are run in accordance with an operating licence issued
by the Gambling Commission - unless they are ‘exempt’ lotteries as defined by the Act.
One of those exemptions is for “small society lotteries,” which the Licensing Authority will
allow, after registration. The Licensing Authority will maintain a register of small society
lotteries.

Page 13 of 18



17.2

18.0
18.1

18.2

18.3

18.4

18.5

19.0
19.1

19.2

Page 44 Agenda Item 5

A society will be allowed to register with us if it is ‘non-commercial’, in other words, if it is
established and conducted:

e for charitable purposes ;

e for the purpose of enabling participation in, or of supporting, sport, athletic or a cultural
activity; or

e for any other non-commercial purpose other than for private gain.

Exchange of Information

To ensure the licensing objectives are met, the Licensing Authority will establish a close
working relationship with the police, the Gambling Commission and, where appropriate,
other responsible authorities.

Subject to the provisions of the Data Protection Act 1998, the Licensing Authority will share
any information it receives through the application process with the Gambling Commission
and any relevant responsible authority. In doing so, the Licensing Authority will have regard
to the Act itself, any guidance issued by the Commission and to any Regulations issued by
the Secretary of State. People can access personal information that the Licensing Authority
holds about them by contacting our Information Management Officer.

The Licensing Authority is committed to being open about what it does and how the
Licensing Authority comes to decisions, in accordance with the spirit of the Freedom of
Information Act 2000 (FOIA). An important feature of the FOIA is the requirement for each
public authority to produce a publication scheme setting out what information it will publish
as a matter of course, how and when it will be published, and whether this information will
be free of charge or on payment. Copies of our FOI publication scheme are available on
request from our Information Management Officer or via the Council’'s website
www.redditchbc.gov.uk.

FOIA also provides the public with a general right of access to information held by public
authorities, and subject to exemptions, to be supplied with a copy of that information.
Individual requests should be made in writing to the Information Management Officer or via
the Council’s website.

Unless restricted by the Gambling Act, details about applications, licences and
representations will be made available in our public register. Representations that the
Licensing Authority accepts will be copied in their entirety to applicants, to provide an
opportunity for mediation and to ensure that the rights of the applicant are not
compromised.

Enforcement Protocols

The main enforcement and compliance role for the Licensing Authority in terms of the
Gambling Act 2005 will be to ensure compliance with the premises licences and other
permissions which it authorises. The Gambling Commission will be the enforcement body
for the operator and personal licences and will also take the lead role on the investigation
and where appropriate, the prosecution of illegal gambling. Any concerns about
manufacture, supply or repair of gaming machines will not be dealt with by the Licensing
Authority but will be notified to the Gambling Commission.

The Licensing Authority will work with the Commission, the Police and other enforcing
authorities, having regard to any specific guidance produced by the Gambling Commission,

Page 14 of 18


http://www.redditchbc.gov.uk/

19.3

19.4

19.5

19.6

19.7

20.0

20.1

20.2

20.3

20.4

Page 45 Agenda Item 5

relevant codes of practice, the licensing objectives and this statement of principles, to
provide for the targeting of agreed problem or high-risk premises. A lighter touch will be
applied to those premises which are shown to be well managed and maintained.

The overall aim is to permit the use of premises for gambling. With that in mind it is
intended that action will generally be taken against ‘problem’ premises through the licence
review process.

We will also have regard to the Regulators’ Code whilst carrying out our regulatory
functions.

The Licensing Authority will endeavour to be proportionate; accountable; consistent;
transparent and targeted, as well as avoiding duplication with other regulatory regimes so
far as possible.

In order to ensure compliance with the law, the Licensing Authority will prepare a risk based
inspection programme and will carry out regular ‘routine’ day time programmed inspections,
based on risk assessment in the categories High, Medium and Low and will also carry out
‘non routine’ evening programmed inspections. Where a one off event takes place under a
temporary use notice or occasional use notice, the Licensing Authority may also carry out
inspections to ensure the licensing objectives are being promoted.

High-risk premises are those premises that have a history of complaints and require greater
attention with low risk premises needing only a lighter touch so that resources are
effectively concentrated on problem premises.

Reviews

A review of a premises licence can be requested by interested parties or responsible
authorities, however, the Licensing Authority will decide if the review is to be carried out on
the basis of the following:

e In accordance with any relevant Code of Practice and/or guidance issued by the
Gambling Commission

e Consistent with the licensing objectives

e In accordance with our statement of principles.

The Licensing Authority will also consider whether or not the request for a review is
frivolous, vexatious, or repetitious or whether the Licensing Authority would wish to
alter/revoke or suspend the licence.

The Licensing Authority can also initiate a review of a premises licence on the basis of any
reason which the Licensing Authority think is appropriate, including if a premises licence
holder has not provided facilities for gambling at the premises. This is to prevent people
from applying for licences in a speculative manner without intending to use them.

Once a valid application for a review has been received by the Licensing Authority,
representations can be made by responsible authorities and interested parties during the
statutory consultation period. The purpose of the review will be to determine whether the
Licensing Authority should take any action in relation to the licence. The options available
are:

Page 15 of 18



Page 46 Agenda Item 5

add, remove or amend a licence condition;

remove or amend a default condition, such as opening hours;
suspend the premises licence for a period not exceeding 3 months;
revoke the licence.

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL EQUAL OPPORTUNITIES STATEMENT

This statement is intended to operate within the Council’s commitment to equalities and diversity
including:

Equal treatment regardless of race, gender, age, disability, sexual orientation, religion or belief,
with reasonable adjustments where necessary in line with the Disability Discrimination Act.

Working to eliminate unlawful discrimination.
Promoting equal opportunities

Promoting community cohesion, including good relations between people from different
racial groups.

Providing reasonable access to interpretation or support on request.

Responding to the needs of all, and working to engage all sections of the community.

This statement will be assessed as part of a rolling programme of reviews to ensure that it does
not have a detrimental or disproportionate effect on any group. Any concerns that the policy is
operating in a way that could be construed as discriminatory should be passed to the responsible
Manager and will be dealt with as part of the official Complaints Procedure, in line with the
Council’s Equality Schemes.

Page 16 of 18



Page 47 Agenda Item 5

Appendix A

Redditch Borough Council Boundary

e - |
) \ -
\ -
N ya Abbey Ward \ Church Hill Ward
Batchley & —
Brockhill Ward
Winyates Ward
\
Central Ward el |
} ™
West Ward S, Matchborough Ward
A ‘L
2 { L
N ) <, HeadlessCrossand GreenlandsWard *-
N AR Oakenshaw Ward
N S \ a
/ \~/ \ .
A \ - — )
I _—— Crabbs Cross Ward N g
. AY -
e T ,//\'/-
L v \__\ - _S'_“/
Astwood Bank and
Feckenham Ward
4

Page 17 of 18



Page 43 Agenda Item 5

Appendix B

List of Consultees

Chief Officer of West Mercia Police

Gambling Commission

All Other Responsible Authorities Identified in the Gambling Act 2005

District Councillors

Parish Councils

Holders of Premises Licences issued by the Council under the Gambling Act 2005

Gambling Trade Associations:

Association of British Bookmakers

British Amusement Catering Trade Association
Bingo Association

National Casino Forum

Lotteries Council

Hospice Lotteries Association

Organisations working with those who have a gambling problem:

GamCare
Gamblers Anonymous

Page 18 of 18



Page 49 Agenda ltem 5

GAMBLING
COMMISSION

Conditions and codes of practice

applicable to

Gaming machine general: Adult gaming centre
licences

Gaming machine general: Family entertainment centre
licences

Including sector-specific extract of
LCCP January 2017



Page 50 Agenda ltem 5

Contents

If using an electronic version of this document, please click on the headings to
move to the relevant section or provision.

General introduction 4

Part I. Statutory conditions attached by virtueof 5

the Act
Part Il: Operating licence conditions 6
1 Qualified persons and personal licences 6
1.1 Qualified persons 6
1.2 Personal licences 6
4 Protection of customer funds 7
4.2 Disclosure to customers 7
5 Payment 8
5.1 Cash and cash equivalents, payment methods and 8
services
6 Provision of credit by licensees and the use of credit cards 9
6.1 Provision of credit 9
7 General ‘fair and open’ provisions 9
7.1 Compliance with terms 9
12 Anti-money laundering 9
12.1  Prevention of money laundering and terrorist financing 9
14 Access to premises 10
14.1  Access to premises 10
15 Information requirements 11
15.1  Reporting suspicion of offences etc 11
15.2  Reporting key events and other reportable events 11
15.3 General and Regulatory Returns 15
16 Responsible placement of digital adverts 16
16.1.1 Responsible placement of digital adverts 16
Conditions and Codes of Practice applicable to Gaming Machine General: Adult Gaming Centres and 2 of 40

Family Entertainment Centres



Page 51 Agenda ltem 5

Part Ill: Code of practice provisions 17
Introduction to code of practice 17
1 General - Cooperation and responsibility for third parties 18
2 Financial requirements - Anti-money laundering 18
3 Protection of children and other vulnerable persons 19
3.1 Combating problem gambling 19
3.2 Access to gambling by children and young persons 19

3.3 Information on how to gamble responsibly and help for

23

problem gamblers
3.4 Customer interaction 24
3.5 Self-exclusion 26
3.6 Employment of children and young persons 29
3.8 Money lending between customers 30
4 ‘Fair and open’ provisions 31
4.1 Fair terms 31
5 Marketing 31
6 Complaints and disputes 33
7 Gambling licensees’ staff 35
8 Information requirements 35
10 Assessing local risk 36
Index of all provisions 37
Conditions and Codes of Practice applicable to Gaming Machine General: Adult Gaming Centres and 3 0of 40

Family Entertainment Centres



Page 52 Agenda ltem 5

General introduction

1  This document sets out the Gambling Commission’s general licence conditions
and associated code of practice provisions (LCCP) under the Gambling Act 2005
(the Act) which are applicable to the specified sector(s).

2  The LCCP document sets out:

Part I: (in black) statutory conditions attached by virtue of the Act

Part Il: (in orange) the suite of general conditions attached to
operating licences

Part IlI: (in blue) the principal code of practice, distinguishing
between ‘social responsibility’ provisions and
‘ordinary’ provisions (the social responsibility
provisions are in shaded boxes within the text).

3 An index to the provisions is provided at the end of this document, and if using
an electronic version of this document, links are provided from both the contents
and index pages to aid navigation.

4 Copies of LCCP can be obtained from the Commission’s website:
www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk or by writing to:

Gambling Commission

Victoria Square House

Victoria Square

Birmingham B2 4BP

T 0121 230 6666

F 0121 2306720

E info@gamblingcommission.gov.uk

5 The Commission also produces sector-specific extracts of LCCP and these will
be made available on the website. Further information about the history of LCCP
(such as the results of completed consultations) and potential future
amendments to LCCP can also be found on the website.

6  This extract of LCCP comes into force on 6 April 2017.

7 Relevant requirements of the conditions and code provisions were notified in
draft to the European Commission in accordance with Directive (EU) 2015/1535.

Conditions and Codes of Practice applicable to Gaming Machine General: Adult Gaming Centres and 4 of 40
Family Entertainment Centres


http://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/
mailto:info@gamblingcommission.gov.uk

Page 53 Agenda ltem 5

Part |: Statutory conditions attached by virtue of the
Act

Social responsibility

This licence is subject to a condition that the licensee ensures compliance with any
relevant social responsibility provision of a code of practice issued by the
Commission. The social responsibility provisions that are relevant to the activities
authorised by this licence are set out in the section entitled Codes of Practice (Part

).

(Sections 24 and 82(1) Gambling Act 2005)

Return of stakes to children: AGC

The following condition applies to gaming machine general: adult gaming
centre operating licences only

This licence is subject to a condition that if the licensee (or anyone employed by the
licensee to perform an operational function within the meaning of section 80 of the
Act) becomes aware that a child or young person is using or has used facilities for
gambling provided in reliance on the licence, the licensee:
(a) must return any money paid in respect of the use of those facilities
(whether by way of fee, stake or otherwise) by the child or young
person as soon as is reasonably practicable; and

(b) may not give a prize to the child or young person.

This condition does not apply to use of a Category D gaming machine.

(Section 83(1))

Return of stakes to children: FEC

The following condition applies to gaming machine general: family
entertainment centre operating licences only

This licence is subject to a condition that if the licensee (or anyone employed by the
licensee to perform an operational function within the meaning of section 80 of the
Act) becomes aware that a child or young person is using or has used facilities for
gambling provided in reliance on the licence, the licensee:

(a) must return any money paid in respect of the use of those facilities (whether
by way of fee, stake or otherwise) by the child or young person as soon as is
reasonably practicable; and

(b) may not give a prize to the child or young person.

This condition does not apply to use of a Category D gaming machine, or equal
chance gaming.

(Section 83(1))

Conditions and Codes of Practice applicable to Gaming Machine General: Adult Gaming Centres and 5 of 40
Family Entertainment Centres



Page 54 Agenda ltem 5

Part Il: Suite of general conditions attached to
operating licences under Section 75 of the Gambling
Act 2005 (the Act)

1  Qualified persons and personal licences
1.1 Qualified persons

Licence condition 1.1.1

Qualified persons — qualifying position

All operating licences, except ancillary remote licences, issued to small-scale
operators

1 In this condition the terms ‘small-scale operator’, ‘qualifying position’ and
‘qualified person’ have the meanings respectively ascribed to them by the
Gambling Act 2005 (Definition of Small-scale Operator) Regulations 2006.

2 Schedule X*lists those individuals notified to the Commission as qualified
persons.

3 If, whilst the licensee remains a small-scale operator, an individual begins or
ceases to occupy a qualifying position in relation to the licensee, the licensee
must within 28 days apply to the Commission under section 104(1)(b) of the Act
for amendment of the details of the licence set out in Schedule X.

4 An application for amendment under section 104(1)(b) of the Act may be made
in advance of an individual beginning or ceasing to occupy a qualifying position
provided it specifies the date from which the change to which it relates is to be
effective.

5 In this condition ‘qualified person’ has the same meaning as in the Gambling Act
2005 (Definition of Small-scale Operator) Regulations 2006.

" The schedules mentioned here will be attached to individual licences.

1.2 Personal licences

Licence condition 1.2.1

Specified management offices — personal management licences

All casino, bingo, general and pool betting, betting intermediary, gaming
machine general, gaming machine technical, gambling software and lottery
managers licences, except ancillary remote licences

1 Subjectto 6 and 7 below, licensees must ensure:

a that each individual who occupies one of the management offices
specified in 2 below in respect of the licensee or in connection with the
licensed activities holds a personal licence authorising the performance
of the functions of that office (hereafter ‘a personal management
licence’); and

b  that at least one person occupies at least one of those offices.

Conditions and Codes of Practice applicable to Gaming Machine General: Adult Gaming Centres and 6 of 40
Family Entertainment Centres



Page 55 Agenda ltem 5

2 The specified management offices are those offices (whether or not held by a
director in the case of a licensee which is a company, a partner in the case of a
licensee which is a partnership or an officer of the association in the case of a
licensee which is an unincorporated association) the occupier of which is by
virtue of the terms of their appointment responsible for:

a the overall management and direction of the licensee’s business or affairs

b  the licensee’s finance function as head of that function

c the licensee’s gambling regulatory compliance function as head of that
function

d the licensee’s marketing function as head of that function

e the licensee’s information technology function as head of that function in
so far as it relates to gambling-related information technology and
software

f  oversight of the day to day management of the licensed activities at an
identified number of premises licensed under Part 8 of the Act or across
an identified geographical area

g inthe case of casino and bingo licences only, oversight of the day to day
management of a single set of premises licensed under Part 8 of the Act.

3 The person responsible for the licensee’s gambling regulatory compliance
function as head of that function shall not, except with the Commission’s express
approval, occupy any other specified management office.

4 Licensees must take all reasonable steps to ensure that anything done in the
performance of the functions of a specified management office is done in
accordance with the terms and conditions of the holder’s personal management
licence.

5 Where an individual is authorised by a personal licence and that licence comes
under review under section 116(2) of the Act, the operating licensee must comply
with any conditions subsequently imposed on that licence by the Commission
about redeployment, supervision, or monitoring of the individual's work and any
requirements of the Commission in respect of such matters applicable during the
period of the review.

6 Paragraphs 1 to 5 above shall not apply to a licensee for so long as the licensee
is a ‘small-scale operator’ as defined in the Gambling Act 2005 (Definition of
Small-scale Operator) Regulations 2006 (‘the Regulations’).

7 During the period of 3 years commencing with the date on which a licensee
ceases to be a small-scale operator paragraphs 1 to 6 above shall apply subject
to the proviso that the phrase ‘each individual’ in paragraph 1a shall not include
any individual who was a ‘qualified person’ (as defined in the Regulations) in
relation to the licensee 28 days immediately prior to the licensee ceasing to be a
small-scale operator.

4 Protection of customer funds
4.2 Disclosure to customers

Licence condition 4.2.1

Disclosure to customers

All operating licences, except gaming machine technical, gambling software,
host, ancillary remote bingo and ancillary remote casino licences

Conditions and Codes of Practice applicable to Gaming Machine General: Adult Gaming Centres and 7 of 40
Family Entertainment Centres



Page 56 Agenda ltem 5

1 Licensees who hold customer funds must set out clearly in the terms and
conditions under which they provide facilities for gambling information about
whether customer funds are protected in the event of insolvency, the level of such
protection and the method by which this is achieved.

2 Such information must be according to such rating system and in such form the
Commission may from time to time specify. It must be provided in writing to each
customer, in a manner which requires the customer to acknowledge receipt of the
information and does not permit the customer to utilise the funds for gambling
until they have done so, both on the first occasion on which the customer
deposits funds and on the occasion of any subsequent deposit which is the first
since a change in the licensee’s terms in relation to protection of such funds.

3 Inthis condition ‘customer funds’ means the aggregate value of funds held to the
credit of customers including, without limitation:

a cleared funds deposited with the licensee by customers to provide stakes
in, or to meet participation fees in respect of, future gambling,

b winnings or prizes which the customer has chosen to leave on deposit
with the licensee or for which the licensee has yet to account to the
customer, and

c any crystallised but as yet unpaid loyalty or other bonuses, in each case
irrespective of whether the licensee is a party to the gambling contract.

5 Payment
5.1 Cash and cash equivalents, payment methods and
services

Licence condition 5.1.1

Cash and cash equivalents

All operating licences except gaming machine technical, gambling software
and host licences

1 Licensees, as part of their internal controls and financial accounting systems,
must implement appropriate policies and procedures concerning the usage of cash
and cash equivalents (eg bankers drafts, cheques and debit cards and digital
currencies) by customers, designed to minimise the risk of crimes such as money
laundering, to avoid the giving of illicit credit to customers and to provide assurance
that gambling activities are being conducted in a manner which promotes the
licensing objectives.

2 Licensees must ensure that such policies and procedures are implemented
effectively, kept under review, and revised appropriately to ensure that they
remain effective, and take into account any applicable learning or guidelines
published by the Gambling Commission from time to time.

Conditions and Codes of Practice applicable to Gaming Machine General: Adult Gaming Centres and 8 of 40
Family Entertainment Centres



Page 57 Agenda ltem 5

6  Provision of credit by licensees and the use of

credit cards
6.1 Provision of credit

Licence condition 6.1.1

Provision of credit

All gaming machine general operating licences for adult gaming centres and
family entertainment centres

1  Licensees must neither:
a provide credit themselves in connection with gambling; nor
b  participate in, arrange, permit or knowingly facilitate the giving of credit in
connection with gambling.

7  General ‘fair and open’ provisions
7.1 Compliance with terms

Licence condition 7.1.1
Compliance with terms (consumer rights)
All operating licences except gaming machine technical and gambling software

licences

1  Licensees must satisfy themselves that none of the terms on which gambling is
offered are unfair terms within the meaning of the Consumer Rights Act 2015
and must comply with those terms.

2 An accurate summary of the contractual terms on which gambling is offered
must be made available to customers and set out in plain and intelligible
language.

3 Customers must be notified of material changes to terms before they come into
effect.

12 Anti-money laundering
12.1 Prevention of money laundering and terrorist financing

Licence condition 12.1.1

Anti-money laundering

Prevention of money laundering and terrorist financing

All operating licences except gaming machine technical and gambling
software licences

1 Licensees must conduct an assessment of the risks of their business being used
for money laundering and terrorist financing. Such risk assessment must be
appropriate and must be reviewed as necessary in the light of any changes of
circumstances, including the introduction of new products or technology, new

Conditions and Codes of Practice applicable to Gaming Machine General: Adult Gaming Centres and 9 of 40
Family Entertainment Centres



Page 53 Agenda ltem 5

methods of payment by customers, changes in the customer demographic or
any other material changes, and in any event reviewed at least annually.

2 Following completion of and having regard to the risk assessment, and any
review of the assessment, licensees must ensure they have appropriate
policies, procedures and controls to prevent money laundering and terrorist
financing.

3 Licensees must ensure that such policies, procedures and controls are
implemented effectively, kept under review, revised appropriately to ensure that
they remain effective, and take into account any applicable learning or
guidelines published by the Gambling Commission from time to time.

14 Access to premises
14.1 Access to premises

Licence condition 14.1.1
Access to premises
All operating licences

1 Licensees must have and put into effect policies and procedures (including staff
training programmes) designed to ensure that their staff co-operate with the
Commission’s enforcement officers in the proper performance of their
compliance functions and are made aware of those officers’ rights of entry to
premises contained in Part 15 of the Act.

Conditions and Codes of Practice applicable to Gaming Machine General: Adult Gaming Centres and 10 of 40
Family Entertainment Centres



Page 59 Agenda ltem 5

15 Information requirements
15.1 Reporting suspicion of offences etc

Licence condition 15.1.1

Reporting suspicion of offences etc - non-betting licences

All operating licences except betting, betting intermediary, ancillary remote
betting, betting host and remote betting intermediary (trading rooms only)
licences

1 Licensees must as soon as reasonably practicable provide the Commission or
ensure that the Commission is provided with any information that they know
relates to or suspect may relate to the commission of an offence under the Act,
including an offence resulting from a breach of a licence condition or a code
provision having the effect of a licence condition.

15.2 Reporting key events and other reportable events

Licence condition 15.2.1
Reporting key events
All operating licences

A key event is an event that could have a significant impact on the nature or
structure of a licensee’s business. Licensees must notify the Commission, or ensure
the Commission is notified, in such form or manner as the Commission may from
time to time specify, of the occurrence of any of the following key events as soon as
reasonably practicable and in any event within five working days of the licensee
becoming aware of the event’s occurrence®.

Operator status

1 Inthe case of licensees which are companies, a petition being presented for
their winding up or the winding up of any group company of theirs, or they or any
group company being placed in administration or receivership or their directors
proposing to creditors a composition in satisfaction of its debts or a scheme of
arrangement of its affairs.

2 Inthe case of licensees which are bodies corporate, but not companies, any
event substantially equivalent to those listed at 1 above.

3 Inthe case of a licensee who is an individual (or a partner in a partnership
licensee) their being presented with a petition for their bankruptcy or
sequestration or their entering into an individual voluntary arrangement.

Relevant persons and positions

4 In the case of licensees who are companies or other bodies corporate having a
share capital, the name and address of any person who (whether or not already
a shareholder or member) becomes a shareholder or member holding 3% or
more of the issued share capital of the licensee or its holding company.

5 Any investment in a licensee which is not by way of subscription for shares.

6 The taking of any loan by the licensee, or by a group company who then makes
an equivalent loan to the licensee, from any person not authorised by the
Financial Conduct Authority: a copy of the loan agreement must be supplied.

Conditions and Codes of Practice applicable to Gaming Machine General: Adult Gaming Centres and 11 of 40
Family Entertainment Centres



Page 60 Agenda ltem 5

7 The entering into an arrangement whereby a third party provides services to, or
grants any licence concession or permission to, the licensee other than for full
value: full details of the arrangements must be supplied.

8 The appointment of a person to, or a person ceasing to occupy, a ‘key position’:
a ‘key position’ in relation to a licensee is:

a inthe case of a small-scale operator, a ‘qualifying position’ as defined in

the Gambling Act 2005 (Definition of Small-scale Operator) Regulations

2006

b in the case of an operator which is not a small-scale operator, a
‘specified management office’ as set out in (current) LCCP licence
condition 1.2

c a position the holder of which is responsible for the licensee’s anti-
money laundering procedures, including suspicious activity reporting

d any other position for the time being designated by the Commission

as a ‘key position’. (Notification is required whether or not the person
concerned is required to hold a personal management licence and
whether or not the event notified requires the licensee to apply for a
variation to amend a detail of their licence.)

9 Any change to the structure or organisation of the licensee’s business which
affects a ‘key position’ or the responsibilities of its holder.

Financial events

10 Any material change in the licensee’s banking arrangements, in particular the
termination of such arrangements or a particular facility and whether by the
licensee or the provider of the arrangements.

11 Any breach of a covenant given to a bank or other lender.

12 Any default by the licensee or, where the licensee is a body corporate, by a
group company in making repayment of the whole or any part of a loan on its
due date.

13 Any court judgments (in whatever jurisdiction) against the licensee or, where the
licensee is a body corporate, a group company, remaining unpaid 14 days after
the date of judgment.

14 Where the licensee is required to have their accounts independently audited,
any qualification to an auditors’ report; and any unplanned change of auditor
including a change prompted by a dispute or resulting from auditors being
unable or unwilling to sign an unqualified audit report.

15 Any change in the licensee’s arrangements for the protection of customer funds
in accordance with the general licence condition 4 relating to the protection of
customer funds (where applicable).

16 Where the licensee holds customer funds in a separate bank account, any
deficit on reconciliation of such bank account.

17 Any change in the licensee’s arrangements as to the methods by which, and/or
the payment processors through which, the licensee accepts payment from

Conditions and Codes of Practice applicable to Gaming Machine General: Adult Gaming Centres and 12 of 40
Family Entertainment Centres



Page 61 Agenda ltem 5

customers using their gambling facilities (this key event applies to remote
casino, bingo and betting operating licences, except ancillary and remote betting
intermediary (trading room only) licences).

Legal or regulatory proceedings or reports

18 The grant, withdrawal or refusal of any application for a licence or other
permission made by the licensee, or in the case of a licensee which is a body
corporate, any group company of theirs, to a gambling regulator in another
jurisdiction. In the case of a withdrawal or refusal of the application, the licensee
must also notify the reasons for such withdrawal or refusal. (This condition does
not apply to applications for licences or other permissions to carry on activities
which would fall outside the scope of a Gambling Commission operating licence
if carried out in Britain or with customers in Great Britain.)

19a Any investigation by a professional, statutory, regulatory or government body (in
whatever jurisdiction) into the licensee’s activities, or the activities in relation to
the licensed entity of a personal licence holder or a person occupying a
qualifying position employed by them, where such an investigation could result
in the imposition of a sanction or penalty which, if imposed, could reasonably be
expected to raise doubts about the licensee’s continued suitability to hold a
Gambling Commission licence.

19b Any criminal investigation by a law enforcement agency in any jurisdiction in
relation to which:
e the licensee is involved (including, but not limited to investigations of
crimes allegedly committed against the licensee or involving the
gambling facilities provided under the licence), AND

e the circumstances are such that the Commission might reasonably be
expected to question whether the licensee’s measures to keep crime out
of gambling had failed.

Notification of the event must occur as soon as practicable after the licensee
becomes aware of any such investigation in which the licensee is involved and
measures may have failed.

20 The receipt of any report from a professional, statutory or other regulatory or
government body (in whatever jurisdiction) of the outcome of a compliance
assessment in relation to the gambling activity of the licensee or, where the
licensee is a body corporate, of any group company in which at least one person
who holds a key position in or in respect of the licensee holds a key position: a
copy of the report should be provided where available to the licensee.

21 The referral to the licensee’s Board, or persons performing the function of an
audit or risk committee, of material concerns raised by a third party (such as an
auditor) about the provision of facilities for gambling which are expressed (in
whatever terms) as requiring attention as a high priority: a summary of the
nature of the concerns must be provided.

22 The imposition by the licensee of a disciplinary sanction, including dismissal,
against the holder of a personal licence or a person occupying a qualifying
position for gross misconduct; or the resignation of a personal licence holder or
person occupying a qualifying position following commencement of disciplinary
proceedings in respect of gross misconduct against that person.

Conditions and Codes of Practice applicable to Gaming Machine General: Adult Gaming Centres and 13 of 40
Family Entertainment Centres



Page 62 Agenda ltem 5

23 The commencement (in whatever jurisdiction) of any material litigation against
the licensee or, where the licensee is a body corporate, a group company: the
licensee must also notify the outcome of such litigation.

24 The making of a disclosure pursuant to section 330, 331, 332 or 338 of the
Proceeds of Crime Act 2002 or section 19, 20, 21, 21ZA, 21ZB or 21A of the
Terrorism Act 2000 (a suspicious activity report): the licensee should inform the
Commission of the unique reference number issued by the United Kingdom
Financial Intelligence Unit of the National Crime Agency in respect of each
disclosure and for the purposes of this key event the five working day period
referred to above runs from the licensee’s receipt of the unique reference
number.

Gambling facilities

25 Any breach in the licensee’s information security that adversely affects the
confidentiality of customer data or prevents customers from accessing their
accounts for longer than 24 hours.

26 Any change in the identity of the ADR entity or entities for the handling of
customer disputes, as required by the social responsibility code provision on
complaints and disputes.

27 The reference of a dispute to an ADR entity other than one in respect of which
contact details were given in accordance with the social responsibility code
provision on complaints and disputes; the reason for selection of that ADR entity
should be given.

28 In the case of remote gambling, the commencement or cessation of trading on
website domains (including mobile sites or mobile device applications) or
broadcast media through which the licensee provides gambling facilities.

In this condition:
‘body corporate’ has the meaning ascribed to that term by section 1173 of the
Companies Act 2006 or any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof
a in respect of a company, ‘holding company’ and ‘subsidiary’ have the
meaning ascribed to that term by section 1159 of the Companies Act
2006 or any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof
b a‘group company’ is any subsidiary or holding company of the licensee
and any subsidiary of such holding company.

1 Key events can be reported securely online at the Commission’s website through our eServices
system www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk

Alternatively, for operators unable to access this system, you can report a key event by email

to: key.events@gamblingcommission.gov.uk

Licence condition 15.2.2
Other reportable events
All operating licences

1 Licensees must also notify the Commission in such form or manner as the
Commission may from time to time specify, or ensure that the Commission is so
notified, as soon as reasonably practicable of the occurrence of any of the
following events?:

a the conclusion of a dispute referred to an ADR entity and in such case

Conditions and Codes of Practice applicable to Gaming Machine General: Adult Gaming Centres and 14 of 40
Family Entertainment Centres


http://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/
mailto:key.events@gamblingcommission.gov.uk

Page 63 Agenda ltem 5

providing the Commission with a copy of the decision or note of the
outcome?.

b any outcome adverse to the licensee of any proceedings taken against
the licensee (in whatever jurisdiction) by a customer in relation to a
gambling transaction; but excluding proceedings allocated to the County
Court small claims track or equivalent in jurisdictions outside England
and Wales.

c their becoming aware that a group company which is not a Commission
licensee is advertising remote gambling facilities to those residing in a
jurisdiction in or to which it has not previously advertised.

In this condition:

a  ‘group company’ has the same meaning as in condition 15.2.1; and

b without prejudice to section 327 of the Act, ‘advertising’ includes: having a home
page directed towards a jurisdiction and written in, or in one of, that jurisdiction’s
official language(s), having arrangements enabling that jurisdiction’s currency to
be selected for gambling or the use of payment methods available only in that
jurisdiction, and providing a specific customer service facility referable to that
jurisdiction.

1 Events required to be notified to the Commission by 15.2.1 or 15.2.2 may be reported securely online
at the Commission’s website through our eServices system www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk or by
email to: key.events@gamblingcommission.gov.uk

2 In respect of the referral of disputes to an ADR entity the licensee’s attention is drawn to social
responsibility code provision 6.

15.3 General and regulatory returns

Licence condition 15.3.1
General and regulatory Returns
All operating licences

1 Onrequest, licensees must provide the Commission with such information as the
Commission may require about the use made of facilities provided in accordance
with this licence, and the manner in which gambling authorised by this licence
and the licensee’s business in relation to that gambling are carried on, including
in particular information about:

a the numbers of people making use of the facilities and the frequency of
such use

b the range of gambling activities provided by the licensee and the
numbers of staff employed in connection with them

c the licensee’s policies in relation to, and experiences of, problem
gambling.

2 In particular within 28 days of the end of each quarterly period or, for those only
submitting annual returns, within 42 days of the end of each annual period,
licensees must submit a Regulatory Return to the Commission containing such
information as the Commission may from time to time require’.

lRegulatory returns can be submitted securely online at the Commission’s website through our
eServices system available at www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk

For operators unable to access this system, the forms and a guide to completing them can be requested
from the Commission and returned by email to:

Conditions and Codes of Practice applicable to Gaming Machine General: Adult Gaming Centres and 15 of 40
Family Entertainment Centres


http://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/
mailto:key.events@gamblingcommission.gov.uk
http://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/

Page 64 Agenda ltem 5

Requlatory.Returns@gamblingcommission.gov.uk or by post to Licensing, Gambling Commission,
Victoria Square House, Victoria Square, Birmingham, B2 4BP

16 Responsible placement of digital adverts

Licence condition 16.1.1
Responsible placement of digital adverts
All licences

1  Licensees must:

a ensure that they do not place digital advertisements on websites providing
unauthorised access to copyrighted content;

b take all reasonable steps to ensure that third parties with whom they
contract for the provision of any aspect of their business related to the
licensed activities do not place digital advertisements on websites providing
unauthorised access to copyrighted content; and

c ensure that the terms upon which they contract with such third parties
enable them, subject to compliance with any dispute resolution provisions,
to terminate the third party’s contract promptly if, in the Licensee’s
reasonable opinion, the third party has been responsible for placing digital
advertisements for the licensed activities on such websites.

Conditions and Codes of Practice applicable to Gaming Machine General: Adult Gaming Centres and 16 of 40
Family Entertainment Centres


mailto:Regulatory.Returns@gamblingcommission.gov.uk

Page 65 Agenda ltem 5

Part Ill: Code of practice

Introduction

This is the Commission’s principal code of practice, issued under section 24 of the
Gambling Act 2005.

There are two types of code provisions in this document:

¢ social responsibility code provisions: compliance with these is a condition of
licences; therefore any breach of them by an operator may lead the
Commission to review the operator’s licence with a view to suspension,
revocation or the imposition of a financial penalty and would also expose the
operator to the risk of prosecution; these provisions are set out in shaded
boxes

e ordinary code provisions: these do not have the status of operator licence
conditions but set out good practice. Operators may adopt alternative
approaches to those set out in ordinary code provisions if they have actively
taken account of the ordinary code provision and can demonstrate that an
alternative approach is reasonable in the operator's particular circumstances;
or that to take an alternative approach would be acting in a similarly effective
manner. Ordinary codes of practice are admissible in evidence in criminal or
civil proceedings and must be taken into account in any case in which the
court or tribunal think them relevant, and by the Commission in the exercise
of its functions; any departure from ordinary code provisions by an operator
may be taken into account by the Commission on a licence review, but cannot
lead to imposition of a financial penalty; these code provisions are in the
unshaded boxes in this section.

Conditions and Codes of Practice applicable to Gaming Machine General: Adult Gaming Centres and 17 of 40
Family Entertainment Centres



Page 66 Agenda ltem 5

Code provisions

1  General
1.1 Cooperation and responsibility for third parties

Ordinary Code Provision 1.1.1
Cooperation with the Commission
All licences

1 As made plain in its Statement of principles for licensing and regulation, the
Commission expects licensees to conduct their gambling operations in a way
that does not put the licensing objectives at risk, to work with the Commission in
an open and cooperative way and to disclose anything which the Commission
would reasonably need to be aware of in exercising its regulatory functions. This
includes, in particular, anything that is likely to have a material impact on the
licensee’s business or on the licensee’s ability to conduct licensed activities
compliantly. Licensees should have this principle in mind in their approach to,
and when considering their compliance with, their obligations under the
conditions attached to their licence and in relation to the following provisions of
this code.

Social responsibility code provision 1.1.2
Responsibility for third parties — all licences
All licences

1 Licensees must take responsibility for third parties with whom they contract for
the provision of any aspect of the licensee’s business related to the licensed
activities and ensure that the terms on which they contract with such third
parties:

a require the third party to conduct themselves in so far as they carry out
activities on behalf of the licensee as if they were bound by the same
licence conditions and subject to the same codes of practice as the
licensee

b  oblige the third party to provide such information to the licensee as they
may reasonably require in order to enable the licensee to comply with
their information reporting and other obligations to the Commission

c enable the licensee, subject to compliance with any dispute resolution
provisions of such contract, to terminate the third party’s contract
promptly if, in the licensee’s reasonable opinion, the third party is in
breach of contract (including in particular terms included pursuant to this
code provision) or has otherwise acted in a manner which is inconsistent
with the licensing objectives.

2  Financial requirements
2.1 Anti-money laundering

Ordinary code provision 2.1.2
Anti-money laundering — other than casino
All licences except casino licences

Conditions and Codes of Practice applicable to Gaming Machine General: Adult Gaming Centres and 18 of 40
Family Entertainment Centres



Page 67 Agenda ltem 5

1 As part of their procedures for compliance with the requirements in respect of the
prevention and detection of money laundering in the Proceeds of Crime Act 2002
and the Terrorism Act 2000, licensees should take into account the Commission’s
advice on the Proceeds of Crime Act 2002, Duties and responsibilities under the
Proceeds of Crime Act 2002 - Advice for operators (excluding casino operators).

3 Protection of children and other vulnerable

persons
3.1 Combating problem gambling

Social responsibility code provision 3.1.1
Combating problem gambling
All licences

1 Licensees must have and put into effect policies and procedures intended to
promote socially responsible gambling including the specific policies and
procedures required by the provisions of section 3 of this code.

2 Licensees must make an annual financial contribution to one or more
organisation(s) which between them research into the prevention and treatment of
gambling-related harm, develop harm prevention approaches and identify and
fund treatment to those harmed by gambling.

3.2 Access to gambling by children and young persons

Social responsibility code provision 3.2.3
Access to gambling by children and young persons — AGC SR code
All adult gaming centre licences

1 Licensees must have and put into effect policies and procedures designed to
prevent underage gambling, and monitor the effectiveness of these.

2  This must include procedures for:
a checking the age of apparently underage customers
b removing anyone who appears to be under age and cannot produce an
acceptable form of identification
c taking action when there are attempts by under-18s to enter the
premises.

3 Licensees must ensure that their policies and procedures take account of the
structure and layout of their gambling premises.

4  Licensees must not deliberately provide facilities for gambling in such a way as
to appeal particularly to children or young people, for example by reflecting or
being associated with youth culture.

5 In premises restricted to adults, service must be refused in any circumstances
where any adult is accompanied by a child or young person.

6 Licensees must take all reasonable steps to ensure that all staff understand their
responsibilities for preventing underage gambling. This must include appropriate
training which must cover all relevant prohibitions against inviting children or
young persons to gamble or to enter gambling premises, and the legal
requirements on returning stakes and not paying prizes to underage customers.

Conditions and Codes of Practice applicable to Gaming Machine General: Adult Gaming Centres and 19 of 40
Family Entertainment Centres



Page 63 Agenda ltem 5

7 Licensees must only accept identification which:
a contains a photograph from which the individual can be identified
b states the individual's date of birth
c isvalid
d s legible and has no visible signs of tampering or reproduction.

8 Licensees in fee category C or higher must conduct test purchasing or take part
in collective test purchasing programmes, as a means of providing reasonable
assurance that they have effective policies and procedures to prevent underage
gambling, and must provide their test purchase results to the Commission.

Ordinary code provision 3.2.4
Access to gambling by children and young persons — AGC ordinary code
All adult gaming centre licences

1 The Commission considers acceptable forms of identification to include any
identification carrying the PASS logo (for example Citizencard or Validate); a
military identification card; a driving licence (including a provisional licence) with
photocard; or a passport.

2 Licensees should put into effect procedures that require their staff to check the
age of any customer who appears to them to be under 21.

3 Licensees should consider permanent exclusion from premises for any adult
accompanied by a child or young person on more than one occasion to premises
restricted to adults, or if there is reason to believe the offence was committed
knowingly or recklessly.

4 Procedures should be put into effect for dealing with cases where a child or
young person repeatedly attempts to gamble on premises restricted to adults,
including oral warnings, reporting the offence to the Gambling Commission and
the police, and making available information on problem gambling.

5 Licensees in fee categories A or B should consider how they monitor the
effectiveness of their policies and procedures for preventing underage gambling
(for example by taking part in a collective test purchasing programme) and
should be able to explain to the Commission or licensing authority what
approach they have adopted.

6 In providing training to staff on their responsibilities for preventing underage
gambling, licensees should have, as a minimum, policies for induction
training and refresher training.

Social responsibility code provision 3.2.5
Access to gambling by children and young persons — bingo and FEC SR code
All non-remote bingo and family entertainment centre licences

1 Licensees must have and put into effect policies and procedures designed to
prevent underage gambling, and monitor the effectiveness of these.

2 This must include procedures for:
a checking the age of apparently underage customers

Conditions and Codes of Practice applicable to Gaming Machine General: Adult Gaming Centres and 20 of 40
Family Entertainment Centres



Page 69 Agenda ltem 5

b  refusing entry to any adult-only areas to anyone unable to produce an
acceptable form of identification

¢ taking action when there are unlawful attempts to enter the adult-only
areas.

3 Licensees must ensure that their policies and procedures take account of the
structure and layout of their gambling premises.

4 Licensees must not permit children or young people to gamble in the adults-only
areas of premises to which they have access. If there is a ‘no under-18s’
premises policy, licensees must pay particular attention to the procedures they
use at the entrance to the premises to check customers’ ages.

5 Licensees must take all reasonable steps to ensure that all staff understand their
responsibilities for preventing underage gambling. This must include appropriate
training which must cover:

a all relevant prohibitions against inviting children or young persons to
gamble on age-restricted products or to enter age-restricted
areas;

b the legal requirements on returning stakes and not paying prizes to
underage customers; and

¢ procedures for challenging any adult who may be complicit in allowing a
child or young person to gamble.

6 Licensees must only accept identification which:
a contains a photograph from which the individual can be identified
b states the individual's date of birth
c isvald
d islegible and has no visible signs of tampering or reproduction.

7 Licensees in fee category C or higher must conduct test purchasing or take part
in collective test purchasing programmes, as a means of providing reasonable
assurance that they have effective policies and procedures to prevent underage
gambling, and must provide their test purchase results to the Commission.

Ordinary code provision 3.2.6

Access to gambling by children and young persons — bingo and FEC ordinary
code

All non-remote bingo and family entertainment centre licences

1 The Commission considers acceptable forms of identification to include: any
identification carrying the PASS logo (for example Citizencard or Validate); a
military identification card; a driving licence (including a provisional licence) with
photocard; or a passport.

2 Licensees should require a person who appears to relevant staff to be under the
age of 21 to be asked to produce proof of age, either at the point of entry to the
gambling area or as soon as it comes to the attention of staff that they wish to
access gambling facilities.

3 Licensees should have procedures for dealing with cases where an adult
knowingly or recklessly allows a child or young person to gamble. These
procedures might include refusing to allow the adult to continue to gamble,
removing them from the premises, and reporting the incident to the police or local

Conditions and Codes of Practice applicable to Gaming Machine General: Adult Gaming Centres and 21 of 40
Family Entertainment Centres



Page 70 Agenda ltem 5

authorities, or taking action where forged identification is produced.

4 Procedures should be put into effect for dealing with cases where a child or
young person repeatedly attempts to gamble on their premises, including oral
warnings, reporting the offence to the Gambling Commission and the police, and
making available information on problem gambling to the child or young person
concerned.

5 Where it is likely that customers’ young or otherwise vulnerable children will be
left unattended on or adjacent to their premises, licensees should consider
reminding customers of their parental responsibilities and assess whether there is
a need to develop procedures for minimising the risk to such children.

6 Licensees in fee categories A or B should consider how they monitor the
effectiveness of their policies and procedures for preventing underage gambling
(for example by taking part in a collective test purchasing programme) and should
be able to explain to the Commission or licensing authority what approach they
have adopted.

7 In providing training to staff on their responsibilities for preventing underage
gambling, licensees should have, as a minimum, policies for induction
training and refresher training.

Conditions and Codes of Practice applicable to Gaming Machine General: Adult Gaming Centres and 22 of 40
Family Entertainment Centres



Page 71 Agenda ltem 5

3.3 Gambling management tools and responsible gambling
information

Social responsibility code provision 3.3.1

Responsible gambling information

All licences, except gaming machine technical, gambling software, host,
ancillary remote bingo, ancillary remote casino and remote betting (standard)
(remote platform) licences

1 Licensees must make information readily available to their customers on how to
gamble responsibly and how to access information about, and help in respect of,
problem gambling.

2 The information must cover:

a any measures provided by the licensee to help individuals monitor or
control their gambling, such as restricting the duration of a gambling
session or the amount of money they can spend

b timers or other forms of reminders or ‘reality checks’ where available

c self-exclusion options

d information about the availability of further help or advice.

3 The information must be directed to all customers whether or not licensees also
make available material which is directed specifically at customers who may be
‘problem gamblers’.

4  For gambling premises, information must be available in all areas where
gambling facilities are provided and adjacent to ATMs. Information must be
displayed prominently using methods appropriate to the size and layout of the
premises. These methods may include the use of posters, the provision of
information on gambling products, or the use of screens or other facilities in the
gambling premises. Information must also be available in a form that may be
taken away and may also be made available through the use of links to be
accessed online or using smart technology. Licensees must take all reasonable
steps to ensure that this information is also readily accessible in locations which
enable the customer to obtain it discreetly.

Ordinary code provision 3.3.2

Responsible gambling information — foreign languages

All licences, except gaming machine technical, gambling software, host,
ancillary remote bingo and ancillary remote casino licences

1 Licensees who market their services in one or more foreign languages should
make available in that, or those, foreign languages:

a the information on how to gamble responsibly and access to help referred
to above

b  the players’ guides to any game, bet or lottery required to be made
available to customers under provisions in this code

c the summary of the contractual terms on which gambling is offered, which
is required to be provided to customers as a condition of the licensee’s
operating licence.

Conditions and Codes of Practice applicable to Gaming Machine General: Adult Gaming Centres and 23 of 40
Family Entertainment Centres



Page 72 Agenda ltem 5

3.4 Customer interaction

Social responsibility code provision 3.4.1

Customer interaction — SR code

All licences, except non-remote lottery, gaming machine technical, gambling
software and host licences

1 Licensees must put into effect policies and procedures for customer interaction
where they have concerns that a customer’s behaviour may indicate problem
gambling. The policies must include:

a identification of the appropriate level of management who may initiate
customer interaction and the procedures for doing so
b the types of behaviour that will be logged/reported to the appropriate level
of staff and which may trigger customer interaction at an appropriate
moment
c the circumstances in which consideration should be given to refusing
service to customers and/or barring them from the operator’'s gambling
premises
d training for all staff on their respective responsibilities, in particular so that
they know who is designated to deal with problem gambling issues
e specific provision for making use of all relevant sources of information to
ensure effective decision making, and to guide and deliver effective
customer interactions, including in particular
i provision to identify at risk customers who may not be displaying
obvious signs of, or overt behaviour associated with, problem
gambling: this should be by reference to indicators such as time or
money spent
ii  specific provision in relation to customers designated by the
licensee as ‘high value’, ‘VIP’ or equivalent
f  specific provision for interacting with customers demonstrating signs of
agitation, distress, intimidation, aggression or other behaviours that may
inhibit customer interaction

2 For gambling premises, licensees must ensure that their policies and procedures
take account of the structure and layout of the gambling premises.

3 But such policies and procedures must be consistent with, and implemented with
due regard to, licensees’ duties in respect of the health and safety of their staff.

Ordinary code provision 3.4.2

Customer interaction — ordinary code

All licences except non-remote lottery, gaming machine technical, gambling
software and host licences

1  Operators should work together to share experience and deliver good practice
across the full range of social responsibility requirements for customer
interaction.

2 Operators should keep a record of customer interactions, and where an
interaction has been ruled out, the reasons for this. Where an interaction has
taken place at a later date, this should also be recorded.

3 In providing training to staff on their responsibilities for customer interaction,

Conditions and Codes of Practice applicable to Gaming Machine General: Adult Gaming Centres and 24 of 40
Family Entertainment Centres



Page 73 Agenda ltem 5

licensees should have, as a minimum, policies for induction training and
refresher training.

Conditions and Codes of Practice applicable to Gaming Machine General: Adult Gaming Centres and 25 of 40
Family Entertainment Centres



Page 74 Agenda ltem 5

3.5 Self-exclusion

Social responsibility code provision 3.5.1

Self-exclusion — non-remote and trading rooms SR code

All non-remote licences (except lottery, gaming machine technical and
gambling software licences) and remote betting intermediary (trading rooms
only) licences

1 Licensees must have and put into effect procedures for self-exclusion and take
all reasonable steps to refuse service or to otherwise prevent an individual who
has entered a self-exclusion agreement from participating in gambling.

2 Licensees must, as soon as practicable, take all reasonable steps to prevent any
marketing material being sent to a self-excluded customer.

3 Licensees must take steps to remove the name and details of a self-excluded
individual from any marketing databases used by the company or group (or
otherwise flag that person as an individual to whom marketing material must not
be sent), within two days of receiving the completed self-exclusion notification.

4  This covers any marketing material relating to gambling, or other activities that
take place on the premises where gambling may take place. However, it would
not extend to blanket marketing which is targeted at a particular geographical
area and where the excluded individual would not knowingly be included.

5 Licensees must close any customer accounts of an individual who has entered a
self-exclusion agreement and return any funds held in the customer account. It is
not sufficient merely to prevent an individual from withdrawing funds from their
customer account whilst still accepting wagers from them. Where the giving of
credit is permitted, the licensee may retain details of the amount owed to them
by the individual, although the account must not be active.

6 Licensees must put into effect procedures designed to ensure that an individual
who has self-excluded cannot gain access to gambling. These procedures must
include:

a aregister of those excluded with appropriate records (hame, address,
other details, and any membership or account details that may be held by
the operator);

b photo identification (except where the Licensee can reasonably satisfy
themselves that in the circumstances in which they provide facilities for
gambling an alternative means of identification is at least as effective)
and a signature;

c staff training to ensure that staff are able to administer effectively the
systems; and

d the removal of those persons found in the gambling area or attempting to
gamble from the premises.

7 Licensees must ensure that their procedures for preventing access to gambling
by self-excluded individuals take account of the structure and layout of the
gambling premises.

8 Licensees must, when administering the self-exclusion agreement, signpost the
individual to counselling and support services.

Conditions and Codes of Practice applicable to Gaming Machine General: Adult Gaming Centres and 26 of 40
Family Entertainment Centres



Page 75 Agenda ltem 5

Ordinary code provision 3.5.2

Self-exclusion — non-remote ordinary code

All non-remote licences and remote betting intermediary (trading rooms only)
licences, but not gaming machine technical and gambling software licences

1  Self-exclusion procedures should require individuals to take positive action in
order to self-exclude. This can be a signature on a self-exclusion form.

2 Individuals should be able to self-exclude without having to enter gambling
premises.

3 Before an individual self-excludes, licensees should provide or make available
sufficient information about what the consequences of self-exclusion are.

4 Licensees should take all reasonable steps to extend the self-exclusion to
premises of the same type owned by the operator in the customer’s local area. In
setting the bounds of that area licensees may take into account the customer’s
address (if known to them), anything else known to them about the distance the
customer ordinarily travels to gamble and any specific request the customer may
make.

5 Licensees should encourage the customer to consider extending their self-
exclusion to other licensees’ gambling premises in the customer’s local area.

6 Customers should be given the opportunity to discuss self-exclusion in private,
where possible.

7 Licensees should take steps to ensure that:

a the minimum self-exclusion period offered is of a duration of not less than
6 nor more than 12 months

b any self-exclusion may, on request, be extended for one or more further
periods of at least 6 months each

c acustomer who has decided to enter a self-exclusion agreement is given
the opportunity to do so immediately without any cooling-off period.
However, if the customer wishes to consider the self-exclusion further (for
example to discuss with problem gambling groups), the customer may
return at a later date to enter into self-exclusion

d atthe end of the period chosen by the customer, the self-exclusion
remains in place for a further 6 months, unless the customer takes
positive action in order to gamble again

e where a customer chooses not to renew the self-exclusion, and makes a
positive request to begin gambling again during the 6 month period
following the end of their initial self-exclusion, the customer is given one
day to cool off before being allowed access to gambling facilities. The
contact must be made via telephone or in person

f  notwithstanding the expiry of the period of self-exclusion chosen by a
customer, no marketing material should be sent to them unless and until
they have asked for or agreed to accept such material.

8 The licensee should retain the records relating to a self-exclusion agreement at
least for the length of the self-exclusion agreement plus a further 6 months.

9 Please note that the Commission does not require the licensee to carry out any
particular assessment or make any judgement as to whether the previously self-
excluded individual should again be permitted access to gambling. The
requirement to take positive action in person or over the phone is purely to a)
check that the customer has considered the decision to access gambling again

Conditions and Codes of Practice applicable to Gaming Machine General: Adult Gaming Centres and 27 of 40
Family Entertainment Centres



Page 76 Agenda ltem 5

10

11

12

and allow them to consider the implications; and b) implement the one day
cooling-off period and explain why this has been put in place.

Licensees should have, and put into effect, policies and procedures which
recognise, seek to guard against and otherwise address, the fact that some
individuals who have self-excluded might attempt to breach their exclusion
without entering a gambling premises, for example, by getting another to gamble
on their behalf.

Licensees should have effective systems in place to inform all venue staff of self-
excluded individuals who have recently attempted to breach a self-exclusion in
that venue, and the licensees neighbouring venues.

In providing training to staff on their responsibilities for self-exclusion, licensees
should have, as a minimum, policies for induction training and refresher training.

Conditions and Codes of Practice applicable to Gaming Machine General: Adult Gaming Centres and 28 of 40
Family Entertainment Centres




Page 77 Agenda ltem 5

Social responsibility code provision 3.5.6

Self-exclusion — multi-operator non-remote SR code

All non-remote casino, bingo and betting licences (except in respect of the
provision of facilities for betting in reliance on a track premises licence) and
holders of gaming machine general operating licences for adult gaming
centres

1 Licensees must offer customers with whom they enter into a self-exclusion
agreement in respect of facilities for any kind of gambling offered by them at
licensed gambling premises the ability to self-exclude from facilities for the same
kind of gambling offered in their locality by any other holder of an operating
licence to whom this provision applies, by participating in one or more available
multi-operator self-exclusion schemes.

Ordinary code provision 3.5.7

Self-exclusion — multi-operator non-remote ordinary code

All non-remote casino, bingo and betting licences (except in respect of the
provision of facilities for betting in reliance on a track premises licence) and
holders of gaming machine general operating licences for adult gaming
centres

1 Licensees should contribute to and participate in the development and effective
implementation of multi-operator self-exclusions schemes with the aim of
making available to customers the ability to self-exclude from facilities for
gambling provided by other licensed operators within their local area(s).

3.6 Employment of children and young persons

Ordinary code provision 3.6.5
Employment of children and young people — AGCs
All adult gaming centre licences

1 Licensees who employ children (under-16-year-olds) and young persons (those
aged 16 and 17) should be aware that it is an offence:

a to employ them to provide facilities for gambling;

b if gaming machines are sited on the premises, for their contracts of
employment to require them, or for them to be permitted, to perform a
function in connection with a gaming machine at any time; and

c to employ them to carry out any other function on adult gaming centre
licensed premises while any gambling activity is being carried on in
reliance on the premises licence.

2 Asto 1b, it should be noted that in the Commission’s view the relevant provision
of the Act applies to any function performed in connection with a gaming
machine. This includes servicing or cleaning such a machine.

3 Accordingly, licensees should have and put into effect policies and procedures
designed to ensure that:
a children and young persons are never asked to perform tasks within 1a
or 1b, above
b all staff, including those who are children or young persons themselves,

Conditions and Codes of Practice applicable to Gaming Machine General: Adult Gaming Centres and 29 of 40
Family Entertainment Centres



Page 73 Agenda ltem 5

are instructed about the laws relating to access to gambling by children
and young persons.

4 Licensees should consider adopting a policy that:

a children and young persons are not employed to work on adult gaming
centre licensed premises at any time when the premises are open for
business

b gaming machines are turned off if children and young persons are
working on the premises outside the hours when the premises are open
for business.

Ordinary code provision 3.6.6
Employment of children and young people — FECs
All family entertainment centre licences

1 Licensees who employ children (under-16-year-olds) and young persons (those
aged 16 and 17) should be aware that it is an offence:
a to employ them to provide facilities for gambling; and
b if gaming machines are sited on the premises, for their contracts of
employment to require them, or for them to be permitted, to perform a
function in connection with a gaming machine at any time.

2 Asto 1b, it should be noted that in the Commission’s view the relevant provision
of the Act applies to any function performed in connection with a gaming
machine. This includes servicing or cleaning such a machine.

3 Accordingly, licensees should have and put into effect policies and procedures
designed to ensure that:
a children and young persons are never asked to perform tasks within 1a
or 1b, above
b all staff, including those who are children or young persons themselves,
are instructed about the laws relating to access to gambling by children
and young persons.

4 Licensees should consider adopting a policy that:

a children and young persons are not employed to carry out any work in an
adult-only area of family entertainment licensed premises at a time when
any gambling is taking place

b gaming machines sited in adult-only areas are turned off if children and
young persons are working on the premises outside the hours when the
premises are open for business.

3.8 Money lending between customers

Ordinary code provision 3.8.2

Money-lending — other than casinos

All non-remote bingo, general betting, adult gaming centre, family
entertainment centre and remote betting intermediary (trading rooms only)
licences

1 Licensees should seek to prevent systematic or organised money lending
between customers on their premises. As a minimum, they should have
arrangements in place to ensure staff are requested to report any instances of
substantial money lending when they become aware of them.

Conditions and Codes of Practice applicable to Gaming Machine General: Adult Gaming Centres and 30 of 40
Family Entertainment Centres



Page 79 Agenda ltem 5

4  ‘Fair and open’ provisions
4.1 Fair terms

Social responsibility code provision 4.1.1
Fair terms
All licences, except gaming machine technical and gambling software licences

1 Licensees must be able to provide evidence to the Commission, if required,
showing how they satisfied themselves that their terms are not unfair.

5 Marketing

51 Rewards and bonuses

Social responsibility code provision 5.1.1

Rewards and bonuses — SR code

All licences (including ancillary remote licences), except gaming machine
technical and gambling software licences

1 If alicensee makes available to any customer or potential customer any
incentive or reward scheme or other arrangement under which the customer may
receive money, goods, services or any other advantage (including the discharge
in whole or in part of any liability of his) (‘the benefit’) the scheme must be
designed to operate, and be operated, in such a way that:

a the circumstances in which, and conditions subject to which, the benefit is
available are clearly set out and readily accessible to the customers to
whom it is offered;

b neither the receipt nor the value or amount of the benefit is:

idependent on the customer gambling for a pre-determined length of
time or with a pre-determined frequency; or

iialtered or increased if the qualifying activity or spend is reached within
a shorter time than the whole period over which the benefit is
offered.

c if the value of the benefit increases with the amount the customer spends
it does so at a rate no greater than that at which the amount spent
increases; and further that:

d if the benefit comprises free or subsidised travel or accommodation which
facilitates the customer’s attendance at particular licensed premises the
terms on which it is offered are not directly related to the level of the
customer’s prospective gambling.

Ordinary code provision 5.1.2

Proportionate rewards

All licences (including ancillary remote licences), except gaming machine
technical and gambling software licences

1 Licensees should only offer incentive or reward schemes in which the benefit
available is proportionate to the type and level of customers’ gambling.

Conditions and Codes of Practice applicable to Gaming Machine General: Adult Gaming Centres and 31 of 40
Family Entertainment Centres



Page 80 Agenda ltem 5

Ordinary code provision 5.1.6
Compliance with advertising codes
All licences, except lottery licences

1  All advertising of gambling products and services should be undertaken in a
socially responsible manner. In particular, licensees should comply with the
advertising codes of practice issued by the Committee of Advertising Practice
(CAP) and the Broadcast Committee of Advertising Practice (BCAP) which apply
to the form and media in which they advertise their gambling facilities or
services. For media not explicitly covered, licensees should apply the principles
included in these codes of practice as if they were explicitly covered. Licensees
should also follow any relevant industry code of practice on advertising, notably
the Gambling Industry Code for Socially Responsible Advertising.

2  Licensees should also have regard to the CAP and BCAP ‘Guidance on the
rules for gambling advertisements’ which contains a specific section on
‘Misleadingness’: ‘free bets’, or any equivalent guidance that either body may
issue in future.

3 Marketing communications must not include a child or young person. No-one
who is, or seems to be under 25 years old may be featured in gambling. No-one
may behave in an adolescent, juvenile or loutish way. However, the restriction
on allowing people who are, or seem to be, under 25 years old (ie: those in the
18-24 age bracket) to appear in marketing communications need not be applied:

a Inthe case of non-remote point of sale advertising material, provided
that the images used depict the sporting or other activity that may be
gambled on and not the activity of gambling itself and do not offend any
other aspect of the advertising codes.

b Inthe case of remote gambling, provided that the images ‘appear in a
place where a bet can be placed directly through a transactional facility,
for instance, a gambling operator’s own website. The individual may only
be used to illustrate specific betting selections where the individual is the
subject of the bet offered. The image or other depiction used must show
them in the context of the bet and not in a gambling context’ (as provided
in the Gambling section of the CAP code)?.

1This is currently set out in CAP code rule 16.3.14.

Social responsibility code provision 5.1.7
Marketing of offers
All licences

1 Licensees must satisfy themselves that their marketing communications,
advertisements, and invitations to purchase (within the meaning of the
Consumer Protection from Unfair Trading Regulations 2008), including ‘free bet’
offers, do not amount to or involve misleading actions or misleading omissions
within the meaning of those Regulations.

2 Licensees must abide by any relevant provision of the CAP or BCAP code, as
the case may be, which relates to ‘free bet’, ‘bonus’ or similar offers and in that

Conditions and Codes of Practice applicable to Gaming Machine General: Adult Gaming Centres and 32 of 40
Family Entertainment Centres



Page 81 Agenda ltem 5

regard follow the CAP and BCAP ‘Guidance on the rules for gambling
advertisements’. In particular that:

a Marketing communications (which include advertisements) must state
significant limitations and qualifications. Qualifications may clarify but
must not contradict the claims that they qualify.

b Marketing communications that include a promotion and are significantly
limited by time or space must include as much information about
significant conditions as practicable and must direct consumers clearly to
an easily accessible alternative source where all the significant conditions
of the promotion are prominently stated. Participants should be able to
retain those conditions or easily access them throughout the promotion.

c Terms and conditions relating to consumers’ understanding of a ‘free bet’
offer and of the commitments that they have to make in order to take
advantage of such an offer should generally be stated in the
advertisement itself. Where the advertisement is limited by time or space
(for example a banner advertisement), significant conditions likely to
affect a consumer’s decision to participate in promotions should be
displayed no further than one click away from the advertisement itself. If
the significant conditions are not displayed with sufficient prominence, the
advertisement will be seen as misleading.

3 The terms and conditions of each marketing incentive must be made available
for the full duration of the promaotion.

Ordinary code provision 5.1.8
Online marketing in proximity to information on responsible gambling
All licences

1 Licensees should ensure that no advertising or other marketing information,
whether relating to specific offers or to gambling generally, appears on any
primary web page/ screen, or micro site, that provides advice or information on
responsible gambling.

6 Complaints and disputes
6.1 Complaints and disputes

Social responsibility code provision 6.1.1

Complaints and disputes

All licences (including ancillary remote licensees) except gaming machine
technical and gambling software licences

1 Licensees must put into effect a written procedure for handling customer
complaints and disputes.

2 Licensees must also ensure that they have arrangements in place for customers
to be able to refer any dispute to an ADR entity if not resolved to the customer’s
satisfaction by use of their complaints procedure. It is permissible for licensees to
have arrangements with more than one ADR entity and for customers to be

Conditions and Codes of Practice applicable to Gaming Machine General: Adult Gaming Centres and 33 of 40
Family Entertainment Centres



Page 82 Agenda Iltem 5

directed to different ADR entities depending on the nature and subject matter of
the dispute.

3 Itis permissible for any such ADR entity to have terms enabling it to reject
complaints referred for dispute resolution on the basis they are frivolous or
vexatious but licensees may not refuse to refer disputes on that ground.

4  The services of any such ADR entity must be free of charge to the customer and
must not be subject to terms which restrict, or purport to restrict, the customer’s
right to bring proceedings against the licensee in any court of competent
jurisdiction. Such terms may, however, provide for an agreed resolution of a
dispute (arrived at with the assistance of the ADR entity) to be binding on both
parties.

5 Inthis code a ‘complaint’ means a complaint about any aspect of the licensee’s
conduct of the licensed activities, and a ‘dispute’ is any complaint which:
a relates to the outcome of the complainant’s gambling transaction; and
b is not resolved at the first stage of the licensee’s complaints procedure.

6 Licensees must ensure that:

a information about their complaints procedure is set out in their terms and
conditions;

b  such information is also readily accessible on the gambling premises or
website as the case may be;

¢ such information includes details of how to make a complaint to the
licensee and the relevant contact details;

d such information includes the identity (with contact details, which can be
by way of a link from the licensee’s website) of the ADR entity or entities
to whom disputes can normally be referred and, where necessary, details
of any limitation on the nature and subject matter of disputes with which a
particular ADR entity deals

e customers are given a copy of the complaints procedure on request or on
making a complaint; and

f all complaints are handled in accordance with the procedure.

7  Should licensees refer a dispute to an ADR entity other than one in respect of
which contact details were given in accordance with 6 above they must, at the
same time as making the reference, inform the Commission of the reference and
reason for selection of the ADR entity concerned.

8 Licensees must keep a record of all complaints that are not resolved at the first
stage of the complaints procedure.

9 Licensees must arrange for a copy of the decision on, or a note of the outcome
of, each dispute referred to an ADR entity to be provided to the Commission,
either by the ADR entity or by the licensee. This information should be provided
in such format and within such timescale as the Commission may from time to
time specify.

10 Licensees must also arrange for any outcome adverse to the licensee of any
proceedings taken against the licensee (in whatever jurisdiction) by a customer
in relation to a gambling transaction to be notified to the Commission as a key
event; but excluding proceedings allocated to the County Court small claims
track or equivalent in jurisdictions outside England and Wales.

In this Code, ‘ADR entity’ means a person offering alternative dispute resolution services
whose name appears on the list maintained by the Gambling Commission in accordance with

Conditions and Codes of Practice applicable to Gaming Machine General: Adult Gaming Centres and 34 of 40
Family Entertainment Centres



Page 83 Agenda ltem 5

The Alternative Dispute Resolution for Consumer Disputes (Competent Authorities and
Information) Regulations 2015.

7  Gambling licensees’ staff
7.1 Gambling licensees’ staff

Social responsibility code provision 7.1.2

Responsible gambling information for staff

All licences, including betting ancillary remote licences, but not other ancillary
remote licences

1 Licensees must take all reasonable steps to ensure that staff involved in the
provision of facilities for gambling are made aware of advice on socially
responsible gambling and of where to get confidential advice should their
gambling become hard to control.

8 Information requirements
8.1 Information requirements

Ordinary code provision 8.1.1
Information requirements — ordinary code
All licences

1 As stated earlier in this code, the Commission expects licensees to work with the
Commission in an open and cooperative way and to inform the Commission of
any matters that the Commission would reasonably need to be aware of in
exercising its regulatory functions. These include in particular matters that will
have a material impact on the licensee’s business or on the licensee’s ability to
conduct licensed activities compliantly and consistently with the licensing
objectives.

2 Thus, licensees should notify the Commission, or ensure that the Commission is
notified, as soon as reasonably practicable and in such form and manner as the
Commission may from time to time specify’, of any matters which in their view
could have a material impact on their business or affect compliance. The
Commission would, in particular, expect to be notified of the occurrence of any of
the following events in so far as not already notified in accordance with the
conditions attached to the licensee’s licence?:

a any material change in the licensee’s structure or the operation of its
business

b any material change in managerial responsibilities or governance
arrangements

c any report from an internal or external auditor expressing, or giving rise
to, concerns about material shortcomings in the management control or
oversight of any aspect of the licensee’s business related to the provision
of gambling facilities.

1 These matters can be reported securely online at the Commission’s website through our eServices
system www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk

Alternatively, for operators unable to access this system, you can these events by emalil to:
key.events@gamblingcommission.gov.uk

Conditions and Codes of Practice applicable to Gaming Machine General: Adult Gaming Centres and 35 of 40
Family Entertainment Centres


http://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/
mailto:key.events@gamblingcommission.gov.uk

Page 84 Agenda ltem 5

2 Events which must be reported, because the Commission considers them likely to have a material
impact on the nature or structure of a licensee’s business, are set out in general licence condition
15.2.1

10 Assessing local risk
10.1 Assessing local risk

Social responsibility code provision 10.1.1

Assessing local risk

All non-remote casino, adult gaming centre, bingo, family entertainment
centre, betting and remote betting intermediary (trading room only) licences,
except non-remote general betting (limited) and betting intermediary licences.

1 Licensees must assess the local risks to the licensing objectives posed by the
provision of gambling facilities at each of their premises, and have policies,
procedures and control measures to mitigate those risks. In making risk
assessments, licensees must take into account relevant matters identified in the
licensing authority’s statement of licensing policy?.

2 Licensees must review (and update as necessary) their local risk assessments:

a to take account of significant changes in local circumstances, including
those identified in a licensing authority’s statement of licensing policy;

b  when there are significant changes at a licensee’s premises that may
affect their mitigation of local risks;

¢ when applying for a variation of a premises licence; and

d in any case, undertake a local risk assessment when applying for a new
premises licence.

This is the statement of licensing policy under the Gambling Act 2005.

Ordinary code provision 10.1.2

Sharing local risk assessments

All non-remote casino, adult gaming centre, bingo, family entertainment centre,
betting and remote betting intermediary (trading room only) licences, except
non-remote general betting (limited) and betting intermediary licences

1 Licensees should share their risk assessment with licensing authorities when
applying for a premises licence or applying for a variation to existing licensed
premises, or otherwise on request.

Conditions and Codes of Practice applicable to Gaming Machine General: Adult Gaming Centres and 36 of 40
Family Entertainment Centres



Page 85 Agenda ltem 5

Index of licence conditions

If using an electronic version of this document, please click on the headings to
move to the relevant provision.

1 Qualified persons and personal licences 6
1.1 Qualified persons
1.1.1LC — qualifying position 6
1.2 Personal licences
1.21LC — personal management licences 6
4  Protection of customer funds 7
4.2 Disclosure to customers 7
421LC Disclosure to customers 7
5 Payment 8
5.1 Cash and cash equivalents, payment methods and services 8
51.1LC Cash and cash equivalents 8
6 Provision of credit by licensees and the use of credit cards 9
6.1 Provision of credit 9
6.1.1LC Provision of credit 9
7 General ‘fair and open’ provisions 9
7.1 Compliance with terms 9
7.1.1LC Compliance with terms 9
12 Anti-money laundering 9
12.1 Prevention of money laundering and terrorist financing 9
12.1.1LC Prevention of money laundering & terrorist financing 9
14 Access to premises 10
14.1  Access to premises 10
14.1.1LC Access to premises 10
15 Information requirements 11
15.1 Reporting suspicion of offences etc 11
15.1.1LC Reporting suspicion of offences etc - non-betting 11
licences
15.2  Reporting key events and other reportable events 11
15.2.1LC Reporting key events 11
15.2.2LC Other reportable events 14
15.3 General and Regulatory Returns 15
15.3.1LC General and regulatory Returns 15
16 Responsible placement of digital adverts 16
16.1.1 Responsible placement of digital adverts 16
16.1.1LC Responsible placement of digital adverts 16
Conditions and Codes of Practice applicable to Gaming Machine General: Adult Gaming Centres and 37 of 40

Family Entertainment Centres



Page 86

Index of code of practice provisions

Agenda Iltem 5

If using an electronic version of this document, please click on the headings to move

to the relevant provision.

1 General - Cooperation and responsibility for third parties 18
11 Cooperation and responsibility for third parties 18
1.1.10C Cooperation with the Commission 18
1.1.2 SR Responsibility for third parties — all licences 18
2 Financial requirements - Anti-money laundering 18
2.1 Anti-money laundering 18
2.1.20C — other than casino 18
3 Protection of children and other vulnerable persons 19
3.1 Combating problem gambling 19
3.1.1SR Combating problem gambling 19
3.2 Access to gambling by children and young persons 19
3.2.3 SR — AGC SR code 19
3.240C — AGC ordinary code 20
3.25 SR — bingo and FEC SR code 20
3.2.6 OC — bingo and FEC ordinary code 21
3.3 Gambling management tools and responsible gambling 23
information
3.3.1SR Responsible gambling information 23
3.3.20C Responsible gambling information — foreign 23
languages
3.4 Customer interaction 24
3.4.1 SR Customer interaction — SR code 24
3.4.20C Customer interaction — ordinary code 24
3.5 Self-exclusion 26
3.5.1 SR — non-remote and trading rooms SR code 27
3.5.20C — non-remote ordinary code 27
3.5.6 SR — multi-operator non-remote SR code 29
3.5.70C — multi-operator non-remote ordinary code 29
3.6 Employment of children and young persons 29
3.6.50C — AGCs 29
3.6.6 OC — FECs 30
3.8 Money-lending between customers 30
3.8.20C — other than casinos 30
4 ‘Fair and open’ provisions 31
4.1 Fair terms 31
4.1.1 SR Fair terms 31
5 Marketing 31
5.1 Rewards and bonuses 31
5.1.1 SR Rewards and bonuses — SR code 31
5.1.20C Proportionate rewards 31
5.1.6 OC Compliance with advertising codes 32
Conditions and Codes of Practice applicable to Gaming Machine General: Adult Gaming Centres and 38 of 40

Family Entertainment Centres



Page 87 Agenda ltem 5

5.1.7 SR Marketing of offers 32
5.1.8 0C Marketing in proximity to information on 33
responsible gambling

6 Complaints and disputes 33
6.1 Complaints and disputes 33
6.1.1 SR Complaints and disputes 33

7 Gambling licensees’ staff 35
7.1 Gambling licensees’ staff 35
7.1.2 SR Responsible gambling information for staff 35

8 Information requirements 35
8.1 Information requirements 35
8.1.10C Information requirements — ordinary code 35

10 Assessing local risk 36
10.1 Assessing local risk 36
10.1.1 SR Assessing local risk 36

10.1.20C Sharing local risk assessments 36

Conditions and Codes of Practice applicable to Gaming Machine General: Adult Gaming Centres and 39 of 40

Family Entertainment Centres



Page 83 Agenda ltem 5

Keeping gambling fair and safe for all

www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk

Conditions and Codes of Practice applicable to Gaming Machine General: Adult Gaming Centres and 40 of 40
Family Entertainment Centres



Page 89 Agenda ltem 5

Guidance to licensing authorities
5th edition

September 2015

Parts 17, 18 & 18 updated September 2016



Page 30 Agenda Item 5

Contents

The numbers on the right refer to the part and the paragraph number, not page numbers.
Future updates will be provided by section without affecting other paris of the Guidance.

Guidance to licensing authorities
About this Guidance

Part 1: General guidance on the role and responsibilities of licensing authorities

in gambling regulation 1-1
Introduction 1-1
Partnership working between the Commission and licensing authorities —
shared regulation 1-4
Primary legislation 1-14
Licensing authority discretion (s.153 of the Act) 1-23

Part 2: The licensing framework 2-1
Operating licences 2-4
Personal licences 2-12
Premises licences 2-15

Part 3: The Gambling Commission 3-1
The Gambiing Commission 3-1
Relationship between the Commission and licensing authorities 3-6
Further information about the Commission 3-11

Part 4: Licensing authorities 4-1
Statutory framework 4-4

4-9

Licensing authority decisions

Part 5:-Principles to be applied by licensing authorities 5-1
Licensing objectives 5-1
5.153 principles 5-19
Codes of Practice 5-25
Good practice in regulation 5-27
Human Rights Act 1958 5-30
Other considerations 5-31

Part 6: Statement of licensing policy 6-1
Introduction 6-1
Fundamental principies 6-7
Form and content 6-11
Other matters to be considered 6-33
Local risk assessments 6-41
Local area profile G6-47
Declaration by licensing authority 6-54
Consultation 6-56
Reviewing and updating the statement of policy 6-62
Advertising and publication 8-67
Additional information to be made available 6-69

Part 7: Premises licences 7-1
Fremises 7-3
Access to premises 7-19
Access to gambling by children and young people 7-24
Multiple activity premises — layout and access 7-31
Single and combined licences 7-36
Applications 7-40

Consideration of planning permission and building regulations 7-58



Page 91 Agenda ltem 5

Part 8: Responsible authorities and interested parties — definitions
Responsible authorities
Interested parties

Part 2: Premises licence conditions
Conditions and authorisations by virtue of the Act
Conditions attached through regulations made by the Secretary of State
or Scottish Ministers — all premises
Default conditions
Conditions that may not be attached to premises licences by licensing
authorities

Part 10: Review of premises licence by licensing authority
Initiation of review by licensing authority
Application for a review
Carrying out a review

Part 11: Provisional statements

Part 12: Rights of appeal and judicial review
Giving reasons for decisions
Premises licences
Permits
Temporary use notices
Judicial review

Part 13: Information exchange
Underlying principles ‘
Information licensing authorities provide to the Commission
Other licensing authority information requirements
Information the Commission makes available to licensing authorities

Part 14: Temporary use notices
Procedure
Appeals
Endorsement of the notice
Large evenis

Part 15: Occasional use notices
What constitutes a track
Use {and misuse) of OUNs
Procedure

Part 16: Gaming machines
Categories of gaming machines
Age restrictions
Maximum number of machines by premises type
Multiple Activity Sites
The meaning of ‘available for use’
Machines other than gaming machines in gambling premises

8-1
8-2
8-9

9-1
9-4

9-19
9-27

0-32

10-1
10-5
10-11
10-18

111

12-1
12-2
12-4
12-14
12-31
12-34

13-1
13-1
13-3
13-13
13-17

14-1
14-6
14-22
14-23
14-28

15-1
15-2
15-4
15-8

16-1

16-10
16-11
16-12
16-13
16-16
16-23



Page 92 Agenda Item 5

Part 17: Casinos 17-1
Casino premises 17-1
Casino games 17-6
Protection of children and young persons 17-10
The process for issuing casino premises licences 17-11
Resoclutions not to issue casino licences 17-26
Converted casinos (with preserved rights under schedule 18 of the Act) 17-30
Casino premises licence conditions 17-33
Default conditions attaching to all casino premises licences 17-54
Licence condition 16 (primary gambling activity) 17-55

Part 18; Bingo 18-1
Protection of children and young persons 18-6
Gaming machines 18-8
Bingo in clubs and alcohol-licensed premises 18-12
Bingo in casinos 18-16
Bingo premises licence conditions 18-17
Licence condition 16 (primary gambling activity) 18-24

Part 19: Betting premises 19-1
Protection of children and young persons 19-4
Gaming machines 19-5
Self-Service Betting Terminals 19-6
Betting premises licence conditions 19-11
Licence condition 16 (primary gambling activity) 19-21
Industry codes 19-26

Part 20: Tracks 20-1
Definition of a track 20-1
Track premises licences — differences from other premises licences 20-7
Betting on tracks 20-16
Licences and other permissions for the provision of betting facilities 20-22
Betting on event and non-event days 20-26
Social responsibility considerations for tracks 20-32
Gaming machines 20-36
Self Service Betting Terminals 20-42
Applications 20-46
Licence Conditions and requiremsanis 20-71

Part 21: Adult gaming centres 21-1
Protection of children and young persons 21-2
Gaming machines 21-4
AGC premises licence conditions 21-7

Part 22: Licensed family entertainment centres 221
Protection of children and young persons 22-2
Meaning of premises 22-5
Licensed FEC premises licence conditions 22-8

Part 23: Introduction to perh‘lits 231



Page 93 Agenda ltem 5

Part 24: Unlicensed family entertainment centres
Applying for a permit
Granting or refusing a permit
Lapse, surrender and forfeiture
Renewal
Maintenance

Part 25: Clubs
Defining clubs
Bingo in clubs
Beiting in clubs
Exempt gaming
Protection of children and young persons
Permits
Appeals

Part 26: Premises licensed to seil alcohol
Automatic entitlement to two machines
Licensed premises gaming machine permits
Exempt gaming
Bingo
Betting
Commission codes of practice
Scotland
Protection of children and young persons
Prohibited gaming

Part 27: Prize gaming and prize gaming permits
Prize gaming
Application for a prize gaming petrmit

Part 28: Non-commercial and private gaming, betting and lotteries
Non-commercial gaming
Non-commercial prize gaming
Non-commercial squal chance gaming
Private gaming
Non-commercial and private betting
MNon-commercial ‘casinc nights’
Non-commercial ‘race nights’

Part 29: Poker
Introduction
Poker in casinos
Poker as exempt gaming in clubs and alcohol-licensed premises
Poker as non-commercial gaming
Poker as private gaming
Advertising

Part 30: Travelling fairs
Part 31: Crown immunity and excluded premises
Part 32: Territorial application of the Gambling Act 2005

Part 33: Door supervision

24-1
24-6
24-9
24-14
24-19
24-21

25-1
25-1
25-7
25-8
25-10
25-22
25-23
25-72

26-1

26-4

26-8

26-23
26-28
26-30
26-34
26-39
26-41
26-45

27-1
27-1
27-9

28-1
28-2
28-7
28-9
28-10
28-16
28-17
28-26

29-1
29-1
29-5
29-10
29-33
29-46
29-52

3041
311
3241

33-1



Page 94 Agenda ltem 5

Part 34: Small society lotteries 34-1
The status of lotteries under the Act 34-2
Licensing authority guidance 34-10
Social responsibility 34-11
External lottery managers’ licence status 34-15
Lottery tickets 34-19
Prizes 34-23
Specific offences in relation to [otteries 34-25
Application and registration process for small society lotteries 34-28
Administration and returns 34-48

Part 35: Chain gift schemes 35-1
Street collectors selling gamecards 35-5

Part 36: Compliance and enforcement 361
Fees 36-1
Enforcement officers and authorised persons 36-6
Powers of entry — England and Wales 36-13
Powers of entry — Scotland 36-18
llegal gambling 36-23
Test purchasing and age verification 36-28
Primary authority 36-36
Prosecutions 36-40
Other powers 36-44

Appendix A: Summary of machine provisions by premises
Appendix B: Summary of gaming machine categories and entitlements

Appendix C: Summary of gaming entitlements for clubs and alcohoi-licensed
premises

Appendix D: Summary of offences under the Gambling Act 2005
Appendix E: Summary of statutory application forms and notices
Appendix F: Inspection powers

Appendix G: Licensing authority delegations
Appendix H: Poker games and prizes

Appendix |: Glossary of terms



Page95  ° Agenda Item 5

Guidance to licensing authorities

About this Guidance

This Guidance is the Gambling Commission’s (the Commission) statutory Guidance o
Licensing Authorities (Guidance) issued under s.25 of the Gambling Act 2005 (the Act), which
requires the Commission to issue guidance on the manner in which local authorities are o

exercise their functions under the Act.

This Guidance has a particular role and significance in the context of the principles that must be
applied by licensing authorities when exercising their functions in relation to Part 8 of the Act,
including premises licensing. That is because s.153 of the Act provides that licensing
authorities shall aim to permit the use of premises for gambling in so far as they think it:

in accordance with any relevant code of practice under s. 24

in accordance with any relevant guidance issued by the Commission under s. 25
reasonably consistent with the licensing objectives (subject to a and b above}, and

in accordance with the statement published by the authority under s. 349 (statement of
licensing policy) (subject to paragraphs a to ¢ above).

opEp

So, in carrying out its functions under the Act, a licensing authority must have regard to this
Guidance (s.153(b}).

To avoid duplication, the Guidance should be read in conjunction with the Act and explanatory
notes, relevant secondary legislation and the Gambling Commission’s Licence Conditions and
Codes of Practice (LCCP). The Commission’s website provides links to relevant legislation and

regulations.

The aim of this Guidance is to ensure that every licensing authotity has the information it needs
to make effective decisions. It does not seek to impose a ‘one size fits all’ model across all
licensing authorities. We recognise that every licensing authority is different and will have
different views about how it wishes to manage gambling locally. Indeed, the Act establishes a
high degree of local accountability for gambling regulation.

This Guidance does not, therefore, attempt to fetter the discretion that licensing authorities
have under the Act and it is not intended io replace their judgement in individual cases.
Moreover, this Guidance cannot anticipate every set of circumstances that may arise and, as
long as it has been understood and taken into account, licensing authorities may depart from it
where they consider it would be right to do so. There should, however, be strong reasons for
departing from this Guidance and these need to be clearly expressed and explained if a
licensing authority is to avoid judicial review or challenge on appeal for failing to take this
Guidance into account.

In the interests of conciseness, this Guidance attempts to focus on issues relating specifically
to gambling regulation and to avoid replicating advice on issues that apply more widely to local
authorities, for example managing conflicts of interest.

Licensing authorities should note that interpretation of the Act is ultimately a matter for the
Courts. This Guidance is not a substitute for licensing authorities’ own legal advice on the
application and interpretation of the Act.



1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

Page 96

Part 1: General guidance 6n the role and responsibilities of
licensing authorities in gambling regulation

Introduction

When the Gambling Act 20057 (the Act) came into force in late 2007, it brought in a
new, comprehensive system for gambling regulation in Great Britain. For the first time,
the vast majority of commercial gambling was brought together into a single regulatory
framework. The Act established a dedicated regulator, at a national level, in the form of
the Gambling Commission {the Commission). But it also recognised the potential local
impact and importance of gambling. So it created many local regulators, whose job it is
to manage gambling locally, in line with local circumstances. Those regulators are the
380 licensing authorities of England, Wales and Scotland. In doing so, the Act
established a strong element of local decision-making and accountability in gambling
regulation.

The Act gives local regulators very broad discretion to manage local gambiing provision,
including discretion as to the level of fees set to cover the cost of administering the local
system of regulation. It sets out some boundaries to that discretion, consistent with the
recognition of gambling as a mainstream leisure acfivity.

The Act also provides scope for the Commission to act to set an overall direction at
national level, while leaving licensing authorities in the lead locally, with appropriate
support from the Commission. This Guidance to Licensing Authorities (Guidance), to
which licensing authorities must have regard, is an important part of those
arrangements.

Partnership working between the Commission and licensing
authorities — shared regulation

The Commission works in partnership with licensing authorities to regulate gambling. In
doing so, the Commission will tend to focus on operators and issues of national or
regional significance, and licensing authorities will take the lead on regulating gambling
locally. The Commission and licensing authorities may work directly together on
particular issues, for example where it may establish a precedent or help build capacity
and learning to be rolled out more widely.

The Commission draws on, and shares, the intelligence and insights of its regulatory
partners, in particular licensing authorities, who may well be better positioned to identify
emerging risks to the licensing objectives or instances of illegality which can start at a
local level. By working closely together we are able to prevent such risks growing into a
more widespread problem and to ensure that both Commission and licensing authority
resources are used efficiently.

In the Commission’s view, the statutory duty to aim to permit gambling, subject to
reasonable consistency with the licensing objectives, is best delivered through
partnership working between industry and regulator, including licensing authorities.
Licensing authorities should aim to work with local businesses to reduce the risk to the
licensing objectives to acceptable levels. The Act does not envisage regulation by either
the Commission or licensing authorities being aimed at preventing legitimate gambling.

12005 ¢.19 Gambling Act 2005

Agenda Item 5



1.7

1.8

1.9

1.10

111

112

1.13

Page 97 Agenda Iltem 5

Further, the Commission was not established, and is not resourced, to lead on local
gambling regulation. Licensing authorities have the power to coliect fees, subject to
statutory maxima, to cover the costs of local gambling regulation. In addition, local
regulation is more cost effective and licensing authorities are better placed to
understand and manage local issues. So, while the Commission aims to adopt a
position of support and assistance for licensing authorities in carrying out their functions,
that is in the context of licensing authorities taking the lead on local regulation of
gambling.

This is reflected in the Commission’s approach to representations on premises licence
applications. Neither licensing authorities nor operators should take the absence of a
specific representation on particular application as indicating the Commission’s approval
of that application. However, exceptionally, where an application for a premises licence,
or the operation of a current premises licence, raises matters of wider or national
significance, the Commission will consider making representations or requesting a
licence review. The Commission may also comment on an application if it has particular
observations about an operator. The Commission will aim to work with the relevant
licensing autherity in formulating any representation it wishes to make.

In many instances, effective outcomes will depend on close co-operation and
communication between the Commission and licensing authorities. Ultimately, however,
the responsibility for every licensing decision rests with the licensing authority itself, in
line with the principle of local accountability.

Co-ordination and contact

To facilitate co-operation, the Commission has established a Local Authority Liaison
Unit. The Unit is available fo advise licensing authorities on matters relating to gambling
regulation. It coordinates a series of activities designed to promote more effective
gambling regulation, for example workshops and training sessions for licensing
authorities, regular up-to-date advice and support such as a series of ‘quick guides’ on
specific subjects. The Commission also publishes a monthly ‘LA Bulletin’, which aims fo
provide licensing authorities with up-to-date information on gambling and its regulation,
and to share good practice. The Unit can be contacted using the general contact email
info@gamblingcommission.gov.uk,

The Commission also has in place a small network of field-based staff. An important
part of their role is to facilitate effective working relationships between the Commission
and licensing authorities.

As well as working directly with individual licensing authorities, the Commission seeks to
engage frequently with representative bodies such as the Local Government
Association (LGA), the Convention of Scottish Local Authorities (COSLA), the Welsh
Local Government Association (WLGA), the Society of Local Authority Lawyers and
Administrators (SOLAR), and the Institute of Licensing (loL). These meetings provide
opportunities to review regulatory policy and to discuss emerging trends and issues of
concern.

Since the Act was introduced a great deal of collective experience and insight has been
developed, enabling licensing authorities and the Commission to fulfil their roles within
the shared regulatory system more effectively and efficiently. Case studies available on
the Commission’s website provide examples of successful multi-agency initiatives
undertaken by the Commission and its regulafory pariners.




1.14

1.15

1.16

1.17

1.18

1.19

1.20

Primary legislation

The primary legislation governing gambling in Great Britain is the Act. It covers England,
Wales and Scotland, but not Northern Ireland, which has its own arrangements.

The overall approach of the Act is to state that gambling is unlawful in Great Britain,
unless permitted by:
« the measures contained in the Act, in relation to most commercial gambling
« the measures contained in the National Lottery etc Act 1993, in the case of the
National Lottery :
» the measures contained in the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000, in the
case of spread betting.

This approach should be considered in the context of the statutory aim fo permit
gambling, as set out at paragraph 1.19 below.

The Act establishes two comprehensive offences: providing facilities for gambling or
using premises for gambling without the appropriate permission. Such permission may
come from a licence, permit, or registration granted in accordance with the Act or from
an exemption given by the Act. Where authority to provide facilities for gambling is
granted, it is subject to varying degrees of regulation, depending on the type of
gambling, the means by which it is conducted, and the people by whom and to whom it
is offered.

The Act is designed, as far as possible, to be flexible and future-proof. In practice, this
means that in many areas the Act sets a framework, with more detailed rules set out in
regulations made under the Act. A comprehensive list of requlations can be found on
the Commission’s website.

In addition, the Gambling {Licensing and Advertising) Act 20142 came into force on 1
November 2014 and amends the Act. It requires gambling operators that fransact with
or advertise to British consumers to obtain a licence from the Commission. The Act (as
amended) has implications for remote operators and does not impact the powers or
authority of licensing authorities. For further information, please refer to the Commission
guidance on implementing the Gambling (Licensing and Advertising) Act.

Statutory aim to permit gambling

The Act places a legal duty on both the Commission and licensing authorities to aimto
permit gambling, in so far as it is considered to be reasonably consistent with the
licensing objectives. The effect of this duty is that both the Commission and licensing
authorities must approach their functions in a way that seeks fo regulate gambling by
using their powers, for example, powers to attach conditions to licences, to moderate its
impact on the licensing objectives rather than by starting out to prevent it altogether.

The licensing objectives

The three licensing objectives (s.1 of the Act) which guide the way that the Commission
and licensing authorities perform their functions and the way that gambling businesses
carry on their activities, are:
« preventing gambling from being a source of crime or disorder, being associated
with crime or disorder, or being used o support crime '
» ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way
e protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or exploited
by gambling.

22014 ©.17 Gambling {Licensing and Advertising} Act 2014

Page 98 Agenda Iltem 5



1.21

1.22

1.23

1.24

1.25

1.26

1.27

1.28

Page 99 Agenda ltem 5

Codes of practice

The Commission has the power to issue two types of code of praciice. The first is a
social responsibility (SR) code. A SR code must be followed and has the force of a
licence condition. The Commission may also issue ordinary codes (OC) which are
intended to set out industry best practice. They are not mandatory but operators are
expected to follow them uniess they have alternative arrangements in place that they
can demonstrate are equally effective. Both codes are set out in the Commission’s
Licence Conditions and Codes of Practice (LCCP) or as Gambling codes of practice -
congolidated for all forms of gambling.

S.153 of the Act requires licensing authorities, in exercising their functions, té have
regard to the Code of Practice.

Licensing authority discretion (s.153 of the Act)

Licensing authorities have a broad discretion to regulate local provision of gambling and
the Act gives wide-ranging powers to do so. Those include the power:
+ to issue a statement of licensing policy, setiing expectations about how gambling
will be regulated in a particular area
s to grant, refuse and attach conditions to premises licences
« to review premises licences and attach conditions or revoke them as a result.

In exercising its functions under the Act, s.153 states that the licensing authority shall
aim to permit the use of premises for gambling in so far as it thinks it:
a. in accordance with any relevant code of practice under s.24
b. in accordance with any relevant guidance issued by the Commission under $.25
c. reasonably consistent with the licensing objectives (subject to a. and b. above),
and
d. in accordance with the licensing authority’s statement of licensing policy
(statement of policy} (subject to a. to c. above).

The “aim to permit’ framework provides wide scope for licensing authorities to impose
conditions on a premises licence, reject, review or revoke premises licences where
there is a potential conflict with the relevant codes of practice, relevant Guidance
issued by the Commission, the licensing objectives or the licensing authorities own
statement of policy.

Licence conditions are one method by which it is possible to mitigate risks associated
with particular premises. The imposition of licence conditions might be prompted by
local risk to the licensing objectives, for example the proximity of gambling premises to
a school.

However, licensing authorities may first wish to have proactive engagement with local
operators to encourage them to effectively mitigate risks to the licensing objectives.
Such engagement can facilitate an open and constructive partnership which, in turn,
can improve compliance and reduce regulatory costs.

To reflect the breadth of licensing autherity discretion, licensing authorities are entitied
to request such information from operators as they may require in order to make
effective licensing decisions. The Act requires that an application must be accompanied
by a minimum level of information (detailed in Part 7 of this Guidance). In the
Commission’s view, however, this does not preclude reasonable requests from licensing
authorities for additional information to satisfy themselves that their licensing decision is
reasonably consistent with the licensing objectives and the Commission’s codes. That
information may include, for example, a suitable business plan or the operator's own
assessment of risk to the licensing objectives locally.



Page100 - Agenda Item 5

Local risk assessments

1.29 To improve the exchange of informaticn between licensing authorities and operators,
the Commission has introduced SR code provisions to the LCCP that require operators
of premises-based businesses to conduct local risk assessments (SR 10.1.1), and an
ordinary code provision that says licensees should share their risk assessments with
licensing authorities in certain circumstances (OC 10.1.2).

Statement of licensing policy

1.30 The statement of licensing policy (statement of policy) is a very important part of the
architecture of local gambling regulation and it is expected that licensing authorities will
use it to set out the local issues, priorities and risks that inform and underpin its
approach to local regulation.

1.31 It provides the opportunity for licensing authorities to agree and set out how gambiing is
to be managed in different parts of the local authority area to deal with local risks and
issues. It provides clarity of expectation for licensees and prospective licensees about
how their businesses are likely to be treated in different localities. The existence of a
clear and agreed statement of policy will provide greater scope for licensing authorities
to work in partnership with local businesses, communities, and responsible authorities
to identify and mitigate local risks to the licensing objectives.

1.32 The statement of policy is the primary vehicle for setting out the licensing authority’s
approach to regulation having taken into account local circumstances. It ensures that
operators have sufficient awareness and understanding of the relevant licensing
authority’s requirements and approach, including its’ view on local risks, to help them
comply with local gambling regulation.

1.33 More detail on licensing authorities’ statement of policy is set out at Part 6 of this
Guidance.

Limits on licensing authority discretion

1.34 Licensing authorities are subject to some specific constraints in exercising their
functions. As set out at paragraph 1.25, 5.153 of the Act provides that licensing
authorities shall aim to permit the use of premises for gambling in so far as they think it
in accordance with the principles set out in s.153(a) to (d).

1.35 Therefore a licensing authority has no discretion to grant a premises licence where that
would mean taking a course which it did not think accorded with the Guidance
contained in this document, any relevant Commission code of practice, the licensing
objectives or the licensing authority’s own statement of policy.

1.36 In addition, the Act makes specific reference to factors that must not be considered by a
licensing authority in exercising its functions under s.153:
» the expected demand for facilities (s.153(2))
« whether the application is to be permitted in accordance with law relating to
planning or building (s.210 (1})).

Other powers

1.37 As stated, licensing authorities have a broad discretion to regulate local provision of
gambling and they have similar regulatory powers to the Commission with respect to
their licensees, including the power to impose conditions and to review licences. They
are not able to impose financial penalties but can impose fees relating to the costs of
local regulation. They also have wider powers under legislation such as the Licensing
Act 2003.



Page 101 Agenda Item 5

1.38 The Act gives licensing authorities a number of other important regulatory functions in
relation to gambling. Their main functions are to:

issue a statement of licensing policy setting expectations of how gambling will be
regulated in the area

licence premises for gambling activities

consider notices given for the temporary use of premises for gambling

grant permits for gaming and gaming machines in clubs and miners’ welfare
institutes

regulate gaming and gaming machines in alcohol-licensed premises

grant permits to family entertainment centres (FECs) for the use of certain lower
stake gaming machines

grant permits for prize gaming

consider occasional use notices for betting at tracks

register small societies’ lotteries that fall below certain thresholds

set and collect fees.



241

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

Page 102

Part 2: The licensing framework

The Act creates three types of licence:
« operating licences, which are required by businesses in order to provide
gambling facilities lawfully
« personal licences, which are required by some people working in the gambling
industry
« premises licences, which are required to authorise premises o provide gambling
facilities.

The Commission has responsibility for granting operating and personal licences for
commercial gambling operators and personnel working in the industry.

Licensing authorities have responsibility for licensing gambling premises within their
area, as well as undertaking functions in relation to lower stake gaming machines in

clubs and miners’ welfare institutes. In England and Wales, local authorities have these -

responsibiiities; in Scotland they have been given to licensing boards. The Act also
provides a system of temporary and occasional use notices. These enable licensing
authorities to authorise premises where there is no gambling premises licence in place,
to be used for certain types of gambling for limited periods. Parts 14 and 15 provide
more information on temporary and occasional use notices.

Operating licences

Types of operating licence

There are various types of operating licence, linked to different types of gambling
activity. .65 of the Act sets out the types of operating licence that may be issued.
Some types of gambling activity may be provided remotely, for example over the
internet (‘online’ gambling) or telephone, or non-remotely such as in land based
premises. Some types of licence provide additional permissions, for example to make
particular numbers and types of gaming machine available.

Different activities may be authorised by a single operating licence (a ‘combined’
operating licence) but a single ficence cannot authorise both remote and non-remote
activity. The different types of licence and their associated permissions are summarised
inn the table below:

Agenda ltem 5

- _|. Non-remote .| Remote gambling
" gambling | authorised -
: P ‘authorised R
Casino operating licence X X
Bingo operating licence X X
General betting operating licence X X
Pool betting operating licence X X
Betting intermediary operating licence X X
Gaming machine general operating licence for X
an aduli gaming centre
Gaming machine general operating licence for X
a family entertainment centre
Gaming machine technical operating licence X X*
Gambling software operating licence X X*
Lottery operating licence X X

* by means of remote communication



Page 103 Agenda Item 5

2.6 Operating licences are not transferable. However, there are provisions in the Act which
deal with circumstances in which control of a company changes hands.

How operating licences are granted

2.7 The Commission, like licensing authorities, has a statutory duty to permit gambling
insofar as it thinks it is reasonably consistent with the licensing objectives. In
considering whether to grant an operating licence, and any conditions that may be
attached, the Commission has regard to the licensing objectives, and to the suitability of
the applicant, in terms of integrity, competence and finances (including source of
finance). The Commission also takes into account the business model proposed and its
likely compatibility with the law and the licensing objectives. Putting forward a business
model that is incompatible with the licensing objectives is likely to lead to questions of
the operator’s suitability.

2.8 More detail is available in the Commission's Policy Statement for Licensing, Compliance
and Enforcement.

Operating licence conditions and codes

2.9  Conditions covering a range of matters may be attached fo operating licences. Some
conditions are set out on the face of the Act, such as the mandatory conditions relating
to society lotteries at 5.99. The Secretary of State has powers under .78 of the Act to
apply conditions to a class of operating licence — for example, the condition that
regulates the number of playing positions at wholly automated roulette tables in casinos.
The Commission also has powers to attach conditions either to a class of operating
licences, or an individual licence.

210 Breaching a licence condition is a criminal offence, although the Commission will default
to its regulatory rather than criminal powers when considering such a breach. Those
powers include warnings, unlimited fines and suspension or revocation of the licence.

211 The Commission also has the power to issue two types of code. The first is a social
responsibility (SR) code. An SR code must be followed and has the force of a licence
condition. The Commission may also issue ordinary codes (OC), which are intended to
set out best industry practice. They are not mandatory but operators are expected fo
follow them unless they have alternative arrangements in place that they can
demonstrate are at least equally effective. Both codes are available in the Commission’s
Licence Conditions and Codes of Practice (LCCP).

Personal licences

2.12 The purpose of the personal licence is to ensure that individuals who control facilities for
gambling or are able to influence the outcome of gambling, are directly accountable to
the Commission. The Commission can impose licence conditions that are specific to
personal licences. Such conditions include requirements that the holder takes
reasonable steps to avoid causing a breach of an operating licence, keeps up to date
with developments in gambling legislation or guidance, and informs the Commission of
certain specified key events.

2.13 Outside the casino industry, personal licences are usually held by people in key
management positions like strategy, marketing, finance and compliance. In the casino
industry, people providing the day to day gambling such as croupiers, also currently
need a personal licence.




2.14

2.15

2.16

2147

2.18

2.19

2.20

Page 104

Some licences are subject to a requirement that at least one member of management
holds a personal licence. This does not apply to small-scale operators, as defined in
regulations made by the Secretary of State®, who are exempt from the obligation.

Premises licences

Where an individual or company uses premises, or causes or permits premises to be
used, to offer gambling, they will also need to apply for a premises licence. Defailed
information concerning premises licences can be found in Parts 7, 9 and 10 of this
Guidance.

Premises licences, and the regulatory tools associated with them, are a key means by
which licensing authorities can ensure that risks to the licensing objectives are mitigated

effectively.

Premises licences can be granted without conditions or subject to conditions, and can
be reviewed or revoked by the licensing authority. Part 9 of this Guidance provides
some illustrations of how licence conditions have been used by licensing authorities in a
range of circumstances.

Premises licences are issued by the licensing authority with responsibility for the area in
which the premises are situated and may authorise the provision of facilities on:

* casino premises '

¢ hingo premises

» beiting premises, including tracks

+ adult gaming centres

« family entertainment ¢centres.

Except in the case of tracks {(where the occupier of the track who holds the premises
licence may not be the person who actually offers the gambling), premises licences may
only be issued to those who hold a relevant operating licence, or who have applied for
one. Premises licences may be transferred to someone else holding a valid operating
licence.

In addition to licences, there are other forms of authorisation that a licensing authority
may grant, for example, authorisations for the temporary use of premises, occasional
use notices and different permits for unlicensed family entertainment centres, prize
gaming, gaming machines on alcohol-licensed premises and club gaming and club
machine permits.

3 81 2006/3266: Reg 2 of the Gambling Act 2005 (Definition of Small-scale Operator) Regulations 2006

Agenda Item 5



9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

9.5

9.6

9.7

9.8

Page 105 Agenda Item 5

Part 9: Premises licence conditions

The Act provides that licences may be subject to conditions in a number of ways:
« they may attach automatically, having been set out on the face of the Act
« they may attach through regulations made by the Secretary of State or Scottish
Ministers
+ they may be attached to operating and personal licences by the Commission
+ they may be attached to premises licences by licensing authorities.

Conditions may sometimes be general in nature attaching to all licences or all licences
of a particular class, or they may be specific to a particular licence.

Conditions on premises licences should relate only to gambling, as considered
appropriate in the light of the principles to be applied by licensing authorities under
s.153. Accordingly, if the Commission’s Licence Conditions and Codes of Practice
(LCCP) or other legislation places particular responsibilities or restrictions on an
employer or the operator of premises, it is not appropriate to impose the same through
conditions on a premises licence.

Conditions and authorisations by virtue of the Act

The following paragraphs set out specific sections of the Act that provide for conditions
to be attached automatically to premises licences, or for authorisations to be granted
automatically. The Secretary of State / Scottish Ministers may make regulations
requiring these conditions to be set out on the premises licence, and there is no
discretion to decide not to include them or to modify them. The table after paragraph
9.18 summarises which sections of the Act apply to which types of premises licences.

S.172 — number of gaming machines

S.172 provides for premises licences to permit a specified number of gaming machines
of particular categories in each type of gambling premises. These pemissions are set
out in detail in Part 16 of this Guidance.

5.173 — betting on virtual events

$.173 authorises the holder of a casino premises licence or a betting premises licence
to make facilities available for betting on virtual events. This is separate from betfing on
virtual events by means of a gaming machine. It is intended to cover facilities such as
virtual horse and greyhound racing which are person-to-person transactions, involving
virtual images that are not displayed on a machine.

$.174 -- gambling in addition to casino games

S.174 authorises the holder of a casino premises licence for a small or large casino to
make available the following types of gambling in addition to casino games:
* equal chance games
» betiing — but not in pre-2005 Act casinos with grandfather rights and only with a
betting operating licence
« bingo — but only in large casinos and only with a bingo operating licence.

For the purposes of the Act, equal chance games are ones which do not involve playing
or staking against a bank and in which the chances are equally favourable to all players.
Licensing authorities must not restrict the equal chance gaming available nor prohibit
casino games that have not been prohibited by the Commission. Part 17 of this
Guidance provides details of the casino games authorised by the Commission.




Page 106

Agenda Item 5

S.176 — access by children and young persons to casinos

9.9 S.176 requires the Commission to issue at least one code of practice about access to
casino premises for children and young persons. In particular, the code must:

» specify steps that the premises licence holder must take to ensure that under-
18s do not enter casino premises, including ensuring that each entrance to the
casino is supervised by at least one person who is responsible for compliance
with the code of practice

« require that, unless the supervisor is certain that a person seeking admittance is
an adult, evidence of age must be provided by those seeking to enter the casino
or gambling area.

90.10 S.176 makes it a condition of the premises licence that the licensee must comply with
the code of practice issued by the Commission. Licensing authorities should note that
the requirement under s.176 for supervision at each entrance is separate to any other
condition that may be attached relating to ‘door supervision’ more generally.

S$.177 — giving of credit

811 S.177 attaches a condition to casino premises licences and bingo premises licences
that prohibits the licensee from:
» giving credit in connection with the gambling taking place on the premises
« participating in, arranging, permitting or knowingly facilitating the giving of credit
in connection with the gambling on the premises.

9.12 However, s.177 does not prevent the licensee from contracting a third party to install
cash dispensers (ATMs) on their premises, which may accept both credit and debit
cards. Such an arrangement is subject to requirements that the premises licence holder
has no other commercial connection in relation to gambling with the provider of the
ATMs (aside from the agreement to site the machines), does not profit from the
arrangement, and does not make any payment in connection with the machines. All
premises licences also include a mandatory condition which requires that any ATM
made available for use on the premises must be located in a place that requires any
customer who wishes to use it to cease gambling in order to do so?'.

9.13 S.177 deals with the prohibition of credit in respect of casino and bingo premises
licences. However equivalent prohibitions are placed on bingo and casino operating
licences, as set out in $.81 of the Act, credit and inducements.

S.178 — door supervision

9.14 If a licensing authority attaches a condition relating to door supervision, and the person
carrying out those duties are required by the Private Security Industry Act 2001 (PSIA)
to hold a licence, s. 178 of the Gambling Act 2005 prescribes that the requirement
under PSIA will be treated as if it were a condition of the premises licence. There is,
however, an exemption from the PSIA licensing requirement for in-house employees
working as door supervisors at casino and bingo premises, details of which can be
found in Part 33 of this Guidance.

9.15 S.178 defines door supervision as requiring someone to be responsible for ‘guarding
the premises against unauthorised access or occupation, against outbreaks of disorder

or against damage’.

21 part 1¢5) of The Gambling Act 2005 (Mandatery and Default Conditions) Regulations



Page 107

S.179 — pool betting

Agenda Item 5

8.16 S.179 provides that a betting premises licence in respect of a track may not authorise
pool betting to take place, other than in respect of dog or horse racing and only where
the acceptance of bets is by the holder of the betting premises licence, or in accordance
with arrangements made by them. In the case of dog racing, this preserves the existing
arrangements at dog tracks where the totalisator is operated by or on behalf of the
occupier of the track. In the case of horse racing, poo! betting can only be made
available at racetracks by Betfred following their purchase of the Tote. As part of the
sale process Betfred received an exclusive seven year licence (until July 2018) to

operate pool betting operations on UK racecourses.

$.182 — access by children and young persons to tracks

9.17 S.182 applies only to a betting premises licences in respect of tracks. It requires the
licensee to ensure that children and young persons are excluded from any area in which
facilities for betting are provided and from any area where a gaming machine (other
than a category D gaming machine} is situated. The exception to this, for beiting areas
only, is on race days at dog and horse racing tracks, that is on those days when racing
occurs or is expected to take place. In those cases, under-18s may have access to
betting areas but licensing authorities should note that this exception does not affect the

prohibition on betting by children and young persons.

$.183 - Christmas day

9.18 S.183 applies a condition to all premises licences that facilities for gambling must not be
provided on Christmas Day, namely the period of 00.01 hours on 25 December untit
00.00 hours on 26 December.

Type of premiseés.
licence: - . ; ]

.. Section of the Act .. w0

6172 | 5173 | s.174

$.176

5177

5.178

s.17

5182 [ 5.183

Ali premises licences

X

X

X

Bingo premises licence

X

Casino premises licence

X

Small casinos

Large casinos

K[

Betting premises licence

Betiing premises licence
in respect of a frack

Conditions attached through regulations made by the Secretary

of State or Scottish Ministers — all premises

9.19 The Secretary of State and Scottish Ministers have set out conditions to be attached to
all premises licences in the Gambling Act 2005 (Mandatory and Default Conditions)
(England and Wales) Regulations 2007 and the Gambling Act 2005 {Mandatory and
Default Conditions) (Scotland) Regulations 2007.%

9.20 Conditions under these Regulations fall into two categories:

« mandatory conditions made under s.167 of the Act that must be attached to
premises licences

» default conditions made under s.168 of the Act, that attach to the premises
licence unless the licensing authority decides to exclude them, using its powers

under 5.169.

22 gf 2007/1409: Gambling Act 2005 (Mandatory and Default Conditions) (England and Wales) Regulations 2007
$81 2007/266; Gambling Act 2005 (Mandatory and Default Conditions(Scotland) Regulafions 2007




9.21

9.22

9.23

9.24

9.25

9.26

8.27

Page 108 Agenda Item 5

Licensing authorities should note that mandatory conditions made under these
regulations are set with the intention that no further regulation in relation to that matter is
required. Therefore, it is extremely unlikely that licensing authorities will need to impose
individual conditions in relation to matters that are already dealt with by mandatory
conditions. Licensing authorities should only consider doing so where there are
regulatory concems of an exceptional nature, and any additional licence conditions
must relate to the licensing objectives.

Mandatory conditions applying to all premises licences are set out at paragraph 9.25
onwards. In addition, there are mandatory conditions that relate to particular category of
premises licences. Details of these can be found in Parts 17-22 of this Guidance.

Licensing authorities have more flexibility in relation to default conditions and may
exclude a default condition and substitute it with one that is either more or less
restrictive. Licensing authorities should note, however, that defauit conditions are
intended to reflect normal industry operating practices. In circumstances where default
conditions are excluded, the Commission would generally expect them to be replaced
by other conditions, given the requirements of s.153. Where the condition is more
restrictive, the licensing authority should ensure that they have clear regulatory reasons
doing so.

Default conditions under the regulations set out above relate to particular categories of
premises licence and details can be found in Parts 17-22 of this Guidance.

Mandatory conditions

The following mandatory conditions apply to all premises licences:
» the summary of the terms and conditions of the premises licence issued by the
licensing authority must be displayed in a prominent place on the premises
» the layout of the premises must be maintained in accordance with the plan that
forms part of the premises licence .
« neither National Lottery products nor tickets in a private or customer lottery may
be sold on the premises.

There are also mandatory conditions attaching to each type of premises licence
controlling access between premises. There can be no direct access between one
premises licensed under the Act and another premises licensed under the Act, with the
foliowing exceptions:
¢ between licensed betting premises
« between bingo premises and alcohol-licensed premises/clubs with a club gaming
or club machine permit/family entertainment centres (FECs) and tracks
» between tracks and alcohol-licensed premises/clubs with a club gaming or club
machine permit/FECs/betting premises and bingo premises
« between FECs and alcohol-licensed premises/bingo halls/clubs with club gaming
or club machine permit and fracks.

Default conditions

S.169 of the Act gives licensing authorities:
s the ability to exclude from premises licences any default conditions that have
been imposed under s.168
« the power to impose conditions on premises licences that they issue.



8.28

9.29

9.30

8.31

9.32

Page 109 Agenda Item 5

Licensing authorities should make decisions on conditions on a case-by-case basis, and
in the context of the principles of s.153. They must aim to permit the use of premises for
gambling and so should not attach conditions that limit their use except where it is
necessary in accordance with the licensing objectives, the Commission’s codes of
practice and this Guidance, or their own statement of policy. Conversely, licensing
authorities should not turn down applications for premises licences where relevant
objections can be dealt with through the use of conditions.

Licensing authority statements of policy will need to consider the local circumstances
which might give rise to the need for conditions. Where there are specific risks
associated with a particular locality, the licensing authority might decide to attach
conditions to the premises licence to mitigate those risks. For example, local issues
associated with a high crime rate may put a premises at risk of not being consistent with
the licensing objectives, and specific conditions may be necessary to address the risk.

Where there are risks associated with a specific premises or class or premises, the
licensing authority may consider it necessary to attach conditions to the licence to
address those risks, taking account of the local circumstances.

Conditions imposed by the licensing authority must be proportionate to the
circumstances which they are seeking to address. In particular, licensing authorities
should ensure that the premises licence conditions are:

» relevant to the need to make the proposed building suitable as a gambling facility

» directly related to the premises (including the locality and any identified local

risks) and the type of licence applied for
« fairly and reasonably related to the scale and type of premises
+ reasonable in all other respects.

Conditions that may not be attached to premiseé licences by
licensing authorities

The Act sets out certain matters that may not be the subject of conditions:

» 5.169(4) prohibits a licensing authority from imposing a condition on a premises
licence which makes it impossible to comply with an gperating licence condition

» .172(10) provides that conditions may not relate to gaming machine categories,
numbers, or method of operation

» s.170 provides that membership of a club or body cannot be required by
attaching a condition to a premises licence (the Act specifically removed the
membership requirement for casino and bingo clubs and this provision prevents
it being reinstated)

» $.171 prevents a licensing authority imposing conditions in refation to stakes,
fees, winnings or prizes.




211

21.2

21.3

214

24.5

21.8

L 217

Page 110 Agenda Item 5

Part 21: Adult gaming centres

Persons operating an adult gaming cenire (AGC) must hold a ‘gaming machines
general operating licence (adult gaming centre)’ from the Commission and a premises
licence from the relevant licensing authority. They are able to make category B, Cand D

gaming machines availabie.

Protection of children and young persons

No-one under the age of 18 is permitted to enter an AGC. The Act sets outs offences at
s.46 and s.47 of inviting, causing or permitting & child or young person to gamble, or to
enter certain gambiing premises. In addition, Social Responsibility {(SR) code 3.2.3(3)in
the Licence Conditions and Codes of Practice (LCCP) states that ‘licensees must
ensure that their policies and procedures take account of the structure and layout of
their gambling premises in order to prevent underage gambling.

Licensing authorities will wish to have particular regard to the location of and entry to
AGCs to minimise the opportunities for under-18s to gain access. This may be of
particular importance in areas where young people may be unsupervised for example,
where an AGC is in a complex, such as a shopping centre or airport. Licensing
authorities should consider whether their statement of policy can be used to reflect such
locally based considerations.

Gaming machines

Gaming machine provisions by premises are set out at Appendix A. S.172(1) of the Act,
as amended, provides that the holder of an AGC premises licence may make available
for use a number of category B gaming machines not exceeding 20% of the total
number of gaming machines which are available for use on the premises and any
number of category C or D machines. For example, a premises with a total of 256
gaming machines available for use can make five or fewer category B3 gaming
machines available on those premises.

Premises subject to a licence granted before 13 July 2011 are entitled to make available
four category B3/B4 gaming machines, or 20% of the total number of gaming machines,
whichever is the greater. AGC premises licences granted on or after 13 July 2011 are
entitled to 20% of the total number of gaming machines only. Regulations specify that
the category B machines should be restricted to sub-category B3 and B4 machines, but

not B3A machines®®.

Where the operator of an existing AGC premises licence applies to vary the licence and
acquire additional AGC premises licences — so that the area that was the subject of a
single licence will become divided between a number of separate licensed premises —
each separate licensed premises must only contain the permitted machine entitlement.
For example, where two separate AGC premises have been created adjacent to each
other by splitting a pre-existing premises, it is not permissible to locate eight category
B3 gaming machines in one of the resulting premises and none in the other, as the
gaming machine entittement for that premises would be exceeded. Part 7 explains in
greater detail what constitutes premises.

AGC premises licence conditions

Part 9 of this Guidance discusses the mandatory and default conditions that attach to
premises licences. Currently there are no default conditions specific to AGCs.

66 51 2158 The Categories of Gaming Machine Regulations 207



21.8

21.9

2110

2111

Page 111 Agenda Item 5

Mandatory conditions

A notice must be displayed at all entrances to AGCs stating that no person under the
age of 18 years will be admitted to the premises.

There can be no direct access between an AGC and any other premises licensed under

_the Act or premises with a family entertainment centre {(FEC), club gaming, club

machine or alcohol licensed premises gaming machine permit. There is no definition of
‘direct access’ in the Act or regulations, although licensing authorities may consider that
there should be an area separating the premises concerned, such as a street or cafe,
which the public go to for purposes other than gambiing, for there to be no direct

access.

Any ATM made available for use on the premises shall be located in a place that
requires any customer who wishes to use it to cease gambling at any gaming machine

in order to do so.

The consumption of alcohol in AGCs is prohibited at any time during which facilities for
gambling are being provided on the premises. A notice stating this should be displayed
in a prominent place at every entrance to the premises.




"Pagem Agenda ltem 5



(1)

(2)

Page 113 Agenda Iltem 5

Mandatory conditions attaching to every premises licence

The summary of the terms and conditions of the premises licence issued under section
164(1)(c) of the 2005 Act shall be displayed in a prominent place within the premises.

The layout of the premises shall be maintained in accordance with the plan.
The premises shall not be used for—
(a) the sale of tickets in a private lottery or customer lottery, or
(b) the sale of tickets in any other lottery in respect of which the sale of tickets on
the premises is otherwise prohibited
Mandatory conditions attaching to adult gaming centre premises licences

A notice stating that no person under the age of 18 years is permitted to enter the
premises shall be displayed in a prominent place at every entrance to the premises.

No customer shall be able to access the premises directly from any other premises in
respect of which a licence issued under Part 8 of the Act, or a permit issued under
Schedule 10, 12 or 13 to the Act, has effect.

Any ATM made available for use on the premises shall be located in a place that
requires any customer who wishes to use it to cease gambling at any gaming
machine in order to do so.

No alcohol shall be permitted to be consumed on the premises at any time during
which facilities for gambling are being provided on the premises.

A notice stating the condition in sub-paragraph (1) shall be displayed in a prominent
place at every entrance to the premises.



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	5 Application for an Adult Gaming Centre Premises Licence - 8/10 Unicorn Hill, Redditch, Worcestershire, B97 4QR
	Appendix 1 - Application form
	Appendix 1 - Plan
	Appendix 2 - risk assessment
	Appendix 3 - Representation from IP
	Appendix 4 - RBC Statement of Principles 16-19 (Final)
	Appendix 5 - LCCP-sector-summary-for-arcades
	Gambling Commission
	E info@gamblingcommission.gov.uk
	5 Payment
	5.1 Cash and cash equivalents, payment methods and  services
	12 Anti-money laundering
	12.1 Prevention of money laundering and terrorist financing
	15.2 Reporting key events and other reportable events
	16 Responsible placement of digital adverts
	Part III: Code of practice
	10 Assessing local risk
	10.1  Assessing local risk
	Index of licence conditions
	Index of code of practice provisions

	Appendix 6  - extracts from Guidance to Licensing Authorities
	Appendix 7 - Mandatory Conditions - Adult Gaming Centres


